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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT (continued)
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On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board” or “Directors”), |
present to the shareholders the annual report of Dynamic Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the
financial year ended 30 June 2020.

RESULTS

For the financial year ended 30 June 2020, the Group recorded a total
revenue of HK$92,054,000 (2019: HK$106,206,000) and gross profit
of HK$65,587,000 (2019: HK$80,799,000), showing decrease of
about 13% and 19% respectively compared with those of last year.
These results were primarily attributable to the reduced rental income
of investment properties of the Group in mainland China denominated
in renminbi yuan (“RMB”), with gross profit margin at 71% (2019:
76%).

During the year under review, the Group accounted for other income
of HK$16,180,000 (2019: HK$15,894,000), which mainly arose
from imputed and bank interest income in the sum of HK$17,121,000
(2019: HK$18,585,000) with the net exchange loss of HK$3,951,000
(2019: HK$5,841,000) due to the devaluation of RMB against Hong
Kong dollar (“HKD”) in the year. The Group recognised an aggregate
decrease of HK$168,560,000 (2019: increase of HK$3,560,000) in
the fair value of the investment properties under subdued market
sentiment. In addition, the Group accounted for increase in fair value
of properties held for sale upon transfer to investment properties in the
sum of HK$88,228,000 (2019: nil). Administrative expenses for the
year amounted to HK$37,053,000 (2019: HK$43,730,000).

After taking into account of the decrease in fair value of the
investment properties together with the related effect of taxation in the
year, the loss for the year attributable to shareholders of the Company
was HK$28,413,000 (2019: profit of HK$48,730,000), with basic loss
per share of 12 Hong Kong cents (2019: basic earnings per share of
21.5 Hong Kong cents).

In addition, due to exchange difference on currency translation to
presentation currency in HKD from functional currency in RMB,
which devalued against HKD by 3.8% (2019: devalued by 4.3%) in
the year, the other comprehensive expense was HK$78,898,000 (2019:
HK$91,249,000), and the total comprehensive expense attributable to
shareholders of the Company amounted to HK$105,884,000 (2019:
HK$40,919,000) in the year.

DYNAMIC HOLDINGS LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2019-2020
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DIVIDENDS

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for
the year ended 30 June 2020 (2019: 4 Hong Kong cents per share).

BUSINESS REVIEW

In the year under review, the overall revenue and results of the Group
were principally derived from its operating segment of property rental
in mainland China located in Beijing and Shanghai denominated in
RMB, which performed adversely as compared with last year in the
face of weakening leasing and market sentiment in Shanghai and
Beijing.

With the outbreak and the adverse impact of the COVID-19 pandemic
and gloomy economy in China in the year, demand from both
domestic and international customers for office and retail spaces were
restrained, causing increased vacancy rates and lower effective rental
income generated from investment properties of the Group in Shanghai
and Beijing, that exerted downward pressure on rental income, capital
value of its properties and the profitability of the Group.

The rental income of the Group generated from its investment
properties in two major cities, Shanghai and Beijing, was in the
amount of RMB83,011,000 (2019: RMB92,474,000), denoting a
drop of 10% as compared with that of last year. Such rental income
presented in the financial statements in the sum of HK$92,054,000
(2019: HK$106,206,000), which represented all (2019: all) of the
consolidated revenue of the Group in the year.

In the year under review, the Group reclassified its certain properties
(the “Properties”) in Beijing with gross floor area of about 2,460
square meters previously accounted for as held for sale into
investment properties in view of such Properties being mostly leased
out to generate long-term rental income according to the applicable
accounting standards. As such, the fair value of such Properties
less its development cost in the amount of RMB79,560,000 was
recorded for the financial year ended 30 June 2020. Meanwhile, the
investment properties of the Group which comprised shopping mall
and carparks in Beijing as well as office units in Shanghai devalued
by RMB152,000,000 (2019: appreciated by RMB3,100,000) under
subdued market sentiment. As a result, the fair value of all investment
properties of the Group decreased by an aggregate of RMB72,440,000
(2019: appreciated by RMB3,100,000), translating into
HK$80,332,000 (2019: appreciated by the sum of HK$3,560,000) in
the year. As such, the segment results of property rental reported a loss
of RMB13,949,000 (2019: a profit of RMB73,596,000), presenting
a loss of HK$15,469,000 (2019: a profit of HK$84,525,000), which
decrease was primarily due to the drop in fair value of the investment
properties as a whole. Exclusive of the changes in fair value of
these investment properties and related tax effect, the underlying
segment results would have been a profit of RMB58,491,000 (2019:
RMB70,496,000), showing a drop of 17% as compared with that of
last year.



% Wl 4

AR EHBEEET > FEHHRZES
AR T B A A BT B BHOIR AR R B P & E
BB A T B R RS TR R K&
TR o Ut » A4 ) 3 B8 [ 07 7 50 B I 1
SEEAL R (Y M AR
RN AZ > T A AT I A R A £589% (
T JLEE 1 91%) o FZ UL b o B 4E N A
LB Y A B AT A N R 28,912,000 7T (—
E—JL4E - AR 32,019,0007C) > #2555
%n%mmﬁk:i—n$:%%mﬂwm
> KL 4E S BHOR T R £110% 30 1k A 4
@%WA%%#? JUEE 1 35%) o L&
WEEEZEYE ATEFESLERS A
R #51,560,000 0 ( —F — L&« WEHAR
58,900,000 7T ) > B £ it ¥557,177,000 G (—
T —JUAF - B2 ME 5 W 110,222,000 0) © B 5F
AREMEZEYEZ NTFEE > RERS
02 A Bk A5 T R 25 s M 74,864,000 00 (& —
JUAE ¢ ¥ 11,003,000 ) © il AR Z S
BN 2 A A BB TE R S
A HE 2L AR R B N R 15,949,000 0T (&
— JU4E + AR ¥ 18480,0007C) » A L < 4E RN
FR 14% 08 -

1V T I B 5 U A5 i 45 R e T N S 2
o HEHP A SRS NS AL
BT s AR R (D LR 7R R RO M ) Y
KEBEA 2 g B AF R =
Te fH 4 1) AT o A SR 2 2y |4 5 B B 7 5
J& 5 |0 4B RT MR ON AEE (L B A /DN B 2R H 1 5
A R ) AR BRI R TR R
mm*%éﬂﬁ'%% WﬁéWA%?
B N R 54,099,000 7T (& — JU4E © ARHE
60,454,000 7T ) ,mwfﬁ BN 11%Ek 0 -
5% W A M B R 159,992,000 8 (L F — L
4 k15 69,432,00078) 0 SIf A 4E A AL AN 42
U A 65% (—F —JLF 1 65%)  ZERE
WEANTVEAETGRAFEHEANT > KHE
&3t B AR 124,000,000 78 (& — JLAE ¢
FHH A A R 12,000,000 0 ) - #2 B 5 i
137,509,000 JG ( — & — JL4F + #5 #°13,782,000
) o FRM > AR FHES B E A
590,333,000 € ( — F — JUAF © Ui Al 25 W %
73,522,000 7C) ° i ANFFAZE R EWER T
B 2 550 Fe AR B BLTE 2 28 > BE A 0 JH 34
s M) Bk A5 A R 42,541,000 78 (L — LA ¢
N B 52,016,000 70) > # X4 > BHR18%
B

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT (continued)
FTEHMESE (@)

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

In Beijing, the COVID-19 pandemic brought pressure on the retail
market, resulting in contracted retail sales and closures of shops
in lockdown that dented retailers’ leasing demands and rental.
Consequently, the rental income mainly generated from the well-
established community mall (including car parks) of the Group
in Chaoyang District was suppressed with average occupancy
rate of about 89% (2019: 91%) throughout the year. Thereby, the
rental income of this segment in the year totaled RMB28,912,000
(2019: RMB32,019,000), translating into HK$32,062,000 (2019:
HK$36,774,000) which showed a fall of about 10% as compared
with that of last year and accounted for 35% (2019: 35%) of the total
revenue of the Group. The fair value of these investment properties
including the Properties increased in the sum of RMB51,560,000
(2019: decreased by RMB8,900,000), translating to HK$57,177,000
(2019: decreased by HK$10,222,000). After accounting for the
fair value of the Properties, a profit of HK$74,864,000 (2019:
HK$11,003,000) was recorded in the segment results in the year.
Disregarding changes in fair value of these investment properties and
related tax effect, the underlying segment results would have been a
profit of RMB15,949,000 (2019: RMB18,480,000), showing a drop of
14% as compared with that of last year.

In Shanghai, office rent continued to slide under uncertainty resulting
from the pandemic and stagnant economy which was further
intensified by the new and abundant supply of office space particularly
in decentralised areas that led to a downturn and a drag on leasing
rates and rental in the year. The quality offices of the Group known as
“Eton Place” which is in the prominent financial location of Lujiazui
in Pudong recorded a declining average occupancy rate to about 79%
(2019: 90%) in the year, whereas the rental income was in the sum
of RMB54,099,000 (2019: RMB60,454,000), showing a fall of 11%
as compared with that of last year. It translated into HK$59,992,000
(2019: HK$69,432,000) which shared 65% (2019: 65%) of the total
revenue of the Group in the year. The fair value of these investment
properties depreciated in the sum of RMB124,000,000(2019:
appreciated by RMB12,000,000) amidst stagnant market sentiment,
translating into HK$137,509,000 (2019: HK$13,782,000). Thereby,
this segment results recorded a loss of HK$90,333,000 (2019: a profit
of HK$73,522,000) in the year. Disregarding the changes in fair value
of these investment properties and related tax effect, the underlying
segment results would have recorded a profit of RMB42,541,000
(2019: RMB52,016,000), showing a drop of 18% as compared with
the last year.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

During the year under review, Shenzhen Zhen Wah Harbour
Enterprises Ltd. (“Zhen Wah”, a joint venture in which the Company
holds 49% of equity interests), which holds interests in a piece of land
located in Tung Kok Tau, Nanshan District, Shenzhen (“Existing
Land”), continued its proceedings of compulsory liquidation
(“Compulsory Liquidation”) which commenced in July 2016
under supervision of the PRC court and management of a liquidation
committee (“Liquidation Committee”) as appointed by the PRC
court.

In the year, the Group closely monitored the liquidation proceedings
of Zhen Wah with the assistance of its legal advisers. Meanwhile,
the Group worked actively with the Liquidation Committee, relevant
official authorities and Chinese joint venture partner regarding
the liquidation and the proposal for re-zoning, compensation for
demolition, relocation, increase of gross developable area and swap
of the Existing Land (“Land Swap”) in accordance with the relevant
laws and regulations.

As announced on 11 September 2019 (“Land Swap Announcement”),
the official agreement for the Land Swap (“Agreement”) has been
entered into between I TTERHIFN A 2R & VAR RS 145 B (Nanshan
Administration of Shenzhen Municipal Bureau of Planning and
Natural Resources) (“Bureau”) and Zhen Wah.

Pursuant to the Agreement and as more particularly described in the
Land Swap Announcement, Zhen Wah and the Bureau agreed to the
Land Swap, such that the Existing Land is to be surrendered by Zhen
Wah to the Bureau in return for a new piece of land situated in Tung
Kok Tau, Nanshan District, Shenzhen (“New Land”), to be granted
by the Bureau to Zhen Wah without additional land premium payable
subject to the terms and conditions as set out therein.

According to the Agreement, the New Land will have a land site area
of approximately 111,000 square metres with land usage as residential,
commercial including office and supporting ancillary facilities and a
total developable gross floor area of approximately 395,000 square

metres for multi-purpose development.

And the Group has been working closely with the relevant parties
for demolition, relocation and compensation of ex-tenants regarding
the delivery of vacant possession of the Existing Land and various
appropriate applications and approvals as required for the Land Swap
in accordance with the Agreement, and in alignment with the city
planning near the New Land including but not limited to an opera
house project and metro lines and station nearby.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

As further announced on 16 July 2020, &I A8k A RIERE
(Shenzhen Intermediate People’s Court) in the PRC accepted the
application lodged by the Liquidation Committee to further extend the
period of Compulsory Liquidation of Zhen Wah for six months up to
January 2021.

Meanwhile, based on the PRC legal advice and to further strive for
the best interests of the Group, the Group lodged an application
for international arbitration (“Arbitration”) with South China
International Economic and Trade Arbitration Commission
(“Arbitration Commission”) in June 2017 to determine the precise
entitlement of the Group regarding rent, income and profit generated
from the Existing Land, pursuant to a shareholders’ agreement
entered into between the Group and the Chinese joint venture partner
on 20 December 1996 in relation to Zhen Wah (“Shareholders’
Agreement”). After the arbitral hearing for the Arbitration in July
2019 and as announced on 31 July 2020, an arbitral award dated 14
July 2020 relating to the Arbitration was made by the Arbitration
Commission (“Arbitral Award”). Pursuant to the Arbitral Award,
compensations paid or to be paid by the Shenzhen municipality
government for resumption of part of the Existing Land from Zhen
Wah on various occasions prior to 2012 do not constitute rent, income
or profit generated from the Land under the Shareholders” Agreement,
pursuant to which the Group is entitled to 80%. This does not affect
the Group’s entitlement to 49% equity interests in Zhen Wah and its
corresponding distributions to be made in the Compulsory Liquidation
which will be made after repayment of all debts and applicable
expenses prior to any such distributions. Irrespective of the result of
the Arbitration, Zhen Wah will be wound up in the liquidation process
in due course.

In the year, the Group shared of loss of Zhen Wah in the sum of
HK$10,940,000 (2019: HK$10,140,000) and incurred professional
fees in the amount of HK$8,320,000 (2019: HK$12,819,000) for the
Compulsory Liquidation and the Arbitration.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Capital Structure

The financial position of the Group remains sound and liquid, and
its financing and treasury policies are managed and controlled at the
corporate level and in a prudent manner during the year. The main
objective is to utilise the Group’s funding efficiently and to manage
financial risks effectively. At 30 June 2020, the equity attributable
to its owners amounted to RMB1,815,945,000 (30 June 2019:
RMB1,843,465,000) with net asset value per share of RMB7.64
(30 June 2019: RMBS8.07), translating to HK$1,988,029,000 (30
June 2019: HK$2,095,656,000) with net asset value per share of
HK$8.36 (30 June 2019: HK$9.18). Total unsecured and secured
bank borrowings of the Group amounted to about HK$99,507,000 (30
June 2019: HK$107,759,000), which were in Hong Kong dollars and
repayable within three years on floating rate basis. As at 30 June 2020,
the gearing ratio of the Group was 5% (30 June 2019: 5%) based on
the total debt of the Group to its equity attributable to owners of the
Company. The exposure to foreign currency fluctuations that affected
the Group in the year under review was mainly due to the fluctuation
of RMB devaluation against HKD, resulting in the net exchange loss
of HK$3,951,000 (2019: net exchange loss of HK$5,841,000) and
exchange difference on translation functional currency of RMB to
presentation currency of HKD, amounting to other comprehensive
expense of HK$78,898,000 (2019: HK$91,249,000). No financial
instruments were used for hedging purpose in the year. And the Group
will continue to closely monitor the impact of fluctuation of RMB in
order to minimise its adverse impact.

Financial Resources and Liquidity

In the year under review, there was sufficient cashflow as generated by
rental revenue of investment properties in Shanghai and Beijing. As at
30 June 2020, the fixed bank deposits, bank balances and cash of the
Group stood at HK$279,360,000 (30 June 2019: HK$260,514,000),
in aggregate and was denominated primarily in RMB. With sufficient
cashflow, the Group maintained un-utilised credit facilities of
HK$11,000,000 as at 30 June 2020 (30 June 2019: HK$16,000,000) as
working capital at floating interest rate. The Group’s net current assets
amounted to HK$169,050,000 (30 June 2019: HK$77,356,000) with
current ratio of 2.21 (30 June 2019: 1.32) as at 30 June 2020. And no
significant capital expenditure commitments and authorisations was
made in the year.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Pledge of Assets and Contingent Liabilities

As at 30 June 2020, the Group pledged its properties with a total
carrying value of HK$798,082,000 (30 June 2019: HK$918,536,000),
with an assignment of rental and sale proceeds from such properties
and a charge over shares in respect of a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Group to financial institutions as security against general banking
facilities granted to the Group, and also pledged certain of its bank
deposits in the sum of HK$4,235,000 (30 June 2019: HK$13,065,000)
to banks to secure banking facilities and home loans granted to the
home buyers of a property project of the Group. As at the end of
the reporting period, the Group has given guarantees in respect of
settlement of home loans provided by banks to the home buyers of a
property project in Beijing. As at 30 June 2020, the Group had given
guarantees in respect of such home loans of HK$511,000 (30 June
2019: HK$1,032,000). The Directors of the Company consider that
the fair values of these financial guarantee contracts at their initial
recognition and at the end of the reporting period are insignificant on
the basis of the low loan ratio.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

There are a number of factors affecting the results and business
operations of the Group. The most significant risk is the uncertainty
in the economic environment, both globally and in mainland China,
especially arising from the on-going threat of COVID-19 pandemic
and uncertainty over the future trade frictions between the United
States and China. These macroeconomic factors further intensified
the challenging business condition of the property rental segment in
Beijing and Shanghai which the Group is facing. The default risk
of tenants is also inevitably higher under unstable economic outlook
and may also have an impact on the revenue and results of the
Group. However, the existing mitigation action taken by the Group
reduces the Group’s exposure to market volatility by maintaining a
good quality of tenant mix; offering a competitive rental package for
tenants’ retention; renovating or refurnishing its properties regularly;
and refining its business strategies. These proactive and responsive
measures enable our Group to benefit from mitigating the impact
resulting from the fluctuating occupancy rate, downward trend of
market rental rate and a fiercer market environment.

PROSPECTS

The year 2020 has been challenging and unprecedented in view of
the outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic and its devastating impact,
uncertainties in the development of Sino-US friction and restrictive
policy toward mainland China, all weighing on the economic outlook
in mainland China. Nevertheless, due to the effective confinement
of COVID-19 pandemic in mainland China, the sound resilient
fundamentals of China’s economy coupled with effective official
effort and favorable fiscal, economic and social measures to curtail
the post-pandemic impact, it is anticipated that China will rebound
and retool its economy to be more self-sustaining and to rely on robust
domestic demand and digital innovation as the main drivers of its
economy so as to boost consumption and unleash market potential,
which will lead to resurgence in and improvement of leasing activities
of office and retail sectors gradually in Beijing and Shanghai.
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PROSPECTS (Continued)

In Beijing, although consumers are prone to on-line platform for
consumption, the retail operations and consumption environment are
resuming gradually step-by-step. And it is believed that retail leasing
and turnover volumes of shopping malls will see gradual improvement
as the resilient middle-class exhibiting consumer confidence will
resume physical-store shopping after emerging from the COVID-19
pandemic lockdown. To safeguard tenants and maintain occupancy
rate and recurring revenue, the Group will endeavor to take proactive
strict and effective measures of property management, for pandemic
prevention and control, and adjust both on-line and off-line leasing and
marketing strategies. The Group will also revamp tenant mix to get a
new fresh look for shoppers and to enhance the mall to differentiate
from competitors. The Group will adopt competitive and effective

rental strategies to attract new retailers and retain the existing retailers.

In Shanghai, the headwinds of office leasing will wane but it is
expected that the net take-up of office space in the core business
district will remain stagnant under fierce competition and slowing
economy, continuing trend for occupiers to decentralise in emerging
areas for flexible leasing terms, competitive rental and diversified
leasing services, all posing downside risks to the office leasing market
in Lujiazui in the short-term. Yet, it is believed that the new metro
line and station near Eton Place to be completed in 2021 will enhance
its prime location for leasing. Meanwhile, the Group will continue
to enhance its competitive and effective rental strategies from time
to time to attract new tenants and retain existing tenants, including
refurbishment of the property, providing value-added services such
as turnkey solutions and improving property management, so as to

procure better rental level and leasing rate.

Shenzhen is identified as the primary growth node in the Greater Bay
Area as its concentration of high innovative and technically-advanced
industries can help stimulate economic development in the region. It
is anticipated that with the infrastructural improvement in Shenzhen, it
will be developed as a financial, technological and logistic hub in the
region. All will enhance the development value of the land located in
Tung Kok Tau, Nanshan District.

The Group will continue to act proactively for safeguarding the best
interests of the Company in relation to Zhen Wah and its assets. It
will keep on adopting the best available measures and take expedient
action with a view to protecting the Company’s best interests in the

context of the Compulsory Liquidation.
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PROSPECTS (Continued)

Meanwhile, the Group will keep on working with the relevant
parties to monitor the progress of Land Swap involving appropriate
applications and approvals required for the Land Swap in accordance
with the relevant laws, regulations and rules of the PRC applicable to
Zhen Wah, demand for ex-tenant to duly vacate the Existing Land, and
to optimise city planning of the New Land in line with the projects of
opera house and infrastructure nearby. In view of the above, there is no
assurance that further significant delay and impediments to the Land
Swap, or to the approval for the relevant applications and execution of
the relevant land contract relating to New Land will not arise.

And based on the PRC legal advice received by the Group, assets
of Zhen Wah will eventually be sold by way of public auction or
disposed of by other applicable means subject to endorsement of the
PRC court upon receipt of proposal of the Liquidation Committee
in accordance with the PRC laws, and any surplus (after settlement
of all relevant liabilities including taxation) will be distributed to the
joint venture partners in accordance with their equity contributions.
However, the issues involved in the Compulsory Liquidation are
complex and sophisticated, involving not only the PRC court but
also various governmental authorities. There is no assurance that
the Compulsory Liquidation may not be subject to significant delay,
oppositions, obstructions and further dispute or litigation with respect
to the matters of Zhen Wah and/or its assets.

APPRECIATION

The Board would like to thank the shareholders, bankers, customers,
suppliers of the Group and others who have extended their continued
support to the Group and all staff of the Group for their contributions
to the Group in the year.

Dr. TAN Lucio C.

Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 September 2020
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The brief biographical details of each director (the “Directors”) of the
board (the “Board”) of Dynamic Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) and updated
information (if any) on Directors pursuant to rule 13.51B(1) and
13.51C of the Listing Rules as at the date of this report are as follows:

DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Dr. TAN Lucio C., aged 86, is the Chairman of the Board and
Executive Director of the Company as appointed in March 2019. He is
also the chairman and director of a subsidiary of the Company (Beijing
Longfast Property Development Co., Ltd. (“Beijing Longfast™)) in
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”). He has years of senior
managerial experience specialising in real estate, banking, airline,
hotel, liquor and tobacco industries. Dr. TAN holds a number of senior
positions in various organisations and holds directorships in various
listed companies. Dr. TAN is and has been the chairman and a director
of LT Group, Inc. (“LT Group”), PAL Holdings, Inc. (“PAL”) and
MacroAsia Corporation (“MacroAsia”), and a director of Philippine
National Bank (“PNB”), all securities of which are listed on The
Philippine Stock Exchange, Inc. (“PSE”). In addition, he has been
recognised for, and awarded as the “Beijing City Overseas Chinese
Special Honorary Award” (Beijing Municipality) and the “Overseas
Chinese Entrepreneur with the Greatest Sense of Social Responsibility
in the Asia-Pacific Region” (Overseas Chinese Affairs Office of the
State Council, China). As for involvement in social organisations,
Dr. TAN is the emeritus chairman of the Federation of Filipino-
Chinese Chambers of Commerce and Industry, Inc. (“FFCCCI”)
in the Philippines. Dr. TAN holds a bachelor of science in chemical
engineering from Far Eastern University in the Philippines, and several
honorary doctorate degrees from various universities. He is related to
other Executive Directors being the spouse of Mrs. TAN Carmen K.;
the father of Ms. TAN Vivienne Khao; and the father-in-law of Mr.
PASCUAL Ramon Sy and Mr. CHUA Joseph Tan.

Mr. CHIU Siu Hung, Allan, aged 62, is the Chief Executive Officer
of the Company as re-designated in May 2019 and has been appointed
as an Executive Director of the Company since 2007. He is also the
director of all subsidiaries of the Company (except those subsidiaries
incorporated in the PRC) and a director of a joint venture in the
PRC, Shenzhen Zhen Wah Harbour Enterprises Ltd., in which the
Company holds 49% of equity interests, under compulsory liquidation
as commenced in July 2016. He has years of senior managerial
experience specialising in the field of real estate, accounting and
finance in Hong Kong and the mainland China. Prior to joining the
Group in 1993, he worked at a major accounting firm and held various
senior accounting positions in property companies in Hong Kong. He
holds a master degree in business administration.
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DIRECTORS (Continued)
Executive Directors (Continued)

Further details of the above-mentioned liquidation are set out in the
announcements of the Company dated 16 July 2020 and 31 July 2020;
and note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.

Mrs. TAN Carmen K., aged 79, is an Executive Director of the
Company as appointed in March 2019. She is in charge of business
development, investment and management of the Group. She has
years of senior managerial experience specialising in real estate,
banking, airline, hotel, liquor and tobacco industries. Mrs. TAN
holds directorships in several listed companies. She is and has been
a director of LT Group, PAL, MacroAsia and PNB, all securities of
which are listed on PSE. She is related to other Executive Directors
being the spouse of Dr. TAN Lucio C.; the mother of Ms. TAN
Vivienne Khao; and the mother-in-law of Mr. PASCUAL Ramon Sy
and Mr. CHUA Joseph Tan.

Mr. PASCUAL Ramon Sy, aged 61, is an Executive Director of
the Company as appointed in 2006. He is in charge of business
development, investment and management of the Group. He is also
a director of Beijing Longfast in the PRC. He has years of senior
managerial experience specialising in real estate and manufacturing.
He currently holds a senior executive position in Eton Properties
(Holdings) Limited, and serves as directors in several companies
engaging businesses of real estate, manufacturing and logistics in the
mainland China, Hong Kong and the Philippines. He holds a bachelor
degree in economics. He is related to other Executive Directors being
the son-in-law of Dr. TAN Lucio C. and Mrs. TAN Carmen K.; and
the brother-in-law of Ms. TAN Vivienne Khao and Mr. CHUA Joseph
Tan.

Mr. CHUA Joseph Tan, aged 64, is an Executive Director of
the Company as appointed in 2016. He is in charge of business
development, investment and management of the Group. He has years
of senior managerial experience specialising in real estate, banking,
airline, mining, insurance and general management. Mr. CHUA holds
a number of senior positions in various organisations and directorship
in other listed companies, PAL and MacroAsia. He is a member of the
Management Association of the Philippines. Besides, he previously
was directors of other listed companies, LT Group and PNB. He holds
a bachelor of arts in economics, a bachelor of science in business
management and masters of business administration and international
finance. He is related to other Executive Directors being the son-in-
law of Dr. TAN Lucio C. and Mrs. TAN Carmen K.; and the brother-
in-law of Ms. TAN Vivienne Khao and Mr. PASCUAL Ramon Sy.
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DIRECTORS (Continued)

Executive Directors (Continued)

Ms. TAN Vivienne Khao, aged 52, is an Executive Director of the
Company as appointed in March 2019. She is in charge of business
development, investment and management of the Group. She has years
of senior managerial experience specialising in real estate, banking,
airline and education. Ms. TAN is and has been a director of LT
Group, PAL, MacroAsia and PNB, all securities of which are listed on
PSE. She is the director of Eton Properties Philippines, Inc. She sits on
the board of the University of the East and the University of the East
Ramon Magsaysay Memorial Medical Center. She has been awarded
the “Ten Outstanding Young Men Award” for education/business
entrepreneurship in the Philippines. Ms. TAN graduated from the
University of San Francisco with a double degree in mathematics and
computer science. She is related to other Executive Directors being
the daughter of Dr. TAN Lucio C. and Mrs. TAN Carmen K. and the
sister-in-law of Mr. PASCUAL Ramon Sy and Mr. CHUA Joseph
Tan.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. CHONG Kim Chan, Kenneth, aged 69, is an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company as appointed in 1994. He is also
the chairman of both audit committee and remuneration committee of
the Board, as well as a member of nomination committee of the Board.
He is a veteran in the jewellery business in which he has years of
senior managerial experience. He is managing a number of companies
engaged in diamond trading, jewellery manufacturing, wholesaling
and exports activities in Hong Kong and South East Asian countries.
Currently, he also serves as an independent non-executive director of
Allied Banking Corporation (Hong Kong) Limited (“Allied”).

Dr. FOK Kam Chu, John, aged 70, is an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company as appointed in 2010. He is also
members of audit committee, remuneration committee and nomination
committee of the Board. He has years of senior managerial experience
specialising in banking business. Currently, he also serves as an
independent non-executive director of Allied. He holds doctor of
philosophy in corporate management, a master degree in business
administration and a bachelor degree in laws. He is an associate of
the Institute of Financial Accountants in United Kingdom, registered
financial planner of the Society of Registered Financial Planner in
Hong Kong and in the mainland China as well as certified risk planner

of The Institute of Crisis and Risk Management in Hong Kong.
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DIRECTORS (Continued)
Independent Non-executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. GO Patrick Lim, aged 62, is an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company as appointed in 2013. He is also a member
of audit committee of the Board and has been nominated as the
chairman and member of nomination committee of the Board with
effect from 11 September 2019. He is the chief executive officer of
Paramount Life & General Insurance Corporation and also serves
as an independent non-executive director of Allied. He has years of
senior managerial experience specialising in corporate finance and
private/public equity having worked for Credit Suisse First Boston,
Bank of America Asia Limited and Bankers Trust Company. He is
also a member of Singapore Institute of Directors. He holds a bachelor
degree in economics and a master degree in business administration.
He was formerly a director of Del Monte Pacific Limited, which is
listed on Singapore Exchange Limited.

Mr. NGU Angel, aged 72, is an Independent Non-executive Director
of the Company as appointed in May 2019. He has years of senior
managerial experience specialising in the business of aluminum
products. Mr. NGU holds directorships in various companies and
holds a number of senior positions in various organisations. He is
the chairman and president of Angus Aluminum, Inc. and Roosevelt
Aluminum Products Co. Inc. He also acts as honorary president
of FFCCCI in the Philippines and Filipino-Chinese Quezon City
Chamber of Commerce. In addition, he has been awarded as 2016
Outstanding Manilan for Community Service, City of Manila. He
holds a bachelor degree in commerce from University of the East in
the Philippines.

Mr. MA Chiu Tak, Anthony, aged 65, is an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company as appointed with effect from 11
September 2019. He is also a member of remuneration committee of
the Board. He has years of senior managerial experience specialising
in the business of banking. Mr. MA has held senior position in treasury
and global markets in Bank of Shanghai (Hong Kong) Limited and
Bank of America, N.A. Hong Kong Branch. He has been a member of
the Treasury Markets Association and an Alternate Chief Executive of
Bank of America, N.A. Hong Kong Branch. He holds a Bachelor of
Arts from York University in Canada.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board of Directors (the “Board” or “Directors”) and management
of Dynamic Holdings Limited (the “Company”) strive to establish
and uphold good practices and procedures on corporate governance.
The corporate governance principles of the Company emphasis
an effective Board, prudent risk management and internal control
systems, transparency and accountability to its stakeholders including

shareholders, customers, suppliers, employees and the public.

During the year ended 30 June 2020, being the financial year under
review, the Board and the management of the Company have been
continually reviewing and enhancing the corporate governance
practices of the Company with reference to local and international
best practices from time to time. The Board believes that its continued
efforts in enhancing the Company’s corporate governance practices
have contributed to sustain the business growth of the Company and
its subsidiaries (the “Group”) in the past years.

With an aim to safeguard the interests of the Company and its
shareholders for the year ended 30 June 2020, the Company has
applied the principles and adhered to the code provisions as set out in
the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) in Appendix 14 to
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
as amended from time to time, save for deviation of certain code
provisions of the CG Code as disclosed below. Also, the Company has
met some of the recommended best practices, where appropriate, in
the CG Code.

The Company has also established an internal corporate governance
code (compliance guide) (the “Internal CG Code”), the contents
of which are in line with the CG Code as revised from time to time
according to the relevant amendments to the Listing Rules. The
Internal CG Code aims to facilitate compliance with the CG Code
and to give guidance to Directors and the senior management of the
Company in this respect. The Board will continue to monitor and
review the corporate governance practices and procedures of the
Company to ensure compliance with the CG Code and to enhance its

practices and procedures.
DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code for securities transactions by
Directors on the same terms as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules as amended from time to time (the “Model Code”). Having
made specific enquiry of all Directors, each Director has confirmed to
the Company that he/she has complied with the required standard set
out in the Model Code throughout the year ended 30 June 2020.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composition

The Board currently comprises six executive Directors (the “Executive
Directors”) and five Independent non-executive Directors (the
“Independent Non-executive Directors”). The members of the Board
during the year ended 30 June 2020 and up to 29 September 2020 are as
follows:

Current Directors:
Dr. TAN Lucio C.
Mr. CHIU Siu Hung, Allan

(Chairman and Executive Director)

(Chief Executive Officer and
Executive Director)

(Executive Director)

(Executive Director)

(Executive Director)

(Executive Director)

(Independent Non-executive Director)

(Independent Non-executive Director)

(Independent Non-executive Director)

(Independent Non-executive Director)

(Independent Non-executive Director)

Mrs. TAN Carmen K.

Mr. PASCUAL Ramon Sy

Mr. CHUA Joseph Tan

Ms. TAN Vivienne Khao

Mr. CHONG Kim Chan, Kenneth

Dr. FOK Kam Chu, John

Mr. GO Patrick Lim

Mr. NGU Angel

Mr. MA Chiu Tak, Anthony
(appointed on 11 September 2019)

Ex-Directors:
Mr. TAN Kenway Hao
(resigned on 11 September 2019)

(Independent Non-executive Director)

Mr. TAN Lucio Jr. Khao
(passed away on 11 November 2019)

(Executive Director)

Mr. TAN Michael Gonzales
(retired on 29 November 2019)

(Executive Director)

Currently, the Company has five Independent Non-executive Directors
representing more than one-third of the Board and more than one of
them have appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or
related financial management expertise.

Responsibilities and Accountabilities

The Board is responsible for establishing the overall strategic
development and direction, setting business objectives and
development plans, monitoring the performance of the business and
senior management, and ensuring sound corporate governance of the
Group. It also monitors the financial performance, the internal controls
and risk management of the Group’s business operations. Executive
Directors are responsible for running and managing the operations of
the Group and executing the strategies adopted by the Board.

The day-to-day operations of the Group are delegated to the
management with departmental heads responsible for different
aspects of the business and functions of the Group. The Independent
Non-executive Directors serve the function of bringing independent
judgment on the business development and performance, internal
controls, corporate governance and risk management of the Group
through their contributions in the meetings of the Board and
committees of the Board.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)
Responsibilities and Accountabilities (Continued)

The Directors can attend meetings in person or via other communications
equipment in accordance with the bye-laws of the Company (the “Bye-
laws”). The Board meets regularly with meeting dates scheduled in
advance. Between scheduled meetings, senior management of the
Group provides to Directors on a regular basis monthly updates and
other information with respect to the performance, and business
activities and development of the Group.

During the year ended 30 June 2020, the Company held a total of
four Board meetings, two meetings of committees of the Board, and
an annual general meeting. Details of Directors’ attendance record of
such Board meetings, committee meeting and general meeting during
the year are as follows:

Number of Meetings Attended/

Eligible to Attend

Annual

Audit General

Name of Directors Board Committee Meeting
Dr. TAN Lucio C. 3/4 N/A 0/1
Mr. CHIU Siu Hung, Allan 4/4 N/A 1/1
Mrs. TAN Carmen K. 2/4 N/A 0/1
Mr. PASCUAL Ramon Sy 4/4 N/A 0/1
Mr. CHUA Joseph Tan 4/4 N/A 0/1
Ms. TAN Vivienne Khao 2/4 N/A 0/1
Mr. CHONG Kim Chan, Kenneth 4/4 2/2 1/1
Dr. FOK Kam Chu, John 3/4 2/2 1/1
Mr. GO Patrick Lim 4/4 2/2 0/1
Mr. NGU Angel 3/4 N/A 0/1
Mr. MA Chiu Tak, Anthony 4/4 N/A 11

(appointed on 11 September 2019)

Mr. TAN Kenway Hao 0/1 N/A N/A
(resigned on 11 September 2019)

Mr. TAN Lucio Jr. Khao 12 N/A N/A
(passed away on
11 November 2019)

Mr. TAN Michael Gonzales 2/2 N/A 0/1
(retired on 29 November 2019)
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)
Training and Development

For training and continuing professional development of Directors,
the Company provides relevant information and publications to all
Directors on a regular basis to keep them abreast of the latest changes
and development in the industry, legal, statutory and regulatory
environment in which the Group conducts its business, and to refresh
their knowledge and skills on the roles, functions and duties of a
director of a listed company to ensure that the Directors’ contribution
to the Board remains informed and relevant. Directors have also from
time to time been provided by the Company of in-house and on-line
training and updates in the areas of regulatory, corporate governance,
risk management, internal control practices and policy and sound

industry practices.

In addition, all Directors are encouraged to attend external forums,
training courses or webinars during COVID-19 pandemic on relevant
topics for their continuous professional development. There are
arrangements in place for Directors to obtain continuing professional

development at the Company’s expense whenever necessary.

The newly appointed Director, Mr. MA Chiu Tak, Anthony,
received induction on the first occasion of his appointment to ensure
appropriate understanding of the business and operations of the Group
and full awareness of Director’s responsibilities and obligations under

the Listing Rules and relevant statutory requirements.

In accordance with code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code on Directors’
training and continuous professional development, all current and
ex-Directors as stated above participated in the training activities
described above during the year ended 30 June 2020. Each current
Director has provided a record of training they received during the
year to the Company.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The roles and responsibilities of the chairman (the “Chairman”)
and the chief executive officer (the “CEO”) of the Company are
segregated and separately undertaken by different officers to ensure
a balance of power and authority. The Chairman provides leadership
and is responsible for driving effective functioning of the Board in
accordance with good corporate governance practice, and overseeing
the Group’s overall direction and strategic planning. The CEO is
mainly responsible for implementing objectives, policies and strategies
approved by the Board and managing the business and affairs of the
Company.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Currently, all Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company
(the Company has currently no other non-executive Directors) are
appointed for a term of two years subject to retirement by rotation
in accordance with the Bye-laws. The Bye-laws stipulate that every
Director will be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every
three years at annual general meeting of the Company, and being
eligible for re-election.

Meanwhile, all Independent Non-executive Directors have to confirm
their respective independence annually pursuant to rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules for their continuous appointment after reviewed and
assessed by Nomination Committee. And those serving for more
than 9 years, their further appointment should be subject to a separate
resolutions to be approved by the shareholders of the Company
(the “Shareholders”). The Company has received from each of the
Independent Non-executive Directors an annual written confirmation
of his independence and the Board considers that each Independent
Non-executive Director meets the independence guidelines set out in
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and is independent.

BOARD COMMITTEE

The Board has established three committees, namely, the Remuneration
Committee, Nomination Committee and Audit Committee for
overseeing specific aspects of the affairs of the Group. Each committee
is established with defined terms of reference, which are posted on the
website of the Company.

Remuneration Committee

The Board has established a remuneration committee of the Board (the
“Remuneration Committee”) since 2005 with terms of reference,
which meet the requirements set out in paragraph B.1.2 of the CG
Code. The members and change in composition of the Remuneration
Committee during the year ended 30 June 2020 and up to 29
September 2020 are as follows:

Mr. CHONG Kim Chan, Kenneth*

Dr. FOK Kam Chu, John

Mr. MA Chiu Tak, Anthony
(appointed on 11 September 2019)

(Independent Non-executive Director)
(Independent Non-executive Director)
(Independent Non-executive Director)

*  Chairman of Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee is primarily responsible for reviewing,
evaluating and/or recommending to the Board the Company’s
policy and structure for all remuneration of Directors and senior
management; the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure
for developing the policy of such remuneration; and the specific
remuneration packages (if any) of individual Executive Directors and
senior management.
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BOARD COMMITTEE (Continued)
Remuneration Committee (Continued)

During the year ended 30 June 2020 and up to 29 September 2020, the
members of the Remuneration Committee performed the following
works pursuant to resolutions in writing signed by all members in
accordance with its terms of reference:

1. reviewed the emolument policy of the Directors of the Company
and remuneration policy of the employees of the Group and the
retirement benefit schemes of the Group;

2. make recommendation of emolument policies of the Directors
of the Company and employees of the Group;

3. recommended to the Board the emolument of a newly appointed
Director, Mr. MA Chiu Tak, Anthony, and

4. reviewed the share option schemes of the Company as incentive
to Directors and eligible employees.

As such, no meetings were held by the Remuneration Committee
during the year ended 30 June 2020.

Nomination Committee

The Board has established a nomination committee of the Board (the
“Nomination Committee”) since 2012 with terms of reference, which
meet the requirements as set out in paragraph A.5.2 of the CG Code.
The members and change in composition of the Nomination Committee
during the year ended 30 June 2020 and up to 29 September 2020 are as
follows:

Mr. GO Patrick Lim*
(appointed as chairman and member
on 11 September 2019)

(Independent Non-executive Director)

Mr. CHONG Kim Chan, Kenneth
Dr. FOK Kam Chu, John
Mr. TAN Kenway Hao
(chairman and member ceased on
11 September 2019)

(Independent Non-executive Director)
(Independent Non-executive Director)
(Independent Non-executive Director)

*  Chairman of Nomination Committee

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing
the composition, structure, size and diversity of the Board; formulating
and monitoring the policy for nomination of Directors; making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment and succession
planning of Directors and assessing the independence of Independent
Non-executive Directors. Criteria adopted by the Nomination
Committee in considering whether the relevant personnel are suitable
as Directors include their qualifications, experience, expertise, skills
and knowledge, ethnical, age, cultural background and so on in view
of the provisions of the Listing Rules and the policy of diversity of the
Board (the “Board Diversity Policy”) as adopted by the Board, which
summary is set forth below.
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BOARD COMMITTEE (Continued)
Nomination Committee (Continued)
Board Diversity

The purpose of the Board Diversity Policy is to increase diversity at
the level of the Board; to enhance the effectiveness of the Board and
quality of its performance; and to support the attainment of strategic
objectives/plan and sustainable and balanced development of the
Company.

The optimum composition of the Board will be based on a range of
diversity perspectives, including but not limited to regional, industry
and professional experience, skills and knowledge, relevant length
of services, gender, age, race, ethnicity, cultural and educational
background and other qualities of Directors. The ultimate decision will
be based on merit and contribution that the selected candidate(s) will
bring to the Board.

The Nomination Committee will monitor and review the Board
Diversity Policy and recommend any revisions thereof (if appropriate)
to the Board.

During the year ended 30 June 2020 and up to 29 September 2020,
the members of the Nomination Committee performed the following
works pursuant to resolutions in writing signed by all members in
accordance with its terms of reference:

1. assessed and recommended to the Board the appointment of
Mr. MA Chiu Tak, Anthony as Independent Non-executive
Directors;

2. reviewed the size, composition and structure and diversity of the

Board, and assessed the balance of skills and experience of the
Board as expedient with diversity of perspectives appropriate to
the requirements of the business of the Group;

3. reviewed the independence of the Independent Non-executive
Directors; and

4, reviewed retirement and re-election of Directors.

As such, no meetings were held by the Nomination Committee during
the year ended 30 June 2020.

For diversity of the members of the Board in terms of qualifications,
skills and knowledge, age, ethnicity, relevant years of experience and
expertise and relationships (including business, financial and family, if
any) among them and between the Chairman and CEO (if any), please
refer to the “Profile of Management” and the section on “Directors
interests in competing business” in the “Directors’ Report” on pages
14 to 17 and pages 30 to 40 respectively of this annual report.
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BOARD COMMITTEE (Continued)
Audit Committee

The Board has established an audit committee of the Board (the “Audit
Committee”) since 1999 with terms of reference, which meet the
requirements as set out in paragraph C.3.3 of the CG Code. During the
year, the Board has delegated the functions of corporate governance
to the Audit Committee with additional terms of reference as set out
in paragraph D.3.1 of the CG Code. The members and change in
composition of the audit committee during the year ended 30 June
2020 and as at 29 September 2020 are as follows:

Mr. CHONG Kim Chan, Kenneth*
Dr. FOK Kam Chu, John
Mr. GO Patrick Lim

(Independent Non-executive Director)
(Independent Non-executive Director)
(Independent Non-executive Director)

*  Chairman of Audit Committee
The Audit Committee is primarily responsible for the following duties:
Relationship with the auditors

1. to make recommendation to the Board on the appointment, re-
appointment and removal of the external auditor;

2. to review and monitor the external auditor’s independence
and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standards;

Review of the financial information, financial reporting system, risk

management and internal control systems

3. to review and monitor integrity of financial statements of the
Company and the annual report, half-year report and accounts
of the Company and to review significant financial reporting
judgments contained in them;

4. to oversee the financial reporting system and review the risk

management and internal control systems of the Group;
Relationship with employees
5. to review arrangement for employees of the Group to raise

concerns about possible improprieties of financial reporting,

internal control or other matters; and
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BOARD COMMITTEE (Continued)
Audit Committee (Continued)
Corporate governance function

6. to review and monitor corporate governance functions delegated
by the Board.

During the year ended 30 June 2020 and up to 29 September 2020,
three meetings were held and resolutions in writing were passed by
the Audit Committee for, amongst others, the following in accordance
with the terms of reference of the Audit Committee:

1. recommended the re-appointment of the external auditor; and
reviewed the financial reporting system and procedures of risks
management and internal control systems of the Group; and the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 30 June 2020;

2. approved the engagement of the external auditor for reviewing
interim results; and reviewed the unaudited condensed
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the six
months ended 31 December 2019; and

3. reviewed and monitored the policies and practices on corporate
governance under D.3.1 of the CG Code, and compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements as stated in corporate
governance report of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2019
and as disclosed in the interim report for the six months ended
31 December 2019.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year ended 30 June 2020, audit and non-audit services
were provided to the Group by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, the auditor
of the Company (the “Auditor”). The total remuneration in respect
of services provided by the Auditor amounted to approximately
HK$1,888,000, of which approximately HK$1,375,000 was incurred
for statutory audit and approximately HK$513,000 was incurred for
non-audit services which mainly included tax advisory services and
other professional services.

The Audit Committee is of the view that the Auditor’s independence
and objectivity will not be affected by the provision of the
abovementioned limited scope of the non-audit services to the Group.

There was no disagreement between the Board and the Audit
Committee on the selection, re-appointment, resignation or dismissal
of its external auditor during the year under review.
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DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY
FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
consolidated financial statements of the Group and have prepared
the consolidated financial statements on a going concern basis in
accordance with statutory requirements and applicable accounting
standards.

The Auditor’s statement of reporting responsibilities and report
on material uncertainty (if any) of the Group are set out in the
“Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages 41 to 45 to this annual
report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL SYSTEMS

Risk is inherent in the Group’s business and the markets in which it
operates. To manage and monitor the various risk factors which the
Company may be exposed, the Board is responsible for establishing
and overseeing the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems on an ongoing basis, and ensuring the review of the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems
has been properly conducted. The terms of reference of the Audit
Committee has included its responsibility for an effective system of
risk management and internal control. The main features of these
systems, which continue to operate, were described in this “Corporate
Governance Report”.

For the year ended 30 June 2020, the Board and the Audit Committee
have delegated the management to conduct and complete a review in
respect of the effectiveness and adequacy of the risk management and
internal control systems of business and operations of the Group. Such
review conducts annually and covers all material controls including
financial, operational and compliance controls, and risk management
functions.

The Group has also engaged internal audit function and no material
control failure or significant areas of concern or fraud which might
affect the interests of the Shareholders were identified during the
reviews.

The risk management and internal control systems can provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement
or loss, and are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of
failure in the process of attaining business objectives. The review of
the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems
for the year has been concluded and based on the results of the annual
review, the Board considers them effective and adequate generally.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary”)
is responsible for ensuring that Board’s policy and procedures are
followed with good information flow. In addition, the Company
Secretary advises the Directors on governance matters and facilitates
induction and professional development of Directors.

The appointment and removal of the Company Secretary is subject
to Board’s approval in accordance with the Bye-laws. All members
of the Board have access to the advice and service of the Company
Secretary. The Company Secretary, Ms. WONG Oi Yee, Polly is an
employee of the Group and has complied with rule 3.29 of the Listing
Rules for the year ended 30 June 2020.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The Company regards communication with its Shareholders and
investors as an important means to enhance the transparency of
the Group and regularly collects views and feedback from them,
to safeguard the interests of its Shareholders and investors. To this
end, the Company communicates with its Shareholders through
various channels, including annual general meetings, special general
meetings, annual reports, notices of general meetings, circulars sent
to Shareholders, announcements, press releases and other corporate
communications available on the website of the Company.

At the annual general meeting on 29 November 2019 (the “AGM”),
the chairman of the Board was unable to attend the AGM due to other
business engagements. Meanwhile, management and external auditor
of the Company together with the chairmen and/or members of the
Board’s committees attended the AGM to answer relevant questions
raised by and understand the views of the Sharcholders thereat. In
respect of the year ended 30 June 2020, an annual general meeting
of the Company will be held on 4 December 2020, at which the
Company will arrange for the Chairmen of the Board and committees
of the Board to attend and answer questions and proposals raised by
the Shareholders thereat.

Shareholders, investors and the media can make enquiries or proposals
to Board of the Company through the following means:

Telephone:  (852) 2881 5221
Fax: (852) 2881 5224
Post: 17th Floor
Eton Tower
8 Hysan Avenue
Causeway Bay
Hong Kong
Website: https://www.dynamic.hk
Email: info@dynamic-hk.com
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (Continued)

By virtue of section 74 of the Companies Act 1981 (Bermuda) (as
amended), the procedures for Shareholders to convene a special
general meeting and to put forward proposals at general meetings are:

1. The Directors, notwithstanding anything in the Bye-laws shall,
on the requisition of member(s) of the Company holding at the
date of the deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of
the paid-up capital of the Company as at the date of the deposit
carries the right of voting at general meetings of the Company,
forthwith proceed duly to convene a special general meeting of
the Company.

2. The requisition must state the purposes of the meeting, and
must be signed by the requisitionists and deposited at the
registered office of the Company at Victoria Place, 5th Floor,
31 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM 10, Bermuda, and may consist
of several documents in like form each signed by one or more
requisitionists.

3. If the Directors do not within twenty-one days from the date of
the deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene a meeting,
the requisitionists, or any of them representing more than one
half of the total voting rights of all of them, may themselves
convene a meeting, but any meeting so convened shall not be
held after the expiration of three months from the said date.

Dividend Policy

The Board has adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”)
which is the policy of the Board for recommending and declaring
dividends to allow the Shareholders to participate in the Company’s
profits, and to maintain adequate cash reserves for business operations,
development and growth of the Group. The Dividend Policy is subject
to review from time to time.

According to the Bye-laws, the Company in general meeting may
declare dividend(s) but no dividend(s) shall exceed the amount
recommended by the Board. And the Board may from time to time
declare such interim dividends to the Shareholders as the Board
thinks appropriate. In proposing any dividend payout, the Board
shall take into account, inter alia, the actual and expected financial
performance of the Group; retained earnings and distributable reserves
of the Company and each of the members of the Group; the level of
the debts to equity ratio, return on equity and the relevant financial
covenants of the Group; any restrictions on payment of dividends that
may be imposed by the lenders of the Group; the expected working
capital requirements and future expansion plans of the Group; general
economic conditions, business cycle of the Group’s business and other
internal or external factors that may have an impact on the business or
financial performance and position of the Group; and any other factors
that the Board deem appropriate.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

During the year ended 30 June 2020, there were no significant changes
in the Company’s constitutional document, namely, the memorandum
of association and Bye-laws which are posted on the website of the
Company.
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The directors (the “Directors”) of Dynamic
Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
present their annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 30 June 2020.
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PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The activities
of its principal subsidiaries are property investment and development.

The principal activities of the principal subsidiaries are set out in note
35 to the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

In the year, the Group’s revenue was derived primarily from rental
business activities conducted in the mainland China. An analysis of
the Group’s performance for the year by operating segment is set out
in note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

A fair review of the Group’s business, including an analysis of the
Group’s performance using financial key performance indicators,
principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group, the important
events (if any) affecting the Group that have occurred since the end
of the financial year and the likely future developments, is set out in
the “Chairman’s Statement” and “Corporate Governance Report” of
this annual report. Details of capital risk management and financial
risk management are set out in notes 32 and 33 to the consolidated
financial statements respectively.

Environmental Policies and Performance

The Group is committed to supporting sustainability of the
environment and endeavours to comply with applicable laws,
rules and regulations regarding environmental protection and to
adopt measurement to achieve efficient use of resources, energy
saving and waste reduction. Further details will be disclosed in the
“Environmental, Social and Governance Report 2019-2020” of the
Company which should be published on the websites of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) and the
Company respectively no later than three months after the publication
of his annual report.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The Group recognises the importance of compliance with applicable
laws, rules and regulations and the risk of non-compliance with such
requirements. To the best of the Directors’ knowledge, information
and belief, during the year ended 30 June 2020 and up to the date
of this annual report, the Group has complied in material respects
with the relevant laws and regulations that have significant impact
on the business and operation of the Group. Further discussions on
the Group’s compliance with laws and regulations are set out in the
“Environmental, Social and Governance Report 2019-2020” and
“Independent Auditor’s Report™.

Relationship with Key Stakeholders

The Group is committed to establishing a close and caring relationship
in a sustainable manner with its stakeholders including its shareholders
and investors, employees, customers, suppliers, regulatory bodies
and community as well as enhancing collaboration with our business
partners. Details are set out in the “Environmental, Social and
Governance Report 2019-2020” and “Corporate Governance Report”.
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the
last five financial years is set out on page 143 of this annual report.
This summary does not form part of the audited financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2020 are set out in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income on page 46.

On 3 January 2020, a final dividend of 4 Hong Kong cents per share
was paid to the Company’s shareholders as a final dividend for the
year ended 30 June 2019.

An interim dividend of 2 Hong Kong cents per share amounting to
HK$4,754,000 was paid to the shareholders of the Company during
the year.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The decrease in the fair value of the investment properties which has
been recognised in profit or loss amounted to HK$168,560,000.

Details of these and other movements in the property, plant and
equipment and investment properties of the Group are set out in notes
13 and 15 to the consolidated financial statements, respectively.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movement in the share capital of the Company during the
year are set out in note 23 to the consolidated financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Subject to the applicable laws, every Director of the Company shall be
entitled to be indemnified by the Company against all actions, costs,
charges, losses, damages and liabilities incurred by him or her in the
course of his or her duties or in relation thereto pursuant to its bye-
laws of the Company. Such provisions were in force during the year
and remained in force as at the date of this report. The Company has
arranged for appropriate insurance cover for Directors’ and officers’
liabilities in respect of legal action against Directors and senior
management of the Company arising out of corporate activities.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to shareholders
were the retained earnings of HK$125,913,000 as at 30 June 2020.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

Executive Directors:

Dr. TAN Lucio C., Chairman
Mr. CHIU Siu Hung, Allan, Chief Executive Officer
Mrs. TAN Carmen K.
Mr. PASCUAL Ramon Sy
Mr. CHUA Joseph Tan
Ms. TAN Vivienne Khao
Mr. TAN Lucio Jr. Khao
(passed away on 11 November 2019)
Mr. TAN Michael Gonzales
(retired on 29 November 2019)

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. CHONG Kim Chan, Kenneth
Dr. FOK Kam Chu, John
Mr. GO Patrick Lim
Mr. NGU Angel
Mr. MA Chiu Tak, Anthony
(appointed on 11 September 2019)
Mr. TAN Kenway Hao
(resigned on 11 September 2019)

In accordance with Bye-Law 99 of the Company’s Bye-Laws, Mr.
CHIU Siu Hung, Allan, Mr. PASCUAL Ramon Sy, Mr. CHUA Joseph
Tan and Mr. CHONG Kim Chan, Kenneth will retire by rotation and

all being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

All Independent Non-executive Directors have been appointed,
subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with the Company’s
Bye-Law 99, for a term of two years and they have confirmed their
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on the Stock Exchange.
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Name of Director

BAEM L (i) Dr. TAN Lucio C. (note i)

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES

As at 30 June 2020, the interests and short positions held by the
Directors or the chief executive(s) of the Company or any of their
associates in the shares of the Company (the “Shares”), shares of any
of its associated corporations and underlying shares and debentures of
the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)) as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10
to the Listing Rules were as follows:

HHOBEE Mr. CHIU Siu Hung, Allan
TAN Carmen K. % 1 (4t —) Mrs. TAN Carmen K (note i)
FIEIEGE () Mr. PASCUAL Ramon Sy (note iv)
TERIE R (HaE) Mr. CHONG Kim Chan, Kenneth (iote iv)
ERREL Dr. FOK Kam Chu, John
GO Patrick Lim JE 2k (f#14) Mr. GO Patrick Lim (note iv)

Wk

= BRI s DA RL N A HE A T 2 L A B
F5 489,321,279 B 0 o R 98 5% 5 B 5B XVEB - BRI
B Ly DA 5 % 2 B 03 5 AT LB TAN Carmen
K. 4+ B F5 45 192,190,000 1B By o % =& &4
ANHZ1HILFERER - B AR 52001 4F 58 I 6E
w13 (1200148 51 30 1) 17 68 52 1B B 52 152,190,000 %
By o JCRE AR GRS AR A 2 S B R O M
FEEE26TH N o

T R B SEXVER > TAN Carmen K. % + 8 81 /5
L 5% i HE 45 BF 73 ¢ A A B R R 1 1 DA RN &
REAS 5€ 2 BUSL N B 1 BT 5 19.89,321,279 1 45 > A
T B K A% T BT A 92,190,000 B 17 © 0 E L F
SEREARNA =T HIEEER > TANZ LR #2001
AEFEBIAT 5 I RE A 12,190,000 1% 4 o

A B B K 3 1 B TAN Carmen K. 42 -1 #E 4 250bt 48
5 B HE 25 19.89,321,279 % 49 14 By ] — HE R A3 <

[l

PO~ BB EAENH S H IR ERE R - BOEE S
A RIHE B TG A IR 2001 4F 1347 68 52 HE 4 Al
2 11,500,000 HE 4 11,000,000 B £ > 1 GO Patrick
Lim 56 A= F AR 98201 132 B HE 51 81 47 0 58 1% HE 50 19
1,000,000 B £ > 5 40 G RS R A FE R 2 S5
T 5 T L R G 2 26 TELAY o

T RHERAS R YA B M G ARG AR S R R TR

ANH=ZH Z AT IO A8 % (R1237,703,681 it
) E G e

SER-AECDFDREEER | BN EEARA A

Notes:

iii.

RO
WERBYUHA ()
Number of issued ordinary Shares held
(long position)

AU
CH#fRA
WAKR  AEES GRS ERAY WEARAY
Total interests
as approximate
Personal Family Other Aggregate percentage of
interests interests interests interests issued share capital
(W#=) (Wit k)
(note iii) (note v)
2,190,000 2,190,000 89,321,279 93,701,279 39.42%
1,000,000 - - 1,000,000 0.42%
2,190,000 2,190,000 80,321,279 93,701,279 39.42%
1,582,000 - - 1,582,000 0.67%
1,000,000 - - 1,000,000 0.42%
558,000 - - 558,000 0.23%
1,000,000 - - 1,000,000 0.42%

Dr. TAN Lucio C. was deemed to be interested in 89,321,279 Shares as founder
of a private discretionary trust. Dr. TAN was deemed to be interested in 2,190,000
Shares held by his spouse, Mrs. TAN Carmen K., as family interests under Part
XV of the SFO. During the year ended 30 June 2020, Dr. TAN exercised options
to subscribe 2,190,000 Shares under the 2001 share option scheme (“2001
Scheme”), details of which are set out in note 26 to the consolidated financial
statements in this annual report.

Mrs. TAN Carmen K. was deemed to be interested in 89,321,279 Shares which her
spouse, Dr. TAN Lucio C., was interested in as founder of a private discretionary
trust, and 2,190,000 Shares held by Dr. TAN Lucio C. as family interests under
Part XV of the SFO. During the year ended 30 June 2020, Mrs. TAN exercised
options to subscribe 2,190,000 Shares under the 2001 Scheme.

The references to the 89,321,279 Shares in which Dr. TAN Lucio C. and Mrs.
TAN Carmen K. were interested in or taken to be interested in relate to the same
block of Shares.

During the year ended 30 June 2020, Mr. PASCUAL Ramon Sy and Mr. CHONG
Kim Chan, Kenneth exercised options to subscribe 1,500,000 Shares and 1,000,000
Shares respectively under the 2001 Scheme whereas Mr. GO Patrick Lim exercised
options to subscribe 1,000,000 Shares under the 2011 share option scheme, details
of which are set out in note 26 to the consolidated financial statements in this
annual report.

The calculation is derived from the aggregate interests as a percentage of the total
number of issued Shares of the Company (i.e. 237,703,681 Shares) as at 30 June
2020.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES (Continued)

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2020, none of the Directors,
the chief executive(s) of the Company or any of their associates had
any interests or short positions in any shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO, or which
were notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers contained in the Listing Rules. Save as disclosed above, none
of the Directors, the chief executive(s) of the Company or any of their
associates had been granted or exercised any rights to subscribe for
any equity or debt securities of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) during the
year ended 30 June 2020.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

Particulars of the share option schemes of the Company are set out in
note 26 to the consolidated financial statements.

The following table discloses the movements of share options of the
Company during the year:

ARHEYH
Number of share options
W RSEE IR LT S £
fiteh tA—H fitk 3y ARZtH
Exercise price At Exercised Lapsed At
Grantees Date of grant per Share 1July2019  during the year  during the year 30 June 2020
b
HKS
W04t 2001 Scheme
£ Directors
St 8 Dr. TAN Lucio C. ZF-—E+AZHHH 25 0ctober 2011 113 200000 (190,000) . .
TAN Camnen K & - Mis. TAN Camen K. “F——EAA A 25 0ctober 2011 113 2,190,000 (2,190,000) = =
REEE Mr. TAN Lucio Jr. Khao “E-—EAH A 25 0ctober 2011 113 1,500,000 (1,500,000) = =
(R=Z—~E+—H  (passed away on 11 November 2019)
+— Rt
KRR Mr. PASCUAL Ramon Sy “E——E+HZ+HH 25 0ctober 2011 113 1,500,000 (1,500,000 - -
PRl Mr. CHONG Kim Chan, Kemneth ~~ —~F——4+H =+ H 25 October 2011 113 1000000 (1,000,000) - -
b Others
e dipka Mr. CHUA Domingo ZE—EFAZFHA 25 0ctober 2011 113 1,800,000 - (1,800,000) -
10,180,000 (8380,000)  (1,800,000) =
W4 2011 Scheme
i Director
GO Patrick Lim & M. GO Patrick Lim ZF-AF=HEH 10 November 2015 3.05 1,000,000 (1,000,000) = =
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued)

1. The share options granted on 25 October 2011 under 2001 Scheme may be
exercised from 25 October 2011 to 24 October 2019 with no vesting period. The
closing price of the Shares on 24 October 2011 (the date immediately before the
date of grant) was HK$1.12.

2. The share options granted on 10 November 2015 under 2011 Scheme may be
exercised from 10 November 2015 to 24 October 2019 with no vesting period. The
closing price of the Shares on 9 November 2015 (the date immediately before the
date of grant) was HK$3.05.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than as described in note 26 to the consolidated financial
statements and under sections of “Directors’ interests and short
positions in Shares” and “Share Option Schemes”, at no time during
the year and as at 30 June 2020 was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors of the
Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in,
or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate, at no time
during the year, subsisted such arrangement(s) as aforesaid and none
of the Directors of the Company, their spouses or children under the
age of 18, had any rights to subscribe for securities of the Company,

or had exercised any such rights during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year and up to the date of this report, the following
Directors of the Company are considered to have interests in
businesses which compete or are likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the businesses of the Group pursuant to the Listing
Rules.

Dr. TAN Lucio C., Mrs. TAN Carmen K., Mr. TAN Lucio Jr. Khao
(passed away on 11 November 2019), Mr. TAN Michael Gonzales
(retired on 29 November 2019), Mr. PASCUAL Ramon Sy, Mr.
CHUA Joseph Tan and Ms. TAN Vivienne Khao held interests and/
or directorship in companies engaged in the businesses of property
investment and development in Hong Kong and/or mainland China in
the year.

As the Board of Directors is independent from the boards of the
said companies, the Group is capable of carrying on its businesses
independently of, and at arm’s length from, the businesses of such

companies.
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i RN A M IETE M AL 453118 4) - &4y Save as disclosed in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements,

) B HAT ] B & 2 7R AR R B AR 4E BE N E] no contract of significance, to which the Company or any of its

MZERELHT S RANA K EFMMEEFE  subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director of the Company had

B3 2 RS AR TE - material interests, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end
of the year or at any time during the year.

wHHAEH MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

AL N > MEMEFT . 87 #E B — 12 A+ No contract concerning the management and administration of the

AR B A B I A SR ST B R AR 4> ¥ whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group to be

IR Z AR - undertaken by a person was entered into or existed during the year.

HHRZMBERL DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

i A fRE 7 B Jm % RO 4E K & R E{E 2 None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming

W B R 4N\ B AT AT BB S W) MEME T annual general meeting has a service contract with the Company or

MART R R A EEHKIE M B EE R any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group within

WA (e BN 2 IR & 5 - one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory

compensation.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES

Mo FEEENA=ZTH > AT EFHEHE  As at 30 June 2020, so far as is known to any Director or chief
BB ANBRANE AARL A KM E M executive(s) of the Company, persons (other than the Directors or
] ﬂ)’ﬂb\ FE 25 B IR & HL0 3R #i s 6 191 5336 the chief executive(s) of the Company) who had interests or short
ey F EM A Z 85 MR N £ (AR/A#]#E  positions in the Shares or underlying Shares of the Company as
H TR ABRIN) WF recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

SR AU

WERRYH ERAY  CRORAR

(##4) (A1) HARAY

Number of Total interests

issued ordinary as approximate

Shares held Total interests percentage of

Capacity (long position) (long position)  issued share capital

Wit=) (Wit )

(note iii) (note iv)

Camation Fvestmens e Camation Investments [, AR Trustee of a private 89,321,279 89,321,079 37.58%

i~ discretionary trust (note i
Zedra (Hong Kong) Limited Zedra (Hong Kong) Limited HAbER (=) Other interests (nofe ii) 89,321,279 89,321,279 37.58%
Vi3 Notes:

— ~  Carnation Investments Inc. &% #% % 1 & M 4 A & i. Carnation Investments Inc. was taken to be interested in 89,321,279 Shares held
HE 15 %€ 2 15 %€ A & i #¥ A Dynamic Development by Dynamic Development Corporation, the entire issued share capital of which

Corporation T 45 17 89,321,279 i #y Z # %5 » 1fi L 4 was held by Carnation Investments Inc. as trustee for a private discretionary trust.

B E. 8 47 B A< £ Carnation Investments Inc. T £ 4 -

T~ Zedra (Hong Kong) Limited % # % i H 2 & ff B 2 ii. Zedra (Hong Kong) Limited was deemed to be interested in 89,321,279 Shares
7] Carnation Investments Inc. DA FA A 2 # {5 56 2 % 5 held indirectly by its wholly-owned subsidiary, Carnation Investments Inc., as
N 13 Y 45 R A 89,321,279 e 0 2 W 4 o trustee of a private discretionary trust.

= i [# Carnation Investments Inc. 5 Zedra (Hong Kong) Limited iii. The references to the 89,321,279 Shares in which Carnation Investments Inc. and
T AR 4 BB 1 B R A RE 45 19.89,321,279 T 3 1 Zedra (Hong Kong) Limited were interested in or taken to be interested in relate to
By —H I - the same block of Shares.

M SEEASRTIR AR AU AN TR SR T v, The calculation is derived from the aggregate interests as a percentage of the total
ANHZ1HZ BT IR 48 B (R1237,703,681 i number of issued Shares of the Company (i.e. 237,703,681 Shares) as at 30 June
) B E O ke e 2020.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES (Continued)

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2020, no other person (other
than the Directors and the chief executive(s) of the Company) had
any interests or short positions in the Shares and underlying Shares
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 336 of the SFO.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

At 30 June 2020, the Group had about 55 employees (including
Directors) in Hong Kong and mainland China at prevailing market
remuneration with employee benefits such as medical insurance,
provident fund schemes and share option schemes.

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is recommended
by the remuneration committee of the Company on the basis of
the respective merits, responsibilities and duties, performance,
qualifications and competence taking into account of comparable
market level, operating results of the Group, corporate goals and
objectives of the Board of Directors and relevant legal requirements,
provisions, guidelines and recommendations of regularly bodies.

The emoluments of the respective Directors of the Company are
recommended by the remuneration committee of the Company, having
regard to the operating results of the Group, corporate goals and
objectives, individual performance and responsibility and comparable
market statistics.

The Company has adopted share option schemes as incentive to
Directors and eligible employees. Details of the share option schemes
are set out in note 26 to the consolidated financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the aggregate revenue attributable to the Group’s
five largest customers were less than 26% of the total revenue of the
Group. The Group’s largest supplier accounted for 18% of the Group’s
purchases and the percentage of purchases attributable to the Group’s
five largest suppliers in aggregate was 49% of the total direct costs of
the Group.

Save as those related party transactions are disclosed in note 31 to
the consolidated financial statements, at no time during the year did a
Director, an associate of a Director or a shareholder of the Company
(which to the knowledge of the Directors of the Company owns more
than 5% of the Company’s share capital) have an interest in any of the
Group’s five largest suppliers or customers.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-Laws, or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company
to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors of the Company, as at the date
of this report, the Company has maintained a sufficient public float
throughout the year ended 30 June 2020.

DISCLOSURE UNDER RULE 13.22 OF THE
LISTING RULES

Details of advances given to an affiliated company as at 30 June 2020
which exceeded 8% under the assets ratio as defined under rule 13.16
of the Listing Rules are as follows:

R R RAE
AH=1H
Hok &8
Amount of
advances at
30 June 2020
T or
HKS$°000

F 38273
(Unaudited)

AR B AT
L E-Y:pig A
Percentage of
equity held

by the Group

Shenzhen Zhen Wah Harbour Enterprises Ltd.
(“Zhen Wah”) (Note)

49% 220,448

Note: The operation period of Zhen Wah expired on 16 January 2014. Thereafter, Zhen

Wabh ceased its operation and is now in the process of liquidation. The advances
to Zhen Wah by the Group have been accounted for as amount due from a joint
venture, details of which are disclosed in note 16 to the consolidated financial
statements. The amount of advances are unsecured and to be repayable after the
next twelve months from the end of the reporting period.

Pursuant to the continuing disclosure requirements under rule 13.22
of the Listing Rules, the statement of financial position of the above
affiliated company, Zhen Wah, and the attributable interests of the
Group in Zhen Wah as at 30 June 2020 are disclosed as follows:

ARLLEH
AV 2
Group’s
attributable
interests
BT T
HK$°000
(R %)
(Unaudited)

WL
Statement of
financial
position

T T
HKS$°000

(REEHEB)
(Unaudited)

e B E Non-current assets 229,935 112,668
B & E Current assets 23,581 11,555
i) B Current liabilities (36,280) 17,777)
I =K Non-current liabilities (220,448) (108,020)
G Net liabilities (3,212) (1,574)
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has complied throughout the year ended 30 June 2020
with the code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code and
Corporate Governance Report as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules save for the derivation of certain code provisions as disclosed
in the “Corporate Governance Report”. Information on the corporate
governance practices adopted by the Company is set out in “Corporate
Governance Report” on pages 18 to 29.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
REPORT

Further details will be disclosed in the “Environment, Social and
Governance Report 2019-2020” of the Company which should be
published on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company
respectively no later than three months after the publication of this
annual report.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Mr. CHIU Siu Hung, Allan
Director and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 29 September 2020
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TO THE MEMBERS OF DYNAMIC HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Dynamic
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 46 to 142, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 30
June 2020, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity
and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at
30 June 2020, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (Continued)
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Valuation of investment properties

BUEY A E

We identified the valuation of investment properties as a
key audit matter due to the significance of the balance to
the consolidated financial statements as a whole, combined
with significant judgements associated with determining
the fair value.

FeAM w8 BE W SEAh (E b B S B R R IE - TG i R 4R
BV RERMG S MBIRE PG &BELR > M
T R P (BRSO K

The investment properties of the Group represented
residential, commercial and carparks portion and office
units located in the People’s Republic of China. As at 30
June 2020, the Group’s investment properties amounted
to HK$1,910,689,000, representing approximately 76% of
the Group’s total assets. During the year, a decrease in fair
value of investment properties of HK$168,560,000 was
recognised in profit or loss.
B4R M B BE W 2E T L 3N R LA B A
T 26 R AT HL I Ry LA R A M o R R T RAERA
~+H AR H 15 W) 36 AR R 1 11,910,689,000
ARG EBEATN o REERN > KEY
ﬁ%/\ﬂzﬁi&&9)#%%?16856090075ElE@ﬁ%%ﬁﬁqﬁiﬁﬂo

The Group’s investment properties were carried at fair
value based on the valuations performed by the independent
qualified professional valuers. Details of the valuation
methodology and key inputs used in the valuations are
disclosed in note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.
The valuations of investment properties were dependent on
certain key inputs that involve the independent qualified
professional valuers’ judgments, including capitalisation
rates and market unit rents of individual units.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Our procedures in relation to the valuation of investment
properties included:

A E YA BRIBATHEF R

. Evaluating the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of the independent qualified professional
valuers;

o RPN LG E K EE A (EAT R S RERRE K - BB
JI M BAE

. Understanding the independent qualified professional
valuers’ valuation methodology, the performance
of the property markets and key inputs used in the
valuations;

o TR S AR SN (L I Al (B IRF B 6
BAG(E D73~ PTG R R B LT SR+
BHAITE 5

. Evaluating the reasonableness of the methodology
applied in the valuation by comparing with industry
norms; and

o BELAT EAEE LU > Sl A (4 R TE R A O
%Zmﬂﬁ,&

. Assessing the reasonableness of key inputs used

in the valuations by comparing to relevant market
information on unit sales rate, unit rents achieved
and capitalisation rates adopted in other comparable
properties in the neighbourhood on a sample basis.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)
BUZYENIRSE (#)

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information included
in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance

conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.

DYNAMIC HOLDINGS LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2019-2020




44

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'’S REPORT (continued)
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)
BUZYENIRSE (#)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves

fair presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible

for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in

internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats

or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters
in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent
auditor’s report is Keung To Wai, David.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

29 September 2020
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
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For the year ended 30 June 2020
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Revenue
Direct costs

Gross profit

Other income, gains or losses

(Decrease) increase in fair value of
investment properties

Increase in fair value of properties
held for sale upon transfer to
investment properties

Administrative expenses

Selling expenses

Finance costs

Share of loss of a joint venture

(Loss) profit before taxation
Income tax credit

(Loss) profit for the year

Other comprehensive expense for
the year
Item that will not be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss:
Exchange differences on translation
to presentation currency

Total comprehensive expense
for the year

(Loss) profit for the year
attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive (expense)
income attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

(Loss) earnings per share
(Hong Kong cents)
Basic

Diluted

CEAE R REMER | RN EEARA A

Wik CESRE ST
NOTES 2020 2019
BT BT o
HKS$°000 HKS$000
5 92,054 106,206
(26,467) (25,407)
65,587 80,799
6 16,180 15,894
15
(168,560) 3,560
17
88,228 -
(37,053) (43,730)
(394) (923)
7 (3,469) (4,325)
(10,940) (10,140)
8 (50,421) 41,135
10 23,860 8,445
(26,561) 49,580
(78,898) (91,249)
(105,459) (41,669)
(28,413) 48,730
1,852 850
(26,561) 49,580
(105,884) (40,919)
425 (750)
(105,459) (41,669)
12
(12.0) 215
(11.9) 20.5




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
i B B BS iR N R

REZZRENA=TR
At 30 June 2020

Mt Zt CR R —E—JLE
NOTES 2020 2019
BT I W or
HKS$’000 HKS$°000
ERTLUR: ¢ Non-current Assets
LE S E Y& ] Property, plant and equipment 13 1,980 2,431
i I REE Right-of-use assets 14 1,067 -
&Y E Investment properties 15 1,910,689 2,051,020
EEERER Interest in a joint venture 16 78,918 93,605
B ZERK Amount due from a joint venture 16 220,448 215,712
HoAth 5 2 Other asset 1,313 1,364
2,214,415 2,364,132
it W) ¥ Current Assets
REWE Properties held for sale 17 - 15,441
A FOME i IR 3K Loan receivables 18 - =
B 5 Je A 8 iR 3K K Trade and other receivables and 19(i)
TE 55 3 prepayments 24,385 30,594
IF 12 1 1 R K Amount due from a non-controlling  79(ii)
shareholder 837 301
SRAT I A7 K Pledged bank deposits 30 4,235 13,065
AT E W AR Fixed bank deposits 19(iii) 145,068 157,679
SRATAS B R B4 Bank balances and cash 19(iv) 134,292 102,835
308,817 319,915
bk RER Current Liabilities
B Gy B HoAh JBE AT iR Trade and other payables 20 46,401 43,778
HE F 1R Lease liabilities 21 1,131 .
JE A5} B T Tax payable 88,395 91,022
SRATHE K — Bank loan — 22
IR — N due within one year 3,840 107,759
139,767 242,559
i B A Net Current Assets 169,050 77,356
i B8 U O T £ 4 Total Assets less Current Liabilities 2,383,465 2,441,488
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)
e MR T e

R ZEANN=TH
At 30 June 2020

“FOE F AR
2020 2019
BT W T
HKS$’000 HKS$°000
7S K il Capital and Reserves
B A Share capital 23 237,704 228,324
ot Reserves 1,750,325 1,867,332
ENASTE PN X Equity attributable to owners of
WE 2% the Company 1,988,029 2,095,656
I P L HE 2% Non-controlling interests 37,287 36,862
B 2% Total Equity 2,025,316 2,132,518
I 3 ) £ 4% Non-current Liabilities
SRATE N — Bank loan — 22
N — TR R due after one year 95,667 =
% FE B TE B Deferred tax liabilities 24 253,404 293,795
Cl R I Long-term rental deposits received 9,078 15,175
358,149 308,970
2,383,465 2,441,488

R R 1L HZ A MBIRIEC i ~%F  The consolidated financial statements on pages 46 to 142 were
CERFENA T M EF G AL KRR approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 29

FIED > Sl NAIEFHAREE September 2020 and are signed on its behalf by:
#HFE E#H Mr. CHIU Siu Hung, Allan ~ Mr. CHONG Kim Chan, Kenneth
iR E 38 ek Director Director
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

= /A fds 7=
ROl D™

AW A

s

BRERRENA =1 HIREE
For the year ended 30 June 2020

B) &

AR A AR
Attributable to owners of the Company
gy 1] AR FER
Bk RBRE ARG Bl ERG Bl JCmBE Bl RERA it [ it
Capital Share Non-
Share Share Special  redemption  Translation option Other  Statutory  Refained controlling
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits  Sub-total interests Total
BEFT  EETT BETT BETT BEFT 7 BEFT  EEFT ERTT EEFL BRTT
HKS000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS000 HKS000 § HKS 000
) Witz) (W)
(Notea) (Note b) (Notec)
RZZ-NELA—-A At July 2018 25,174 429,673 S5018 1,644 261,591 6,303 92451 9,529 1,067,615 2,148,998 8186 187,184
R Profit for the year - - - - - - - - 48730 48730 850 49,580
EREEZ BT Exchange differences
£ arising on translation - - - - (89,049) - - - - (89,649) (1,600) (91.249)
WA () A E  Total comprehensive (expense)
income for the year - - - - (89,649) - - - 48730 (40919) (750) (41,609)
frifARiE R Issue of shares upon exercise
#f of share options 3150 1591 - - - (1,181) - - - 3,560 - 3,560
AR Lapse of share options - - - - - (373) - - 375 - - -
LRl Transfer to other reserve - - - - - - - 14 (144) - - -
AR RIRE Dividends recognised
(Wi#11E) as distrbution (note 11) = = = = = = = - (15983)  (1598) - (159®)
MREF EERAE Dividends to non-controlling
i35} interests - - - - - - - - - - (574) (574)
BEF-NERAZHH  At30June 2019 2834 431,264 55018 1,644 171942 4147 92451 9,673 1,100593 2,095,656 36802 2132518
FE (B8 A (Loss) profit for the year = = = = = = = = (28413 (8413) 1852 (26561
BAEELHAEE Exchange differences
arising on translation - - - - (17471) - - - - (17471) (14 (78898)
R (i) Total comprehensive (expense)
A% income for the year - - - - (17471) - - - (28413)  (105.884) 45 (105459)
frEAREZ R Issue of shares upon exercise
B of share options 9380 711 - - - ) - - -5y -5
AR Lapse of share options - - - - = (675) - - 675 - - -
HREHMRE Transfer o other reserve - = = = = = = 25 (205) - - -
BARMRIRE Dividends recognised as
(#5118 distibution (noe 11) - - - - - - - S (420) -4
BREZZZERAZFH At30 June 2020 237,704 438475 55018 1,644 94471 - 92451 9878 1,038,388 198,029 87 2005316
Vigza Notes:
() AR [ 2 % B B 9 A ) 2 Wi 48 [ o 4 T i I 2 (a) The special reserve of the Group arose from the difference between the aggregate
[t a8 N W) R 2 A~ B s — R A R amount of the then share capital, share premium, general reserve and retained
BA s M| 2 48 B A 2 W) R A B S TE BT B8 AT 22 IR profits of the subsidiaries acquired, and the nominal amount of the Company’s
T E M2 EHEE - shares issued for the acquisition in relation to a previous group reorganisation.
(Z) AEEZ HAbREEITHEER G AN A IR (b) The other reserve of the Group represents deemed contributions from equity
ANZHR ABEE _ZENESA=TH IEEE holders of the Company which arose from the difference between the fair value
A B OAT S RE AR 2 AN B (R B A s i B R of consideration paid and payable and the net fair value of the identifiable assets,
BT T AT RIS E - A R A E liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired through acquisition of the subsidiaries
ZEATHEEMZ R EAL - during the year ended 30 June 2006.
() AR5 B s ) 4 25 v 2 Gl A 2 32008 R A A 2 =) (c) The statutory reserve transferred from retained profits are required by relevant

e AR R (T o B ) i B 4 W) 2 R A
B RO LT RLE o BRI AR G AR
50% » e Bk E B S R TE 9 4 B R 15 D A B4R
T A 19 10% ©

People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) laws and regulations applicable to the
Company’s PRC subsidiary. The amount should not be less than 10% of the profit
after tax as recorded in the statutory financial statements unless the aggregate
amount exceeds 50% of the registered capital.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

==\ = —]
REIREMER
BRERRENA =1 HIREE
For the year ended 30 June 2020

SRR —E—-F
2020 2019
BT W T
HKS$’000 HKS$°000
BREXY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
R BEHT (548 T A1) (Loss) profit before taxation (50,421) 41,135
O Adjustments for:
FlLE WA Interest income (17,121) (18,585)
&y 2N T E D Decrease (increase) in fair value of
(3 m) investment properties 168,560 (3,560)
HEYEHMBEEREYHE  Increase in fair value of investment properties
15 1 281 (8 1 upon transfer from properties held for sale (88,228) -
M B Rkl Z 4T Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment 530 417
R EE e Depreciation of right-of-use assets 2,324 =
HE ¥ - #%s M Loss on disposals/write off of property,
5% A s 18 plant and equipment 1 61
il A Finance costs 3,469 4325
GEAEZ RS Share of loss of a joint venture 10,940 10,140
oK S 3 2 TE 5 s 48 v AR Unrealised exchange loss, net 1,664 4,174
A R 2 Operating cash flows before movements in
ST - TRy working capital 31,718 38,107
B 5y B oAt JE i B R K Decrease in trade and other receivables and
TE AT prepayments 5,287 6,080
B 5 B HoAh EAT R EK (3 2)  (Decrease) increase in trade and other payables
Hm (1,216) 177
LYER s Cash generated from operations 35,789 44,364
LA A [ i 15 Bk PRC Income Tax paid (5,540) (7,133)

KARBEH 2B 4 BB NET CASH FROM OPERATING

ACTIVITIES 30,249 37,231

BB INVESTING ACTIVITIES

SE P, Interest received 4,350 4,339
A SRAT E A7 K Placement of fixed bank deposits (1,997) (839)
WEYE -~ B Sk Purchase of property, plant and equipment (166) (1,123)
A [\ SR AT 2 A A7 2K Withdrawal of fixed bank deposits 8,864 145
A 5] SR AT K H A7 2K Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits 8,423 16,188
HABRGEHZ NET CASH FROM INVESTING

BLe W H ACTIVITIES 19,474 18,710
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ERZBERBENH

PLSRAT &5 % I B & %R

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)
SOWREMER(E)

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds on issue of shares upon exercise of
share options

New bank loan raised

Repayment of bank loan

Dividends paid

Interest paid

Repayment of lease liabilities

Dividends paid to a non-controlling shareholder

NET CASH USED IN FINANCING
ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR

EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE
RATE CHANGE

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
THE END OF THE YEAR,
represented by bank balances and cash

REZZZRENA = H L4
For the year ended 30 June 2020

SRORE
2020

W T
HK$°000

—E

2019
BWT T
HKS$°000

12,519 3,560
99,505 -
(108,000) (27,761)
(14,262) (15,983)
(3,321) (4,081)
(2,230) -
(547) -
(16,336) (44,265)
33,387 11,676
102,835 94,071
(1,930) (2,912)
134,292 102,835
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

#n © B 15 BR 1A

1 By 5%

BE_ZFZRAENA =S HILEE
For the year ended 30 June 2020

1HI.

SE-NESFCREEER |

1B ik

ENEEMARS A (TARAF ) TI1E A 5
EREM RO 2 Z M RARA R > B
TEFEH S ARAF (TR
TR T o A Gk M A R R
S i B O S R A R AR T T F) R
EEER -

AT — W BCE RN R - B A
Al 2 BEH AR BOR M GRS 35 THIA -

ArdlzhaEH A ANRKETCAR
Wl) o AN AR ([FIF ) FEAL A
i e B T R s e ([ W D) B ROl
ZEINEW > ARG M REL B E
5 o

7 A7 B 1y K 5 R 22 B

2019547 B 568 iR 55 75 (1 39 200 5 R v 7% 1)
%%u&%ﬁm%%%muﬁﬁz@%
it Jon A A 7% R o 3B A BR AR > R 2R BR BT
%iTEE%%’iﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%%

2!—‘"7&%!%%"7 SR AR )
*@Mﬁﬁ%%%m HEMW

iﬁT*%M%ﬁm’Ii%ﬁ%%ﬁ

BN A A B TR o BRI AR

B 755 1R L N 2R B2 B R R T T A 5 R
B4 RO A G A f5 3 1 D ) AL S 4R
EL 4 B S 7T A5 BB i A D

J1 4 A FR 2 A

1A.

GENERAL

Dynamic Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated
in Bermuda as an exempted company with limited liability and
its shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The address of the
registered office and principal place of business of the Company
are disclosed in the section headed “Corporate and Investor
Information” in the annual report.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. Details of
the principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note
35.

The Company’s functional currency is Renminbi (“RMB”). The
consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars (“HKS$”) as the directors of the Company (“Directors”)
consider that Hong Kong dollar is the most appropriate presentation
currency in view of the Company’s place of listing.

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS AND TRANSACTIONS
IN THE CURRENT YEAR

The outbreak of 2019 Novel Coronavirus (“COVID-19) and the
subsequent quarantine measures as well as the travel restrictions
imposed by many countries have had negative impacts to the global
economy, business environment and directly and indirectly affect
the operations of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”). The Chinese government and
Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region has
announced some financial measures and supports for corporates to
overcome the negative impact arising from the pandemic. As such,
the financial positions and performance of the Group were affected
in different aspects, including reduction in revenue due to the Group
having provided rent concessions to the tenants during the close-
down period.



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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it B 5 16 5% T S A A E M AL B /Y
ERFMEHNETLEHE -

x © 81 ¥ B 18 BiY 5E (a)

BRE R RENAZTHILEE
For the year ended 30 June 2020

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily

effective for the current year

The Group has applied the following new and amendments to

HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public

Accountants (“HKICPA”) for the first time in the current year:

HKFRS 16 Leases

HK(FRIC) — Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments

Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation

Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlement

Long-term Interests in Associates
and Joint Ventures

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle

Amendments to HKFRS 9
Amendments to HKAS 19
Amendments to HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRSs

Except as described below, the application of the new and
amendments to HKFRSs in the current period has had no material
impact on the Group’s financial positions and performance for the
current and prior periods and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.

HKFRS 16 “Leases”

The Group has applied HKFRS 16 for the first time in the current
year. HKFRS 16 superseded HKAS 17 “Leases” (“HKAS 17”), and
the related interpretations.

Definition of a lease

The Group has elected the practical expedient to apply HKFRS 16 to
contracts that were previously identified as leases applying HKAS
17 and HK(IFRIC) — Int 4 “Determining whether an Arrangement
contains a Lease” and not apply this standard to contracts that were
not previously identified as containing a lease. Therefore, the Group
has not reassessed contracts which already existed prior to the date
of initial application.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after 1 July 2019,
the Group applies the definition of a lease in accordance with the
requirements set out in HKFRS 16 in assessing whether a contract
contains a lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
ORI M ST (&)

BREZZZREENA = H L4 E
For the year ended 30 June 2020
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (Continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (Continued)
As a lessee

The Group has applied HKFRS 16 retrospectively with the
cumulative effect recognised at the date of initial application, 1 July
2019.

As at 1 July 2019, the Group recognised additional lease liabilities
and right-of-use assets at amounts equal to the related lease
liabilities by applying HKFRS 16.C8(b)(ii) transition. Any
difference at the date of initial application is recognised in the
opening retained profits and comparative information has not been
restated.

When applying the modified retrospective approach under HKFRS
16 at transition, the Group applied the practical expedient to leases
previously classified as operating leases under HKAS 17, on lease-
by-lease basis, to the extent relevant to the respective lease contract
that excluded initial direct costs from measuring the right-of-use
assets at the date of initial application.



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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REZZZRENA = H L4
For the year ended 30 June 2020

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (Continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (Continued)

1ER AR (#)

As a lessee (Continued)

When recognising the lease liabilities for leases previously
BTN > AR C MR ERER B
R B G2 R B A G A ROR) R > R
O FH R0 RE - 2 0 A ROR R 7 4R
51% °

classified as operating leases, the Group has applied incremental
borrowing rates of the relevant group entities at the date of initial
application. The weighted average lessee’s incremental borrowing
rate applied is 5.1% per annum.

AT L
+tH—H
At 1 July

2019
BT T
HKS$000

BoF A=A

Operating lease commitments disclosed

B B 75 1 A8 FH R I as at 30 June 2019 3,898
W FER R — R Less: Recognition exemption — short term leases (287)
W ZE—IUVEASNH = HREST Operating lease commitments before discounting

Al B 2 588 L BRI as at 30 June 2019 3,611
LB A5 42 AH TR 3 B R Lease liabilities discounted at relevant incremental

HEAT G B borrowing rates 3,428
RoFE—JLEEH—HER Lease liabilities relating to operating leases recognised

v P 5  h E HI 5 1695 I upon application of HKFRS 16 at 1 July 2019

RS 2 KEE A 2 AR A R 3,428
S HTan R Analysed as

T Current 2,367

IF Ui B Non-current 1,061

3,428
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

= © U 15 B8R 18 Bt 5T (@)

BREZRSREANN ST HIREE
For the year ended 30 June 2020

2. HE PRV A O M A e ([
I A Y ) BT AR (4

A A BE o A 2 02 W T A A
0 R AW A (4H)
G ERF 1656 R (4)
fERARIE ()

BoE-LEEA BB GRS
FEMRMEW T

JRE R 7 v A 5 i v Y6 U5 16 B8 By

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (Continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (Continued)
As a lessee (Continued)

The carrying amount of right-of-use assets for own use as at 1 July
2019 comprises the following:

f FH M O
Right-of-use

assets
BT
HK3$’000

Right-of-use assets relating to operating leases

MERR 2 SE M E 2 i AREE recognised upon application of HKFRS 16 3,428
R By class:
GENERY/ES Leased properties 3,428
1F 2% i f 2 As a lessor

AR 75 18 U T 5 3 5916 9 008 O A
S AR SRR A AL - AL
W AT AE T R - A 9 UCRE R
Bt o e L s S 4 O S 16 B
LB TR ST T A IR
AT T -

() 8 BB A o B 5 i o5 Y B 25 16 R
R - A B B A A TECN A B A R B
7 2 ERT LA A B UOE  H R B
h 2 B > LA BUA B R
TNFEELA - HEETZ I AA
W o RZTHE B AL B —F N
B H — B 2 AR A IR ORI
B o IR i E—JUELEH —
HAR A BB HNRMERT %
R A R AR A A R A
TR HE R Ay A o

CEAE R REMER | RN EEARA A

In accordance with the transitional provisions in HKFRS 16, the
Group is not required to make any adjustment on transition for
leases in which the Group is a lessor but account for these leases in
accordance with HKFRS 16 from the date of initial application and
comparative information has not been restated.

(a)  Upon application of HKFRS 16, new lease contracts entered
into but commence after the date of initial application relating
to the same underlying assets under existing lease contracts
are accounted as if the existing leases are modified as at 1
July 2019. The application has had no impact on the Group’s
consolidated statement of financial position at 1 July 2019.
However, effective on 1 July 2019, lease payments relating
to the revised lease term after modification are recognised as
income on straight-line basis over the extended lease term.



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
RO RIBM T (&)

REZZZRENA = H L4
For the year ended 30 June 2020

ME Wl Hs M %80 ([ 2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
B MR ) BT AR () TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (Continued)

7 A7 JE Sl A B 2 0 AT A U A A New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily

B R Al T AN (4F) effective for the current year (Continued)

T BRAER B 165 [RIE ] (4 HKFRS 16 “Leases” (Continued)

1ERARFE (4F) As a lessor (Continued)

() M_FE—NFLH— B4R &4 (b)  Effective on 1 July 2019, the Group has applied HKFRS
L ) A Vi T 5 A Y L) 2R 15 9% 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers” to allocate
[RBEHEFGHZBA GG #HRE consideration in the contract to each lease components. The
43T 2 45 A0 B AL LR 43 o 4 e B HE change in allocation basis has had no material impact on the
Z SET RS I AR B 2 AR B consolidated financial statements of the Group for the current
R TH I S E K R o period.

W oE—HELHA —H > R&EE R The following adjustments were made to the amounts
AR P AR TE v & i RR 2 R AR s A recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position
TR - RZEFHMENIHAAE at 1 July 2019. Line items that were not affected by the
TN o changes have not been included.
W
“RJus
tH—H
L R YRR
—Z—hAE e 55 16 9%
AH=4H HTF
B 5 i M i L ¥ M i F
Carrying Carrying
amounts amounts
previously under
reported at HKFRS 16 at
30 June 2019 Adjustments 1 July 2019
T T & W T T # T T
HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$°000
IE B & Non-current Assets
ff A Right-of-use assets - 3,428 3,428
B FfR Current Liabilities
LT A i Lease liabilities - (2,367) (2,367)
i By B Non-current Liabilities
LT A i Lease liabilities - (1,061) (1,061)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and amendments

to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

HKFRS 17
Amendment to HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 16

Amendments to HKAS 37

Amendments to HKFRS 9,

HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKFRSs

Insurance Contracts!

COVID-19-Related Rent
Concessions®

Definition of a Business?

Reference to Conceptual
Frameworks

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current”

Definition of Material*

Property, Plant and
Equipment — Proceeds before
Intended Use’

Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract®

Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform?*

Annual Improvements to HKFRS
2018-2020°

i Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021

2 Effective for business combinations and asset acquisitions for which

the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first annual

period beginning on or after 1 January 2020

E Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020

§ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022

© Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 June 2020

7 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023
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BRE R RENAZTHILEE
For the year ended 30 June 2020

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective
(Continued)

In addition to the above new and amendments to HKFRSs, a revised
Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting was issued in 2018.
Its consequential amendments, the Amendments to References to the
Conceptual Framework in HKFRS Standards, will be effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020.

Except for the new and amendments to HKFRSs mentioned below,
the Directors anticipate that the application of all other new and
amendments to HKFRSs will have no material impact on the
consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable future.

Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting 2018 (the
“New Framework”) and the Amendments to References to the
Conceptual Framework in HKFRS Standards

The New Framework:
. reintroduces the terms stewardship and prudence;

. introduces a new asset definition that focuses on rights and
a new liability definition that is likely to be broader than the
definition it replaces, but does not change the distinction
between a liability and an equity instrument;

. discusses historical cost and current value measures, and
provides additional guidance on how to select a measurement
basis for a particular asset or liability;

. states that the primary measure of financial performance is
profit or loss, and that only in exceptional circumstances
other comprehensive income will be used and only for
income or expenses that arise from a change in the current
value of an asset or liability; and

. discusses uncertainty, derecognition, unit of account, the
reporting entity and combined financial statements.

Consequential amendments have been made so that references
in certain HKFRSs have been updated to the New Framework,
whilst some HKFRSs are still referred to the previous versions of
the framework. These amendments are effective for the Group’s
annual period beginning on or after 1 July 2020. Other than
specific standards which still refer to the previous versions of the
framework, the Group will rely on the New Framework on its
effective date in determining the accounting policies especially for
transactions, events or conditions that are not otherwise dealt with
under the accounting standards.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for investment properties that are
measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as
explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods or services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability,
the Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or
liability if market participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such a basis,
except for share-based payment transactions that are within the
scope of HKFRS 2 “Share-based Payment”, leasing transactions that
are accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 16 (since 1 July 2019)
or HKAS 17 (before application of HKFRS 16), and measurements
that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such
as net realisable value in HKAS 2 “Inventories” or value in use in
HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets”.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account
a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

For investment properties which are transacted at fair value and
a valuation technique that unobservable inputs is to be used to
measure fair value in subsequent periods, the valuation technique
is calibrated so that the results of the valuation technique equals the
transaction price.
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BRE R RENAZTHILEE
For the year ended 30 June 2020

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date;

. Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included
within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly or indirectly; and

. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company
and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved where the Company:

. has power over the investee;

. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

. has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Company reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or
more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a
subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income from the date the Group gains control until the date when
the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed
to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests
even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with those
used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented separately
from the Group’s equity therein, which represent present ownership
interests entitling their holders to a proportionate share of net assets
of the relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.

Interest in a joint venture

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have
joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the
joint arrangement. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing
of control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions
about the relevant activities require unanimous consent of the
parties sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of a joint venture are
incorporated in the consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting. The financial statements of
joint ventures used for equity accounting purposes are prepared
using uniform accounting policies as those of the Group for like
transactions and events in similar circumstances. Under the equity
method, an investment in a joint venture is initially recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the profit or loss and
other comprehensive income of the joint venture. Changes in
net assets of the joint venture other than profit or loss and other
comprehensive income are not accounted for unless such changes
resulted in changes in ownership interest held by the Group. When
the Group’s share of losses of a joint venture equals or exceeds its
interest in that joint venture, the Group discontinues recognising its
share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the
extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations
or made payments on behalf of that joint venture.

An investment in a joint venture is accounted for using the equity
method from the date on which the investee becomes a joint
venture. On acquisition of the investment in a joint venture, any
excess of the cost of the investment over the Group’s share of the
net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee
is recognised as goodwill, which is included within the carrying
amount of the investment. Any excess of the Group’s share of the
net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost
of the investment, after reassessment, is recognised immediately in
profit or loss in the period in which the investment is acquired.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Interest in a joint venture (Continued)

The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence that the
interest in a joint venture may be impaired. When any objective
evidence exists, the entire carrying amount of the investment
(including goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance with
HKAS 36 as a single asset by comparing its recoverable amount
(higher of value in use and fair value less costs to sell) with its
carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised is not allocated
to any asset, including goodwill, that forms part of the carrying
amount of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss
is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that the
recoverable amount of the investment subsequently increases.

The Group discontinues the use of the equity method from the
date when the investment ceases to be a joint venture, or when the
investment (or a portion thereof) is classified as held for sale.

When a group entity transacts with a joint venture of the Group,
profits or losses resulting from the transactions with the joint
venture are recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements only to the extent of interests in the joint venture that are
not related to the Group.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for
capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including any
directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are measured at their fair values, adjusted to
exclude any prepaid or accrued operating lease income. Gains or
losses arising from changes in fair value of investment properties
are included in profit or loss for the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when
the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and
no future economic benefits are expected from its disposal. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition of the property (calculated as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss in the period in
which the item is derecognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investment properties (Continued)

The Group transfers a property from inventories to investment
property when there is a change in use to hold the property to earn
rentals or/and for capital appreciation rather than for sale in the
ordinary cover of business, which is evidenced by the inception of
an operating lease to another party. Any difference between the fair
value of property at the date of transfer and its previous carrying
amount is recognised in profit or loss.

Leases

Definition of a lease (upon application of HKFRS 16 in
accordance with transitions in note 2)

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right
to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the date of initial
application, the Group assesses whether a contract is or contains
a lease based on the definition under HKFRS 16 at inception,
modification date or acquisition date, as appropriate. Such contract
will not be reassessed unless the terms and conditions of the
contract are subsequently changed.

The Group as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS 16 in
accordance with transitions in note 2)

Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to
leases of carparks portions that have a lease term of twelve months
or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase
option. Lease payments on short-term leases are recognised as
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

. the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability;

. any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date, less any lease incentives received;
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS 16 in
accordance with transitions in note 2) (Continued)

Right-of-use assets (Continued)

. any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

. an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in
dismantling and removing the underlying assets, restoring the
site on which it is located or restoring the underlying asset
to the condition required by the terms and conditions of the
lease.

Except for those that are classified as investment properties and
measured under fair value model, right-of-use assets are measured
at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses,
and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets that do not meet the
definition of investment property or inventory as a separate line item
on the consolidated statement of financial position. Right-of-use
assets that meet the definition of investment property and inventory
are presented within “investment properties” and “properties held
for sales” respectively.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under HKFRS 9
“Financial Instruments” (“HKFRS 9”) and initially measured at fair
value. Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are considered
as additional lease payments and included in the cost of right-of-use
assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises and
measures the lease liability at the present value of lease payments
that are unpaid at that date. In calculating the present value of lease
payments, the Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at the
lease commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is
not readily determinable.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS 16 in
accordance with transitions in note 2) (Continued)

Lease liabilities (Continued)

The lease payments include:

. fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less
any lease incentives receivable;

. variable lease payments that depend on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date;

. amounts expected to be payable by the Group under residual
value guarantees;

. the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise the option; and

. payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the lease
term reflects the Group exercising an option to terminate the
lease.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted by
interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a corresponding
adjustment to the related right-of-use assets) when the lease term
has changed in which case the related lease liability is remeasured
by discounting the revised lease payments using a revised discount
rate at the date of reassessment.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item on the
consolidated statement of financial position.
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For the year ended 30 June 2020

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS 16 in
accordance with transitions in note 2) (Continued)

Lease modifications

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a separate lease if:

. the modification increases the scope of the lease by adding
the right to use one or more underlying assets; and

. the consideration for the leases increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the increase in
scope and any appropriate adjustments to that stand-alone
price to reflect the circumstances of the particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a separate lease,
the Group remeasures the lease liability based on the lease term of
the modified lease by discounting the revised lease payments using
a revised discount rate at the effective date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease liabilities by
making corresponding adjustments to the relevant right-of-use
asset. When the modified contract contains a lease component and
one or more additional lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the modified contract to each lease component on
the basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease component.

The Group as a lessee (prior to 1 July 2019)

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Operating lease payments, including the cost of acquiring land held
under operating leases, are recognised as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease term. Contingent rentals arising under
operating leases are recognised as an expense in the period in which
they are incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessor

Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified as finance
or operating leases. Whenever the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an
underlying asset to the lessee, the contract is classified as a finance
lease. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or loss
on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial
direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease
are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset, and such costs
are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease
term except for investment properties measured under fair value
model. Upon application of HKFRS 16 on 1 July 2019, variable
lease payments for operating leases that depend on an index or a
rate are estimated and included in the total lease payments to be
recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Variable
lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are
recognised as income when they arise.

Rental income which are derived from the Group’s ordinary course
of business are presented as revenue.

The Group as a lessor (upon application of HKFRS 16 in
accordance with transitions in note 2)

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits received are accounted for under HKFRS
9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair value at
initial recognition are considered as additional lease payments from
lessees.

Lease modification

The Group accounts for a modification to an operating lease as a
new lease from the effective date of the modification, considering
any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to the original lease
as part of the lease payments for the new lease.
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BRE R RENAZTHILEE
For the year ended 30 June 2020

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended
use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets until such time
as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit and loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Properties held for sale

Properties held for sale are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost comprises the property interest in leasehold
land and development costs including attributable borrowing costs
capitalised.

Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price less all
estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or services
underlying the particular performance obligation is transferred to
the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or a bundle
of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of distinct goods or
services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over time
by reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction of the
relevant performance obligation if one of the following criteria is
met:

. the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the Group
performs;

. the Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset that the

customer controls as the Group performs; or

. the Group’s performance does not create an asset with an
alternative use to the Group and the Group has an enforceable
right to payment for performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

Over time revenue recognition: measurement of progress towards
complete satisfaction of a performance obligation

Output method

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a performance
obligation is measured based on output method, which is to
recognise revenue on the basis of direct measurements of the value
of the goods or services transferred to the customer to date relative
to the remaining goods or services promised under the contract, that
best depict the Group’s performance in transferring control of goods
or services.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable
and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from the profit/loss before taxation because of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s current tax
is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax base used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets
are generally recognised for all deductible temporary difference to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised
if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of other assets
and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit
nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and interest
in a joint venture, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments and interests are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable
profits against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable
future.



3.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

FEFHHBOR (4

B (A7)

8 3 T TH 7 2 MR T TS R B R R
frtmes o AT LU RE 0 - B 2SR
40 B R B v ) T 3 4 S B O T T
o fml 5 1k

BB EE R ABRER 2RI RC
WM B b A 2 B AR (B %) 1%
T R R A AR B R 2
Bl ARG o

18 3 B TA B 7 I A 2 R R AR 4R
B R OR - T I o] R
R BN IR E 2 BB R R -

Mt A FEEAF B R EYEL
EEBIA A HBUEEBHEE M 5 - %
S W) S 2 B T (L B M O R 4R Rl
W el > i A B R HfE B o B 5 A A
i o il 5% BCE YA T IR WARYE —
TH B TE Wi A IR R R 22 8 o B AR
W) 3 v 2 48 R A A R i 2 SEH AR
Fifi > A% AR % C WCHE B o i o (R ST B
HfE® - % 45 W) 36 2 R S B TH A (R IR
Tl JH A E MR D A R R AR 12
SR T 4GB )T — B R R (RS
T el 5% 45 W 3 2 7 )

s R AR A T o A B A
BERMANHEER S EEBIHEN S > A%
B 5T R RE T TR S T B R
PR A A A

s R R B A T E A AR e ) A B A
G E o A5 A3 A BT A A
BB AR A o ah e R AR 129 B E o
B T W20 R R e o TE ) 2D R
I e B AR AHL A T4 fe R RE B AL AL
AH B B T IR 2 B S HERR o

x © 81 ¥ B 18 BiY 5E (a)

BRE R RENAZTHILEE
For the year ended 30 June 2020

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all
or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or
the asset is realised, based on the tax rates (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle
the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model, the carrying
amounts of such properties are presumed to be recovered entirely
through sale, unless the presumption is rebutted. The presumption
is rebutted when the investment property is depreciable and is held
within a business model whose objective is to consume substantially
all of the economic benefits embodied in the investment property
over time, rather than through sale. If the presumption is rebutted,
deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax assets for such investment
properties are measured in accordance with the above general
principles set out in HKAS 12 “Income Taxes” (i.e. based on the
expected manner as to how the properties will be recovered).

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing transactions
in which the Group recognises the right-of-use assets and the
related lease liabilities, the Group first determines whether the tax
deductions are attributable to the right-of-use assets or the lease
liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are attributable
to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS 12 requirements
to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities separately. Temporary
differences relating to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities are
not recognised at initial recognition and over the lease terms due to
application of the initial recognition exemption.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied to the same
taxable entity by the same taxation authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except
when they relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the current and deferred
tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity respectively.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that
entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in its functional currency
(i.e. the currency of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates
of the transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that
are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they arise. Exchange differences
arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair
value are included in profit or loss for the period.

Exchange differences relating to the retranslation of the Group’s
net assets in Renminbi to the Group’s presentation currency (i.e.
Hong Kong dollars) are recognised directly in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in translation reserve. Such exchange
differences accumulated in the translation reserve are not
reclassified to profit or loss subsequently.

Retirement benefits costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefits plans in Hong
Kong and the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) and the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) in Hong
Kong are charged as expenses when employees have rendered
service entitling them to the contributions.
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BRE R RENAZTHILEE
For the year ended 30 June 2020

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the undiscounted
amount of the benefits expected to be paid as and when employees
rendered the services. All short-term employee benefits are
recognised as an expense unless another HKFRS requires or permits
the inclusion of the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees (such as
wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave) after deducting any
amount already paid.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a settlement date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value except for trade receivables arising from contracts with
customers, which are initially measured in accordance with HKFRS
15. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial
assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and of
allocating interest income and interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts and payments (including all fees and
points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset or financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently
measured at amortised cost:

. the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

. the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

All financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
interest income is recognised using the effective interest method for
financial assets measured subsequently at amortised cost. Interest
income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the
gross carrying amount of a financial asset, except for financial assets
that have subsequently become credit-impaired (see below). For
financial assets that have subsequently become credit-impaired,
interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate
to the amortised cost of the financial asset from the next reporting
period. If the credit risk on the credit-impaired financial instrument
improves so that the financial asset is no longer credit-impaired,
interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset from the
beginning of the reporting period following the determination that
the asset is no longer credit-impaired.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected credit
loss (“ECL”) model on financial assets (including amount due
from a joint venture, loan receivables, trade and other receivables,
amount due from a non-controlling shareholder, pledged bank
deposits, fixed bank deposits and bank balances) and financial
guarantee contracts which are subject to impairment under HKFRS
9. The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect
changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible
default events over the expected life of the relevant instrument. In
contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL”) represents the portion of
lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events that are
possible within 12 months after the reporting date. Assessment are
done based on the Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for factors that are specific to the debtors, general economic
conditions and an assessment of both the current conditions at the
reporting date as well as the forecast of future conditions.
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For the year ended 30 June 2020

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables.

The ECL on these assets are assessed individually for debtors with

significant balances and collectively using a provision matrix with

appropriate groupings.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss allowance

equal to 12m ECL, unless there has been a significant increase

in credit risk since initial recognition, in which case the Group

recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime

ECL should be recognised is based on significant increases in the

likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial recognition.

®

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as
at the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on
the financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition.
In making this assessment, the Group considers both
quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable
and supportable, including historical experience and forward-
looking information that is available without undue cost or
effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has increased
significantly:

. an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal
credit rating;

. significant deterioration in external market indicators
of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit
spread, the credit default swap prices for the debtor;

. existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected to
cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to
meet its debt obligations;
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

®

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

. an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor; and

. an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic, or technological environment of
the debtor that results in a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the
Group presumes that the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition when contractual payments are more
than 30 days past due, unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information that demonstrates otherwise.

For financial guarantee contracts, the date that the Group
becomes a party to the irrevocable commitment is considered
to be the date of initial recognition for the purposes of
assessing impairment. In assessing whether there has been a
significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition
of a loan commitment, the Group considers changes in
the risk of a default occurring on the loan to which a loan
commitment relates; for financial guarantee contracts, the
Group considers the changes in the risk that the specified
debtor will default on the contract.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria
used to identify whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that
the criteria are capable of identifying significant increase in
credit risk before the amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers
an event of default occurs when information developed
internally or obtained from external sources indicates that the
debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group, in
full (without taking into account any collaterals held by the
Group).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Definition of default (Continued)

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that default
has occurred when a financial asset is more than 90 days
past due unless the Group have reasonable and supportable
information to demonstrate that a more lagging default
criterion is more appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events
that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash
flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a
financial asset is credit-impaired includes observable data
about the following events:

a. significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

b. a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

& the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or

contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider; or

d. it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, for example, when the counterparty has been
placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings. Financial assets written off may still be
subject to enforcement activities under the Group’s
recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition event.
Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

™)

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of
default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if
there is a default) and the exposure at default. The assessment
of the probability of default and loss given default is based
on historical data adjusted by forward-looking information
available without undue cost or effort. Estimation of ECL
reflects an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is
determined with the respective risks of default occurring as
the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all contractual
cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the
contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to receive,
discounted at the effective interest rate determined at initial

recognition.

For a financial guarantee contract, the Group is required
to make payments only in the event of a default by the
debtor in accordance with the terms of the instrument that is
guaranteed. Accordingly, the expected losses is the present
value of the expected payments to reimburse the holder for
a credit loss that it incurs less any amounts that the Group
expects to receive from the holder, the debtor or any other

party.

For ECL on financial guarantee contracts for which the
effective interest rate cannot be determined, the Group
will apply a discount rate that reflects the current market
assessment of the time value of money and the risks that are
specific to the cash flows but only if, and to the extent that,
the risks are taken into account by adjusting the discount rate
instead of adjusting the cash shortfalls being discounted.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset is
credit impaired, in which case interest income is calculated
based on amortised cost of the financial asset.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

For financial guarantee contracts, the loss allowances are
recognised at the higher of the amount of the loss allowance
determined in accordance with HKFRS 9; and the amount
initially recognised less, where appropriate, cumulative
amount of income recognised over the guarantee period.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or
loss for all financial instruments by adjusting their carrying
amount, with the exception of trade receivables and financial
guarantee contracts where the corresponding adjustment is
recognised through a loss allowance account.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when the Group
transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity. If the Group
neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership and continue to control the transferred asset, the Group
recognises its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability
for amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial
asset, the Group continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost,
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of
the consideration received and receivable is recognised in profit or
loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability
and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of it liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities (including trade and other payables, bank loan
and long-term rental deposits received) are subsequently measured
at amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to
make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs
because a specified debtor fails to make payments when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee
contract liabilities are measured initially at their fair values. It is
subsequently measured at the higher of:

. the amount of the loss allowance determined in accordance
with HKFRS 9; and

. the amount initially recognised less, where appropriate,
cumulative amortisation recognised over the guarantee
period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Derecognition/substantial modification of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group’ obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised
in profit or loss.

The Group accounts for an exchange with a lender of a financial
liability with substantially different terms as an extinguishment
of the original financial liability and the recognition of a new
financial liability. A substantial modification of the terms of an
existing financial liability or a part of it (whether or not attributable
to the financial difficulty of the Group) is accounted for as an
extinguishment of the original financial liability and the recognition
of a new financial liability.

The Group considers that the terms are substantially different if the
discounted present value of the cash flows under the new terms,
including any fees paid net of any fees received and discounted
using the original effective interest rate, is at least ten per cent
different from the discounted present value of the remaining cash
flows of the original financial liability. Accordingly, such exchange
of debt instruments or modification of terms is accounted for as
an extinguishment, any costs or fees incurred are recognised as
part of the gain or loss on the extinguishment. The exchange or
modification is considered as non-substantial modification when
such difference is less than ten per cent.

Non-substantial modifications of financial liabilities

For non-substantial modifications of financial liabilities that do not
result in derecognition, the carrying amount of the relevant financial
liabilities will be calculated at the present value of the modified
contractual cash flows discounted at the financial liabilities’ original
effective interest rate. Transaction costs or fees incurred are adjusted
to the carrying amount of the modified financial liabilities and are
amortised over the remaining term. Any adjustment to the carrying
amount of the financial liability is recognised in profit or loss at the
date of modification.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including leasehold land and
building, that are held for administrative purposes are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if
any.

Ownership interests in leasehold land and building

When the Group makes payments for ownership interests of
properties which includes both leasehold land and building
elements, the entire consideration is allocated between the leasehold
land and the building elements in proportion to the relative fair
values at initial recognition.

To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments can be made
reliably, interest in leasehold land that is presented as “right-of-
use assets” (upon application of HKFRS 16) or “prepaid lease
payments” (before application of HKFRS 16) in the consolidated
statement of financial position except for those that are classified
and accounted for as investment properties under the fair value
model. When the consideration cannot be allocated reliably between
non-lease building element and undivided interest in the underlying
leasehold land, the entire properties are classified as property, plant
and equipment.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items of
assets over their estimated useful lives and after taking into account
of their estimated residual value using the straight-line method.
The estimated useful lives and depreciation method are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the
disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment
is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 30 June 2020

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets to determine whether there is any indication that these assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the relevant asset is estimated in order to
determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any).

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment and right-
of-use assets are estimated individually. When it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount individually, the Group estimates
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs. In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment, corporate
assets are also allocated to relevant cash-generating units, when a
reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be established, or
otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating
units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be
established. The recoverable amount is determined for the cash-
generating unit or group of cash-generating units to which the
corporate asset belongs, and is compared with the carrying amount
of the relevant cash-generating unit or group of cash-generating
units.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset (or a cash-generating unit)
for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable
amount. For corporate assets or portion of corporate assets which
cannot be allocated on a reasonable and consistent basis to a cash-
generating unit, the Group compares the carrying amount of a
group of cash-generating units, including the carrying amounts of
the corporate assets or portion of corporate assets allocated to that
group of cash-generating units, with the recoverable amount of the
group of cash-generating units. In allocating the impairment loss,
the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other assets on a pro-
rata basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit
or the group of cash-generating units. The carrying amount of an
asset is not reduced below the highest of its fair value less costs of
disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if determinable) and zero.
The amount of the impairment loss that would otherwise have been
allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to the other assets of the
unit or the group of cash-generating units. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets (Continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit or a group of
cash-generating units) is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash-
generating unit or a group of cash generating units) in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit
or loss.

Contingent asset

A contingent asset is not recognised until the realisation of income is
virtually certain, then the related asset is not contingent asset and its
recognition is appropriate.

Share-based payment arrangements

Share options granted to employees and consultants providing
similar services

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others
providing similar services are measured at the fair value of the
equity instruments at the grant date.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based payments
determined at the grant date without taking into consideration all
non-market vesting conditions is expensed on a straight-line basis
over the vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate of equity
instruments that will eventually vest, with a corresponding increase
in equity (share option reserve). At the end of each reporting
period, the Group revises its estimate of the number of equity
instruments expected to vest based on assessment of all relevant
non-market vesting conditions. The impact of the revision of
the original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such
that the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a
corresponding adjustment to the share option reserve.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously recognised
in share option reserve will be transferred to share premium. When
the share options are forfeited after the vesting date or are still not
exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously recognised in
share option reserve will be transferred to retained profits.
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For the year ended 30 June 2020

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the Directors are required to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
The estimates and underlying assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if
the revision affects both current and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying the Group’s accounting policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the Directors have made in
the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies and that
have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements.

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or deferred
tax assets arising from investment properties that are measured
using the fair value model, the Directors have reviewed the Group’s
investment property portfolios and concluded that the Group’s
investment properties located in the PRC are not held under a
business model whose objective is to consume substantially all
of the economic benefits embodied in the investment properties
over time. Therefore, in measuring the Group’s deferred taxation
on investment properties, the Directors have determined that the
presumption that the carrying amounts of investment properties
measured using the fair value model are recovered entirely through
sale is not rebutted. As a result, the Group has recognised the
deferred taxes on changes in fair value of investment properties
as the Group is subject to Land Appreciation Tax (“LAT”) and
Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT”) on disposal of its investment
properties.

DYNAMIC HOLDINGS LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2019-2020

85



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
n-ZI' (] :g\—j i‘k B'F IE\ Bﬁ DE (#&)

RE-ZZREAA=ZTHILEE
For the year ended 30 June 2020

LN - VTN R
Z BRI ()

A% 5 A e b 2 S A R

R RIR - BA B AR R A A FEAS
BB PR AR > B A AE E R
B o 0BT — BB B R K E A AR
R AT (L B A Y S R R
—[\ o

RBFWFE A T

RERMBR > AL E R EYE BT
T T AT I DL O B )
8 {E Ak 11,910,689,000 6 (L F —
JU4E ¢ i #52,051,020,000 76 ) T % HR M ST
A BB EMNEMETRGE - REY
S0 Ak (B Y AR 95 4T HA B AL 2E 58 ) (B A%
(4 T 35 5 BB AN m AR B A R A BE T Y
A AL L SR T B BT R 4 AE 4 A T
o Al FE R ACH 4 oA 1Y I BB 4 U
TECHI T A5 o ARIRAN(E > & 3R A7 (=
) B SN0 S (B TR W 3R R T 35 3R
R =N [ & < o N sl -
A A ) 2 A% B W) 2N T {E ek s e A
JRE SR e 2 i 4 SR 1R A R A N TERR o

25 18 oK MW oK 1 5 55 Je HE b M WK ok
T& 18 119 BOH 17 18 45

TR &S B B A5 8 18 A0 B 30O R AR
B Ty B A i B K & 5 B %@ﬁﬁ%
Fﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ B AN o A SR G 84

ﬁ@%ﬁﬁ B AN HE KB R U
E&E%ﬁ%% i TH 0 AE B
&E Wﬁiﬁ&wm%ﬁ W AR > ot

HA Ao s 1R SR & A S N 2 A
ﬁﬁﬁ@?%$%@%ﬁit%$=%
H%FﬂA@HT§%%ﬁ%ﬁ%u’
1M 48 75 1E 22 38 22 AR BORE 0 o 0 4 R ik
%H>@%Eﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁiﬁmﬂ%
R TSR B s L -

RN G S ERYSG A A
%ﬁ%hﬁ%%&$%@%ﬁ X Wi R

B R At T Wi IR R R RN B
%Bﬁ%ﬁ%o

—REZRRERER | OE

J1 4 A FR 2 A

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year, are discussed below.

Fair value of investment properties

At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s investment properties
(including residential, commercial and carparks portion and
office units) are carried at a total fair value of HK$1,910,689,000
(2019: HK$2,051,020,000) based on the valuations performed
by independent qualified professional valuers. The valuations
of investment properties were arrived at by reference to market
evidence of recent transaction prices for similar properties and/or
on the basis of discounted cash flow projections based on estimates
of future rental income from properties using capitalisation rates
and market unit rents of individual units as inputs. In relying
on the valuation, management has exercised its judgment and is
satisfied that the method of valuation is reflective of the current
market conditions. Favourable or unfavourable changes to these
assumptions would result in changes in the fair value of the Group’s
investment properties and corresponding adjustments to the amount
of gain or loss recognised in profit or loss.

Provision of ECL for loan receivables and trade and other
receivables

Loan receivables and trade and other receivables with significant
balances and credit-impaired are assessed for ECL individually.
In addition, the Group uses provision matrix to calculate ECL for
the loan receivables and trade and other receivables which are
individually insignificant. The provision rates are based on internal
credit ratings as groupings of various debtors that have similar loss
patterns. The provision matrix is based on the Group’s historical
default rates taking into consideration forward-looking information
that is reasonable and supportable available without undue costs or
effort. At every reporting date, the historical observed default rates
are reassessed and changes in the forward-looking information are
considered.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates. The
information about the ECL and the Group’s loan receivables and
trade and other receivables is disclosed in note 33.
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the board of Directors (the “Board”) of the
Company, being the chief operating decision maker, for the purpose
of resource allocation and assessment of performance focused on
the location of the properties for property rental and property sales.

The property rental segment includes property leasing operation
in the PRC. The Group’s investment properties portfolio, which
mainly consists of offices, shopping mall and carparks, are located
in Shanghai and Beijing, the PRC. The property sales segment
includes sales of the Group’s trading properties in Beijing, the PRC.
During the year ended 30 June 2020, the Group ceased the business
of property sales segment as the relevant properties held for sale
have been rented out and Directors have changed the intention
to hold to earn rentals and/or capital appreciation. As at 30 June
2020, the property sales segment assets and liabilities have been
aggregated in property rental segment accordingly.

The revenue from property rental for the year ended 30 June 2020
includes variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or
a rate of HK$3,779,000, the remaining amounts are lease payments
that are fixed. The revenue from property sale is recognised at a
point in time.

These divisions, property rental and property sales analysed based
on distinct geographical locations, are the basis on which the
Group reports its segment information under HKFRS 8 “Operating
Segments”.

(a) Segment revenues and results

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and

Al RS ST results by reportable and operating segment for the year:
LB NE S
Property rental Property sales
£ iR 3 B
Beijing Shanghai Beijing Consolidated

CREORE RGO CRC0RE CFF CRC0RE T CR0RE ZZH

2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019

#WTL  ERTT  EWTL EFTT #WTL EFTr #EWTFL EFTr

HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HKS$000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HKS$'000
ARBA SEGMENT REVENUE

A REVENUE

HibaE External sales 32,062 36,774 59,992 69,432 - - 92,054 106,206

ARRY SEGMENT RESULT U4 1003 9033) B2 (163) (198) (15634 84327
FAREMBA > Unallocated other income,

et i gains or losses 13,710 13,199

RO Unallocated corporate expenses (34,088) (41,926)

R A Finance costs (3,469) (4,325)

AEREZERME  Share of loss of a joint venture (10,940) (10,140)

WRABLAT (B4 i A (Loss) profit before taxation (50,421) 41,135
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5.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

(a) Segment revenues and results (Continued)

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the
same as the Group’s accounting policies described in note 3.
Segment result represents the profit (loss) from each segment
without the allocation of central administration costs, bank
interest income, exchange loss, imputed interest income
on amount due from a joint venture, share of loss of a joint
venture and finance costs. This is the measure reported to the
Board of Directors for the purposes of resources allocation
and performance assessment.

(b) Segment assets and liabilities

WERE WEHE
Property rental Property sales
Ex iR Ex Ba
Beijing Shanghai Beijing Consolidated
CRORE CZNE ZR0RE CZNF ZR0RE CZE CR0ZE CZ0E
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
EWFL  EFTL EWFL EFTL BWFL EFTC BWFFL BFTL
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000
i3 ASSETS
NEEE Segment assets 705,193 653,179 1,215,381 1,402,948 - 20785 1920774 2076912
AEbEES Interest in a joint venture 78918 93,605
ABRLERK Amount due from a joint venture 220,448 215,712
FAmEEERE Unallocated corporate assets 303,092 297,818
GREEAMH Consolidated total assets 153230 2684047
filg LIABILITIES
A& Segment liabilities 19,280 6462 3,751 30,328 - 10,836 53,031 47626
FAmEEAR Unallocated corporate liabilities 444,885 503,903
GRAGEH Consolidated total liabilities 497916 551,529

Ty B PO [ ) o UK BL KR IR oy
fic -

- BReBAEMHR gHEMXE
KK~ SRATAF 3K SRAT &5 B

For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and
allocating resources between segments:

- all assets are allocated to operating segments other
than interest in a joint venture, amount due from a

EHAED KR HMSEEE joint venture, bank deposits, bank balances and cash
AN EERE E Ty 4 I A AR and other corporate assets; and
ik I3

- BREMBE MATEK B
B AR K H At A 3 AR
Sh > EEB AR TS 5 Bl 2 RE
Vigs i

SE-AEDFDREEER | B OEEARA A

- all liabilities are allocated to operating segments other
than tax payable, bank loan, deferred tax liabilities and
other corporate liabilities.
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

©

-2

Other segment information

VES

Property sales

£
Beijing

¥
0

EHTT
HES000

n

161

G
Segment Total
SRORE
2020
Wir  #r
HES 000 HKS'000

AR
Unallocated
HIRE AL
2020
#HFr
HES'000

B
Consolidated

ot Jut 2 e S K

2020

#WFr

HES'000

BHTT

HKS 000 HKS 000

316 7 36 1% 07 166 113
101 161 101 3 36 5 41
- - - 2134 - 20 -
o656 3560 - S (I6850) 3560
] - - ] -

BEEEAR Amouts incudedinthe
SO ERE  measure of segment
RABZEE  resultorsegmentassels
and liabilities
Exsih Capital expenditures - - _
H1% - BB R Depreciation of property,
V4it 4 plant and equipment - - -
[EREEEL  Deprecitionof rightofuse
i assets - - _
REWEATE  (Deorease) increase i fair
ZUHD) I value of investment
properties (31,051) (10222) (137,509)
TPEWEEBE  Increase in fair value of
SEMERS  propertiesheld or
AT sale upon transfer o
investment properties 88,228 - -
(7)) IR %
AEE R BBINEF R EWAT)

BETA B (B AN -

9 5 B v i 2 M s A3 A I O B
MREEIT :

R (F HEBR ST
i

SR ) bl I R ) A
TH -

(@

PRC (other than Hong Kong)
Hong Kong

Geographical information

All of the Group’s revenue from external customers are
located in the PRC (other than Hong Kong).

The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of non-
current assets analysed by the geographical area in which the
assets are located:

K Gad 1) ¢ P R i
Carrying amount of
non-current assets
“E—NA
2019
T T
HK3$°000

SRR
2020

#W T
HK$°000

1,992,654 2,147,056
1,313 1,364
1,993,967 2,148,420

The Group’s non-current assets above exclude financial
instruments.
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5.  REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)

(e) Information about major customers

Revenue from customers of the corresponding year

contributing over 10% of the Group’s revenue is as follows:

—F_%H
2020

#WT
HKS$°000

9,475

—EfLE
2019
I or
HKS$000

N/A!

The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% of the

6. OTHER INCOME, GAINS OR LOSSES

Included in other income, gains or
losses are:

Bank interest income

Exchange loss, net

Imputed interest income on amount
due from a joint venture

7. FINANCE COSTS

Interest on bank loan
Interest on lease liabilities
Other borrowing costs

SE-AEDFDREEER | B OEEARA A

it e 5
2020

BT
HK$°000

4,495
(3,951)

12,626

—E— LA
2019
T
HKS$°000

4,730
(5,841)

13,855

SRR ZE—JUAE
2020 2019
T BT T
HKS$’000 HKS$000
3,119 4,086

106 -

244 239

3,469 4325
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8. (LOSS) PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

(Loss) profit before taxation has been
arrived at after charging (crediting):

Auditor’s remuneration
Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment
Depreciation of right-of-use assets
Loss on disposals/write off of property,
plant and equipment
Operating lease rentals in respect of
office premises
Directors’ emolument (note 9(a))
Other staff costs
Staff costs excluding retirement
benefit costs
Retirement benefits costs

Total other staff costs
Net operating lease rentals received and
receivable
Gross rents from investment properties
Less: Direct expenses from investment
properties

R R ZE— A

2020 2019
T T
HKS$°000

W T
HK$°000

1,684 1,640
530 417
2,324 -

1 61
- 3,189

2,142 4,188
11,736 11,584
525 640
12,261 12,224

(92,054) (106,206)
26,467 25,279

(65,587) (80,927)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
SO ERIBME (&)

BREZZZREENA = H L4 E
For the year ended 30 June 2020

9. WHEREHME 9. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS
(W) HHM 4 (a) Directors’ emoluments
ZRORAE B —JUAE
2020 2019
0 T T I
HKS$°000 HKS$ 000
M A Directors’ fees
WATHEF Executive 1,024 2,160
L IEHATE S Independent non-executive 1,080 1,920
Al P 4 Other emoluments
3 4 B H A A Salaries and other benefits - —
B R AR F 51 # Contributions to retirement
HE 3K benefits scheme 38 108
2,142 4,188
EMEREST =422 — N The emoluments paid or payable to each of the thirteen (2019:
RN EHEZ A A MBS W sixteen) Directors were as follows:
o

ek o BHEEA

e HAFA il Bk 4
Salaries  Contributions
and other  to retirement

Fees benefits  benefits scheme Total
#WF L #WTLE EWTLC BFTFL
HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000

Whrdd Executive Directors

BkB L Dr. TAN Lucio C. 152 - - 152
oW Mr. CHIU Siu Hung, Allan 30 - 16 336
TAN Carmen K. % 1 Mts. TAN Carmen K. 112 - - 112
FEIREE Mr. PASCUAL Rarmon Sy 200 - 10 210
EEELE Mr. CHUA Joseph Tan 120 - 6 126
TAN Vivienne Khao & £ Ms. TAN Vivienne Khao 120 - 6 126
WRERSE (W) Mr. TAN Lucio Jr. Khao (note ix) - - - _
WRERE (it Mr. TAN Michael Gonzales (note x) - - - -
b tives Independent Non-executive Directors

EREEE Mr. CHONG Kim Chan, Kenneth 30 - - 30
ERfEL Dr. FOK Kam Chu, John 160 - - 160
GO Patrick LimJi /£ Mr. GO Patrick Lim 200 - - 200
NGU Angel /&4 Mr. NGU Angel 120 - - 120
ERERE W t—) Mr. MA Chiu Tak, Anthony (note xi) 280 - - 280

2104 - 38 210
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
RO RIBM T (&)

REZZZRENA = H L4
For the year ended 30 June 2020

9. WHEEREAME w0 9. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(W) EHM 4 () (a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

Hek  RIKMEA
Aomsl

Salaries  Contributions

andother  to retirement
Fees benefits  benefits scheme Total
BETT  BEFT BETT BETFx
HK$°000 HK$°000 HKS$ 000 HKS$ 000

WA Executive Directors
WAL (i) Dr. TAN Lucio C. (note v) 160 = 8 168
HOWBEE (L) Mr. CHIU Siu Hung, Allan (note vii) 400 = 20 420
TAN Carmen K. % & (Mt ) Mrs. TAN Carmen K. (note vi) 160 = 8 168
Bk Bk Mr. TAN Lucio Jr. Khao 280 - 14 294
Bkt Mr. TAN Michael Gonzales 20 - 14 294
HIEELA Mr. PASCUAL Ramon Sy 240 - 12 25
BEERE Mr. CHUA Joseph Tan 320 = 16 336
TAN Vivienne Khao &t 1 (47 77) Ms. TAN Vivienne Khao (note vi) 160 = 8 168
WOk (i) Mr. TAN Harry Chua (note i) 80 = 4 84
Bk (7 =) Dr. CHAN Wing Kit, Frank (note ii 80 = 4 84
UNES K Independent Non-executive Directors
FERH R Mr. CHONG Kim Chan, Kenneth 400 - - 400
ERAES L Dr. FOK Kam Chu, John 400 - - 400
GO Patrick Lim /&£ Mr. GO Patrick Lim 400 - - 400
NGU Angel St £ (47 /() Mr. NGU Angel (note viii) 120 = = 120
TAN Kenway HaoJE £ (/' £/4) Mr. TAN Kenway Hao (note iv) 360 = = 360
SY Robin Chua i & (7 =) Dr. SY Robin Chua (note iii) 240 = = 240
4,080 - 108 4188

Mt - Notes:

— BEAKWAeELE R - FE—NETH i Mr. TAN Harry Chua retired as the Chairman and an
N HIB(EAN G M REITES - executive Director of the Company on 6 December 2018.

= BEAKRHEER FE—ANE+H ii. Dr. CHAN Wing Kit, Frank retired as the Chief Executive
N HIBAEA N AT BLAR X AT Officer and an executive Director of the Company on 6
HFHH o December 2018.

= SY Robin Chua i + & — & — JL4F iii. Dr. SY Robin Chua resigned as an independent non-executive
A =+ = H BHAE AN 7) 58 57 9 Director of the Company on 23 April 2019.

YAiTHESE -

/9 - TAN Kenway Hao % — & — JL iv. Mr. TAN Kenway Hao resigned as an independent non-
ESA T — H BT AN w87 JE executive Director of the Company on 11 September 2019.
PATESR -

o BEAKERE LR FE—LE=AN v. Dr. TAN Lucio C. was appointed as the Chairman of the
HEREAERG TR LANA Board of Directors and an executive Director of the Company
HATHEH - on 4 March 2019.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

||'7.r —J.FBFI,E\B‘:IDI(%’)

BEZRRIEEAAZTHILEE
For the year ended 30 June 2020

9. A KR H M )

(W) e 4 ()

Mt - (4)

7N TAN Carmen K. }"(j:&TAN Vivienne
Khao#Z Ljir “ZF—JUE=H W H#
TAE BN THEDS

£ BMOWMEER-F - FE=HN
A Z AT 2 A 2 7 AR AT B4
o B F—NFELH+ A
ST A A A A AT B -

J\ > NGU Angel5E A4 it = F — JLAF 1

H o+ AT 7 A 2 w38 5 JF 3
T -

U BREZ2ERAER-F-NLE+T—H
o H A o

+ BREmELER T - ET A
ZJURBAE -

T BEEEER T -ENLA+
— FHE R AL By A A WU S R BUAT
o

2 R AT I N R S
B A T R A G I R T 4R R
B AR -

= B AT £
A S AR A A 2 ) 2 4R A
B o

(2) fREM4E

T WA AE BE o A A A R
SICAGT 1 NS & o S

9.

DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

()

(b)

Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

vi.

Vii.

viii.

Xi.

xii

xii.

Mrs. TAN Carmen K. and Ms. TAN Vivienne Khao were
appointed as executive Directors of the Company on 4 March
2019.

Mr. CHIU Siu Hung, Allan was appointed as the acting Chief
Executive Officer of the Company on 4 March 2019 and re-
designated as the Chief Executive Officer on 10 May 2019.

Mr. NGU Angel was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director of the Company on 10 May 2019.

Mr. TAN Lucio Jr. Khao passed away on 11 November 2019.

Mr. TAN Michael Gonzales retired as executive Director of
the Company on 29 November 2019.

Mr. MA Chiu Tak, Anthony appointed as an independent non-
executive Director of the Company on 11 September 2019.

The executive Directors’ emoluments shown above were
mainly for their services in connection with the management
of the affairs of the Company and the Group.

The independent non-executive Directors’ emoluments shown
above were mainly for their services as Directors of the
Company.

Employees’ emoluments

No Directors were included in the five highest paid

individuals for both years. Details of Directors’ emoluments

A B SCHE RSO (H) THIR - LA are set out in note 9(a) above. The emoluments of the five
REHFMA LM EWm T highest paid individuals are as follows:
R
2020
BT
HKS$’000
FL AR & I R Basic salaries and allowances 5,835 5,147
TR R % B 48 4 Performance related bonuses - 379
B ARAE F 5 #)44E 2 Contributions to retirement benefit
scheme 198 252
6,033 5,778
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

9. A KR H M ) 9.

(&) fREME &)

6 8 ¥ R 18 Bt 5% (&)

REZZZRENA = H L4
For the year ended 30 June 2020

DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Employees’ emoluments (Continued)

W 5F 2 P4 A - T B The emoluments were within the following bands:
e B ¥ H
Number of employees
R TRAE —E—NAE
2020
4 25 9% 1,000,000 7 Nil to HK$1,000,000 1 2
7 %1,000,001 7C & HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000
7 %1,500,000 JC 2 1
7 %1,500,001 7C & HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000
7 %:2,000,000 JC 2 2
10. 9 £ 8L 40 B 10. INCOME TAX CREDIT

CTRRAE

2020 2019
5 For
HK$°000

#WT
HK$°000

BT F R AL The tax credit comprises:
B I o [ A 2 T A5 B Enterprise Income Tax in the PRC
(& HERRAD) (other than Hong Kong)
A A FE Current year 6,049 7,014
AR AR R R A Underprovision in prior years - 91
6,049 7,105
R IE BB (B 7 52425 ) Deferred tax credit (note 24) (29,909) (15,550)
(23,860) (8,445)

FT 7 A 5 LS 4 1 P B O
R o i i B IR THL P A 26 75 VB 79
Bt ff -

MR R EE R IR 2R (T4
XY ) KA 2T 15 Bk R
1) > 7 45 [ o I A B 22 B R 5 25% o

ENYNEIR D & ol A
T A F 2 EABAR » B E A A
EHBEERBA A A EEERA K
FE A BI10% 2 25% ©

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made in the
consolidated financial statements as the Group has no assessable
profit for both years.

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Enterprise
Income Tax (the “EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the
EIT Law, the tax rate of the Group’s PRC subsidiary is 25%.

Certain subsidiaries of the Company incorporated in Hong Kong
and the British Virgin Islands are subject to withholding tax ranging
from 10% to 25% on their taxable rental income, management fee
income and interest income in the PRC.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

= © U 15 B8R 18 Bt 5T (@)

BREZRSREANN ST HIREE
For the year ended 30 June 2020

10. i BEHBR (42) 10.
I HE 0 T 2 2 19 B A B 3 55 24 TR

WA BILIREEE 2% /NE—H
— H R > 8 4 IR Hp B A 3 T I I Y A
RE ZH B 38 5% I B0 BL - i 2 MM AK > 3
I ) AR A T I 22 A OO AR A I R
TH P 5142 4% € Bl TH 7% #5 %5 2,531,000 7C ( —
T — JLAF ¢ W 2,634,0000T) e

A AR BE 9 B TE 11 BR w] B AR A B 45 K H A
AT I 2 2R 2 BR BT O 18) Vs 1) 354 AR 4
T

INCOME TAX CREDIT (Continued)
Details of the deferred tax liabilities are set out in note 24.

The EIT Law also requires withholding tax upon distribution of
profits earned by the PRC entities since 1 January 2008 at 5%. At
the end of the reporting period, deferred taxation of HK$2,531,000
(2019: HK$2,634,000) has been provided for in the consolidated
financial statements in respect of the temporary differences
attributable to such profits.

The tax credit for the year can be reconciled to the (loss) profit
before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and

other comprehensive income as follows:

SRR —F—JLAE
2020 2019
V.3 BT T
HKS$’000 HK$°000
B A /T (65 18) iz Al (Loss) profit before taxation (50,421) 41,135
Fi B R 25% Z I 15 Bl 3 Income tax expense at the applicable rate
(ZZF—JLF : 25%) of 25% (2019: 25%) (12,605) 10,284
5 B TE R AN F] 4 S 2 Tax effect of expenses not deductible for
Bl T 5 2 tax purpose 47,375 5,845
FTEBIEATHEBRA Z Tax effect of income not taxable for tax
Bl S 5 2 purpose (25,509) (3,477)
R HERD BB 18 2 BB 228 Tax effect of tax losses not recognised 3,534 4,675
A A S T 18 0 2 BB Tax effect of share of loss of a joint
o x venture 2,735 2,535
LA BN YE A Underprovision in prior years - 91
B F DA S R 19 T 0 Utilisation of deductible temporary
W7 IF 28R difference previously not recognised - (2,613)
BB R B ASE BLR Effect of different tax rate for subsidiaries
B I N T 2 R in respect of withholding tax (9,026) (12,528)
R JB8 2w A 4 e T ) 22 Deferred tax liabilities resulting from
THARBL T 2 withholding tax on undistributed profits
1 S i TH £ 1R of a subsidiary 6) 91
TS B R E Y ¥ Effect of LAT on investment
A properties (30,391) (13,388)
FoAte Others 33 40
REEES Income tax credit
(23,860) (8,445)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
RO RIBM T (&)

REZZZRENA = H L4
For the year ended 30 June 2020

11. DIVIDENDS

e i
2020

—EfLE
2019

Vo o

HK$°000

BT
HK$°000

Final dividend paid in respect of year
ended 30 June 2019 of 4 Hong Kong
cents (2018: 4 Hong Kong cents)

per share 9,508 9,133
Interim dividend paid in respect of year
ended 30 June 2020 of 2 Hong Kong
cents (2019: 3 Hong Kong cents)
per share 4,754 6,850
14,262 15,983

No final dividend was proposed for the year ended 30 June 2020
(2019: 4 Hong Kong cents per share).

12. (LOSS) EARNINGS PER SHARE
The calculation of the basic and diluted (loss) earnings per share
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the following
data:

—F_%F
2020

—E—LE
2019
T T
HK$°000

#W T
HKS$°000

(Loss) earnings

(Loss) earnings for the purposes of basic
and diluted (loss) earnings per share
((loss) profit for the year attributable to
owners of the Company)

(28,413) 48,730

I 3 ¥ H Number of shares
FAESHE R IR A (18 Weighted average number of ordinary

T 2 % 5 B M T34 BB shares for the purpose of basic (loss)

earnings per share 236,249,200 226,930,941

R e R Vi A L o g 2 Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares

-2 on share options 1,710,868 11,025,912
AR (1) B2 Number of ordinary shares for the purpose

8 B H of diluted (loss) earnings per share 237,960,068 237,956,853
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
ORI M ST (&)

BREZZZREENA = H L4 E
For the year ended 30 June 2020

13 P - B Kk il

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

i ER mas

3 £5 o BRI k]

Leasehold Office

land and Motor equipment

building vehicles and others Total

BT T BB T BB T BB T

HKS$ 000 HKS$ 000 HKS$ 000 HKS$000
L%3 COST
RZE—AFLtH—H At 1 July 2018 1,682 4322 3,147 9,151
S R Exchange realignment (70) (180) (130) (380)
RE Additions = 1,078 45 1,123
S Disposals/write off = (275) (85) (360)
REF-REAA=TH At 30 June 2019 1,612 4,945 2,977 9,534
S Exchange realignment (60) (183) (110) (353)
RE Additions = = 166 166
8 /s Disposals/write off - - 4) (24)
REZZBZZEANAZTHH At 30 June 2020 1,552 4,762 3,009 9,323
Wi DEPRECIATION
WoF—NELH—H At 1 July 2018 872 3,564 2,856 7,292
S R R Exchange realignment (37 (151) (119) (307)
AR JE A Provided for the year 77 278 62 417
A RS Eliminated on disposals/write off = (248) (51) (299)
REZF—-NFEAR=TH At 30 June 2019 912 3,443 2,748 7,103
S R Exchange realignment (35) (134) 98) (267)
ARAE JE WA Provided for the year 75 419 36 530
A B ER S Eliminated on disposals/write off - - (23) (23)
RZZBZZEANA=TH At 30 June 2020 952 3,728 2,663 7,343
I i 4 CARRYING AMOUNTS
REBTREANNZTH At 30 June 2020 600 1,034 346 1,980
RZZE—NFEAA=1H At 30 June 2019 700 1,502 229 2,431

A S5 EAH B b b oM T 2 R TR B A A
T B 3 o i R E A R
o R M TR g 2 TR EAT AT SE Oy B - BOHE
T S UM ~ WA et

The carrying amount of the Group’s leasehold land and building
comprises a property situated in the PRC. As the lease payments
cannot be allocated reliably between the land and building elements,
the entire property is classified as property, plant and equipment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

13. W13k ~ B Bt fll )

TE % 58 B K AL BRI B (A% > Bt -
W B BT E 2 R S AR R A

A& A AT &1 204

(DA 3 1 )
Hi i 15% % 20%
WO 2 M B HoAt 10% %33.3%

14. % B BE %

HEZ—JUEEA—H
MR T8 (i

REFZREANA=ZTH
H T8 (L

BERZEANAZ T HILSEE
2

A B AL 2 B S

L B 0 ) AR

T T8 A BE - R R 2 R s O
frEE > 8 e A8 E BT 5 WA o
1M L 4R 30 2 T o ) A Y R
5 12 2 S TR A0 ok B Ak 1 T i S - b
E LB Bt A AT B 2 R AR
R & %) 2 E 36 L n] R AT B AT
i E AR A

AEEMEMT LA RAEHESH -
R RENAZTH HEER
AL B M R o B R G g A S
AL -

ok > B EEANHAH =T HERZ
T A 5 A H1,131,000 5T > 1 AR B 2
P B T 11,067,000 0C o FiLE 1 ik A
A it i AT o] B2 5 bR A G 2 K R
i 4 AL FE A AL o AL R AT AE
VR B (5 S & o

e PR MR A W AF BE A LB AR R
A -

13.

14.

&6 91 ¥ BR 18 Bt 5% (=)

REZZZRENA = H L4
For the year ended 30 June 2020

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated

at the following rates per annum after taking into account of their
estimated residual values:

Leasehold land and building Over shorter of lease term and

20 years

15% to 20%

10% to 33.3%

Motor vehicles
Office equipment and others

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

Y%

Leased properties

BT T
HKS$000

As at 1 July 2019

Carrying amount 3,428
As at 30 June 2020

Carrying amount 1,067
For the year ended 30 June 2020

Depreciation charge 2,324
Expense relating to short-term leases 724
Total cash outflow for leases 3,060

For both years, the Group leases various offices for its operations.
Lease contracts are entered into for fixed term of an average term
of two years. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis
and contain a wide range of different terms and conditions. In
determining the lease term and assessing the length of the non-
cancellable period, the Group applies the definition of a contract
and determines the period for which the contract is enforceable.

The Group regularly entered into short-term leases for offices. As
at 30 June 2020, the portfolio of short-term leases is similar to the
portfolio of short-term leases to which the short-term lease expense
disclosed in this note.

In addition, lease liabilities of HK$1,131,000 are recognised with
related right-of-use assets of HK$1,067,000 as at 30 June 2020.
The lease agreements do not impose any covenants other than the
security interests in the leased assets that are held by the lessor.
Leased assets may not be used as security for borrowing purposes.

The above items of right-of-use assets are depreciated over two
years on a straight-line basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
n-ZI' (] :g\—j i‘k B'F IE\ Bﬁ DE (#&)

RE-ZZREAA=ZTHILEE
For the year ended 30 June 2020

15.

SE-NE_B_BEEER |

Bk

AT

W LA —
00 B
TR AL 3 9 R

AR —JUEARH=TH

i, 46 4

ENERER /S E 13
(et a5 175H)

PR D A8 A N TERR

RERERAEAA=ZTH

R_E_FEER_FE-NEANA=ZT
H ZISE@&E’%% @3‘31}21 [EED
AL AR B A MR D) 2 N PR TR R

EﬁﬂS%@ﬁﬁ%E’%in&%in A% B A
RL RN T (35 — R T 38 A0 307 40k 1 e B 2
Fﬂﬁﬁﬁf\ﬂ) » ARE SR H AT 2 Ak (S
o HEAG A AR LA B b A
%3%7& TAGE 2 BB o A (E Y R WE%
W % 2 2% 11 By 2 w4k L 8 B 52 )

VB > T I 4R M&t%ﬁ&%ﬂ%fﬁﬁ%
EMEWR 2 S WA G 3 EH Y
¥ 2 A AR OB B o A
CIE: OSSR RN 1K & Wl Fi=REiE R
168,560,000 7C ( & — JLA + 23 V- {H # in
M 47 2 2 i 4 10 %A 5 93,560,000 7T ) EL i
B4 N TERR o BT A 8GR -

A4 5 ) L6 5 L 4 A7 T UL A
S 4 2 8 0 T 4
CEDYSIPR TR

S A R A

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

FAIR VALUE
At 1 July 2018 2,136,283
Exchange realignment (88,823)
Increase in fair value recognised

in profit or loss 3,560
At 30 June 2019 2,051,020
Exchange realignment (74,799)
Transfer from properties held for sale

(note 17) 103,028
Decrease in fair value recognised

in profit or loss (168,560)
At 30 June 2020 1,910,689

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties (including
residential, commercial and carparks portion and office units)
as at 30 June 2020 and 2019 has been arrived at on the basis
of valuations carried out by Savills Valuation and Professional
Services Limited, an independent firm of qualified professional
valuers not connected with the Group with appropriate qualification
and recent experience in the valuation of similar properties in the
relevant locations. The valuation was arrived at with adoption of
the direct comparison approach by making reference to comparable
sales transactions as available in the market and where appropriate,
adopted the investment method by capitalising the rental income
of the properties derived from the existing tenancies with due
allowance for the reversionary income potential of the properties.
The revaluation gave rise to a net loss arising from decrease in fair
value of HK$168,560,000 (2019: net gain arising from increase in
fair value of HK$3,560,000) which has been recognised in profit or
loss. All the investment properties are situated in the PRC.

The investment properties of the Group held under operating leases
to earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are measured
using the fair value model for both years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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BRE R RENAZTHILEE
For the year ended 30 June 2020

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

The key unobservable inputs used in valuing the investment
properties (except for carparks and residential portions in Beijing,
the PRC) under the income capitalisation approach were the
capitalisation rates used and market unit rents of individual units.
The capitalisation rate used, taking into account of the capitalisation
of rental income potential, nature of the property, prevailing
market condition, ranging from 4.50% to 5.25% (2019: 4.50% to
5.25%) represents significant unobservable input. An increase in
the capitalisation rate used would result in a decrease in fair value
and vice versa. Market unit rent of individual unit used, derived
from the market rentals from comparable properties with a range of
RMBO91/sq.m. to RMB201/sq.m. (2019: RMB96/sq.m. to RMB221/
sq.m.) per month represents another significant unobservable input.
An increase in the market unit rent would result in an increase in
fair value and vice versa.

The key unobservable input used in valuing the carparks and
residential portions in Beijing, amounting to HK$199,466,000
(2019: HK$207,125,000) and HK$101,922,000 (2019: not
applicable) respectively under direct comparison approach was
the market unit sales rate with adjustment on other factors, such as
condition and location. Market unit sales of carparks and residential
portions used, derived from the markets unit sales comparables
with a range of RMB180,000/unit to RMB230,000/unit (2019:
RMB200,000/unit to RMB220,000/unit) and RMB26,000/sq.m. to
RMB68,000/sq.m. (2019: not applicable) respectively, represents
the significant unobservable input. An increase in the market unit
sales used would result in an increase in fair value and vice versa.

There has been no change from the valuation technique used in
prior year. In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest
and best use of the properties is their current use.

The valuation of the Group’s investment properties is classified as

Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. There were no transfers into or
out of Level 3 during both years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
n 6 B 15 BR 18 B 5E (a)

BREZRSREANN ST HIREE
For the year ended 30 June 2020

16 ABRLEMHR ABLERK 16. INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE/AMOUNT

DUE FROM A JOINT VENTURE

TR ORE

2020 2019

V.3 BT T

HKS$’000 HK$°000

BERA - LT Cost of investment, unlisted 184,787 188,154

Wiz i85 1% M 18 R it A 1 o 88 Share of post-acquisition losses and

reserves (105,869) (94,549)

78,918 93,605

HEMERK Amount due from a joint venture 220,448 215,712

Mt Note:

RN 2 o 1 A S AT PR =) ([ I |) Jy v 5
BERERI S MR AL F SR o AEH
AR A AR SE AT 50% B S AE 5 B RE R AR
82 AR R AL I 3 1 g B

A A AR A SR B P Oy 5 B 1 Y 28
V1 B HE HE 2 S R 4R o) B O AR R R o Y T A
BT HEAT R Al T B B R AR Rk
BEERFEFNER T —FEME L M

TERR LT - A B 1) I #E AN R 542,840,000
TCAE B 4 WA o A Y112 R E 45 19 80% o AR
PE R R R e > I 2E 2 G I AR
W8 A N R 521,000,000 G o AS 42 B K b o
B EB A E AR 10,290,000 T & A R
10,710,000 7G - 1M A4S 4 [ Je P 7 5 G 8RR A
TR A DN 2E 2 1A HE 25 49% [ 51% 7S 48 8] 15
B2 AL 88 g AR N R #532,550,000 7T IFF £ % B8 1
Ly 74 B2 B 1) B 3 1 0 G o

PO - A AR R R R R SR AR AR T
JBe T T ok M 5K 20 TR 2R 1 1 3 R A L R o TR
DIH 4 B0 — e - R 8 R A A B A A
T > 7 S I8 R A 7 T 1) 3 PO HE E 4 22 80% o

HOZZJFEAA = HIRFRE - AE &%
FE R A 12 15 HEE 55 49% DUHE 55 25 FH AR U1 2E
FHELERZ M JECHEB LS ER
2 o MY HE 2 B OB R AR S AR -

BE A B YT A BT E A= 1 D 0 B O i HE 25 IR R
B(REE L 49% N TEME ) o i RAS A A #53
R B A R B P AR B — 5
FE: MEE R FEANH=1+H,> Hf
FH AN I 31% A 45 3 110,368,000 7T (& — U
A 10,368,000 T ) 3l K T LATERE ©

SE-NABEDFDRERER | B OEEARA A

Shenzhen Zhen Wah Harbour Enterprises Ltd. (“Zhen Wah”) was a sino-
foreign equity joint venture company and indirectly held by the Company.
The Group was able to exercise 50% voting power in the joint venture, which
was determined by the proportion of the Group’s representatives in the board
of directors of Zhen Wah.

The Group had lodged petitions for international arbitrations in respect of the
dispute with the Chinese joint venture partner as to the percentages of equity
interest held in Zhen Wah in prior years. Two arbitral proceedings were
heard and two arbitral awards were made by China International Economic
and Trade Arbitration Commission in 2008 and 2010.

Before the arbitrations, the Group injected RMB42,840,000 as investment
cost to Zhen Wah, representing 80% of equity interests in Zhen Wah.
Pursuant to the arbitral award made in 2008, the registered capital of Zhen
Wah was confirmed to be RMB21,000,000, of which RMB10,290,000
and RMB10,710,000 were contributed by the Group and the Chinese joint
venture partner, respectively, and that the equity interests of Zhen Wah were
held by the Group and the Chinese joint venture partner as to 49% and 51%,
respectively. The additional capital contribution of RMB32,550,000 by the
Group was considered as advances to Zhen Wah by the Group.

Also, the arbitral award made in 2010 supported the distribution of profit
arising from relevant income generated from a piece of land held by Zhen
Wabh located in Tung Kok Tau, Shenzhen, the PRC before re-development,
to which the Group should be entitled 80% equity interest in Zhen Wah.

The assets and liabilities of Zhen Wah were deconsolidated and the Group’s
share of net assets and results in Zhen Wah had been accounted for as a joint
venture under the equity method based on the Group’s 49% equity interest in
Zhen Wah since the year ended 30 June 2009.

The distribution of profit arising from relevant income was accounted
for under the equity method based on the Group’s 49% equity interest in
Zhen Wah. The additional share of 31% up to 30 June 2020 which has
not been recognised by the Group amounted to HK$10,368,000 (2019:
HK$10,368,000), as the Directors consider the result of the arbitration is
subject to the agreement of the Chinese joint venture partner.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

G- E e T VAL T &

(%)
MrEE - ()

PR LEPO R —F —WE A+ H
o YIE A8 8 1 8 7 B R E N ST AT H AR
o SR A A A 4R RS R 2 A o
5 e S A A AF 4% A0 T O I3 2 s RO
I 2% AT — [H] 4 6 = 5 T A A W f 0 A -

HRPE B R AE A o DL R A SR M 2 Sk
S vk ] R R O A R R E A
JiE AR e B AR MR P U vk N
WA SR AR AE > FL O B N S 0 L O AR #K
WA ST B HE 20 B T A RS P Ty -
T G R AR DI R B — AE N SE AR o
B BTN B AR S A
3 DAKE £ 35 R % 5 A A P MR I

AR A S R AR R R BB R R
BT+ WA RER - R EFE%(ZF
—IJUAE ¢ 6%) TR 1% S A TS o

HEROFMABECEESE XA ECERK
MEH —F ZFENH =1 B 00l 5w
78,918,000 JG ( — & — JL 4 ¢ ¥ ¥93,605,000
J6) K s 220,448,000 7 ( & — JLAF ¢ HE
215,712,000 7G ) 149 7T Y =1 RE J o AR 45 Il 3 f
WM B IRIEROFEEN A TE > EFEe
W% 5E B U & SE AU IE o

BE_F_FEFR_-F-NFASA=Z+THI
R A A 2 RN (5 B 1R RE A RE N
F1 8 Bt 5k 933 1H o

MREF-NERFFRERNAZTHRE
BT

TRERAM

16.

Y5 Hl Vi

Place of

Name of joint venture

Y| #E
Zhen Wah

Brat - INFHERE IR ZF - WE A+ HE
Mo 2 4% > IFER AL A RBUIE 4T
HH -

establishment

B
PRC

&6 91 ¥ BR 18 Bt 5% (=)

REZZZRENA = H L4
For the year ended 30 June 2020

INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE/AMOUNT
DUE FROM A JOINT VENTURE (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

The operation period of Zhen Wah expired on 16 January 2014. Both joint
venture partners of Zhen Wah determined not to extend its operation period
and an application was lodged to liquidate Zhen Wah in prior year. The PRC
court accepted the application for liquidation of Zhen Wah and appointed a
law firm in the PRC as the liquidation committee of Zhen Wabh in prior year.

Based on the PRC laws and regulations and the related interpretations by
an external PRC legal counsel engaged by the Group, after the expiry of the
operation period and even during the liquidation process, the legal identity
of Zhen Wabh still exists and the net assets of Zhen Wah will be distributed
to the joint venture partners based on their equity contributions after the
completion of the liquidation. The Directors expect that the liquidation
process will not complete within one year. Accordingly, the Directors
continue to account for Zhen Wah as a joint venture of the Group using the
equity method of accounting in these consolidated financial statements.

The amount due from a joint venture is unsecured and to be repayable after
the next twelve months from the end of the reporting period. The amount is
carried at amortised cost at an effective interest rate of 6% (2019: 6%) per
annum.

The Directors have assessed the recoverability of interest in a joint venture
and amount due from a joint venture amounting to HK$78,918,000
(2019: HK$93,605,000) and HK$220,448,000 (2019: HK$215,712,000),
respectively, as at 30 June 2020. Based on the latest financial information
and fair value of net assets of Zhen Wah, the Directors have concluded that
the amounts will be fully recoverable.

Details of credit loss assessment of the amount due from a joint venture for
the year ended 30 June 2020 and 2019 are set out in note 33.

Particulars of the joint venture as at 30 June 2019 and 2020 are as follows:

7 45 1 4% A HE 2 B33/
The Group’s

equity interest Principal activity

BALRE (B FE)
Operation ceased (Note)

49%
49%

Note: The operation period of Zhen Wah expired on 16 January 2014.

Thereafter, Zhen Wah ceased its operation and is now in the process
of liquidation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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BREZZZREENA = H L4 E
For the year ended 30 June 2020

16. SBLXWE SBLEEXRK ) 16, INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE/AMOUNT
DUE FROM A JOINT VENTURE (Continued)

AR T ik BB s e BB ME 45 1k AR Summarised financial information prepared in accordance with
REHGECENMBERHEMT - HKFRSs in respect of the Group’s joint venture which is accounted
for using the equity method is set out below:

—E-®E S NE
2020 2019
BT o BT
HKS$’000 HK$°000
IE I B G Non-current assets 229,935 238,765
Wi Current assets 23,581 32,320
B AR Current liabilities (36,280) (35,483)
JE i ) & K Non-current liabilities (220,448) (215,712)
(3,212) 19,890
P ERERAMKSHEARENT The above amounts of assets and liabilities include the followings:
SRR —E—LE
2020 2019
BT BT
HKS$’000 HK$°000
BHe kBl 4% H Cash and cash equivalents 15,997 23,140
JE LB 4 Al B fE CR Non-current financial liabilities (excluding
B 5y R HAth A IR 3k K trade and other payables and provision)
HEAH) (220,448) (215,712)
SRR —E—LEF
NH=1H ANH=1H
IR4E 1E 4B
Year ended Year ended
30 June 2020 30 June 2019
BT BT
HKS$’000 HK$°000
A Revenue _ _
ARAEFE G 1R Loss for the year (22,326) (20,694)
A4 B H A A T (2 ) Other comprehensive (expense)
N income for the year (776) 432
AAE B A TH S Total comprehensive expense
HEE for the year (23,102) (20,262)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

16. FEAXMELRE FEEERK @ 16

6 8 ¥ R 18 Bt 5% (&)

REZZZRENA = H L4
For the year ended 30 June 2020

INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE/AMOUNT
DUE FROM A JOINT VENTURE (Continued)

Eati AR RARENT The above loss for the year includes the following:
SEORE F U
AH=1H ANH=Z1H
R 4R 14
Year ended Year ended
30 June 2020 30 June 2019
W T BT T
HK$°000 HKS$°000
R WA Interest income 241 3
FilLE 57 Interest expense 12,626 13,855

o] Bt SV A A A e S R
T A il 53 00 5 7 A SEME A HO AR THI(EL -

consolidated financial statements:

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the
carrying amount of the interest in a joint venture recognised in the

SRURE E A
2020 2019
BY T BEWET T
HKS$’000 HK3$°000
GEMET (AR EE Net (liabilities) assets of joint venture (3,212) 19,890
AT B A SR A Y Proportion of the Group’s ownership
Ao interest in a joint venture 49% 49%
(1,574) 9,746
AR B P2 Ak Ak — Deemed capital contribution — imputed
BEHFLE A interest income 80,492 83,859
AR GBS Carrying amount of the Group’s interest
T Th] {EL in a joint venture 78,918 93,605
17. s BEWE 17. PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE

AR FE A Y 2 P o AR AR
BE A > A [ BR T (5 ¥ 1 14,800,000
ST EY B R EY ¥ WRE
FIE EG AR ENAE - 5A
R K TE R A (A R DL K A JE
fifh IRF 4845 FH B - A EEHE B OBA Y A T{E W
103,028,000 7C B I 7t B 1 {5 22 B A9 25 48
5 188,228,000 G £ A 48 #2 Hh flE 5B o 443
HOHA 0 2 1 (8 2 AR 8 50 — KT 4 7 Ak
?&%%@%ﬁ@&ﬂ%ﬁ%%ﬁﬁ%
g °

MRoFE—NENA=Z1+TH fEYE
M TFEMEREERY . S5 EW
12,845,000 7C > 1fif # 25 — 7€ B bR 9 85 R
EHEyE-

The properties held for sale of the Group were situated in the PRC.
During the year, the Group transferred properties held for sale
with carrying amount of HK$14,800,000 to investment properties
as evidenced by the management reassessment on usage of the
properties, with their occupancy rate, past and expected future
return rate and the evidences of existing non-temporary operating
leases. The difference between the fair value at the date of transfer
of HK$103,028,000 and the above carrying amount amounted
to HK$88,228,000 has been recognised in profit or loss. The fair
value at the date of transfer was determined based on the valuations
carried out by Savills Valuation and Professional Services Limited.

As at 30 June 2019, certain units of properties held for sale,
amounting to HK$12,845,000, had been rented out temporarily and
the Directors had been actively marketing the unsold properties held
for sale.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
ORI M ST (&)

BREZZZREENA = H L4 E
For the year ended 30 June 2020

18. £k M Bk 18. LOAN RECEIVABLES
ZRRAE —E—JLE
2020 2019
BT T BT T
HKS$’000 HKS$°000
B8 M i R K Loan receivables 1,460 1,516
W S B R Less: Allowance for credit losses (1,460) (1,516)
B M U R TS A K e B o A 2R The loan receivables were unsecured and interest-free. The amounts
MR 2E4EEC 2Ry - were all past due at the end of the reporting period.
WE_E_EFER _FE—JUFENSNH=T Details of impairment assessment of the loan receivables for the
H ok 4F B B0 3 M U 310 T (8 B A 5E year ended 30 June 2020 and 2019 are set out in note 33.

1% #5331 -

19, JCfib 4 ik 9F A B AT K 19. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS AND
PREPAYMENTS
()  B5 B B il R K B A Ak (i)  Trade and other receivables and prepayments
R R R
2020 2019
BT T T
HKS$’000 HK$°000
& 5 JRE U R R Trade receivables 7,953 7,655
WS B R Less: Allowance for credit losses (3,045) (3,161)
4,908 4,494
oAt R - FE R K Other receivables, deposits and
TE A 3K prepayments 19,477 26,100
24,385 30,594
B o ME W IR 345 2k [ fH & 2 FH 4 HE Trade receivables represent rental receivables from tenants
I B 3% HOR R B R A o By which are payable on presentation of invoices. The collection
D B S R R E S is closely monitored to minimise any credit risk associated
JHE B > W BURH 4 % B g R o with these receivables.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

FC il <5 ik 6 52 B A K (a)
@) RSB Il WG 3K B R (A1)

R FAENA=ZHH > H A
Wi R R A B L3 R AN R AT 4R AT
3 R T PR AR SR M B AR 2
JRE Wi B K 530,000 90 (. F — L
A i HE30,00000) > DAL MR AR I R
6.15% ( = F — JULAF © 6.15%) 4 65
WA AEEMYEHERTERZ
FHEERBI0E (ZE—LE
30 H) KA 27 ¥ME S0 5
300 (ZF—JUH : 30H) -

R IR - DIEETE H ) A 3 e iy
25 & ) FE Wi iR 3K 97,953,000 70
(ZF— L%« i %7,6550007C) 31
WA B s 4R T 153,045,000 00 (. F
— JU4F © #5 3,161,000 7T ) 2 HR B4
SHTANR

OH%E30H K 0-30 days

31H ®#60H A 31-60 days

61 F %90 A A 61-90 days

90 H Dk |k More than 90 days

A S [ 7E 2 0 2 A AR R
fravsd o MG EE A A IEEE S FEE
R E % P AR B o B AU
AR BRI E W 2B o

6 8 ¥ R 18 Bt 5% (&)

REZZZRENA = H L4
For the year ended 30 June 2020

19. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS AND
PREPAYMENTS (Continued)

@

Trade and other receivables and prepayments (Continued)

At 30 June 2020, the balance of other receivables include
receivables from home buyers who defaulted on repayment
to banks, representing the loans taken over by the Group,
of which HK$30,000 (2019: HK$30,000) are measured at
amortised cost at an effective interest rate of 6.15% (2019:
6.15%) per annum. The Group allows an average credit
period of 30 days (2019: 30 days) to the buyers in respect of
property sales and 30 days (2019: 30 days) for tenants.

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables of
HK$7,953,000 (2019: HK$7,655,000) net of allowance
for credit losses of HK$3,045,000 (2019: HKS$3,161,000)
presented based on the invoice date at the end of the reporting
period:

ZE R

2020 2019
BT T W T
HKS$000 HK$°000
3,404 3,155

766 92

337 397

401 850

4,908 4,494

Before accepting any new customer, the Group carries out
assessment on the creditability of the new customer and
assesses the potential customer’s credit quality and defines
credit limits by customer. Limits attributed to customers are
reviewed regularly.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
n-ZI' (] :g\—j i‘k B'F IE\ Bﬁ DE (#&)

RE R RENAZTHILEE
For the year ended 30 June 2020

19.

SE-NESFCREEER |

i 4 7 BE P % B K )
() BO5h B U il M R K B A K (A

(ii)

(iii)

W R CZFENH=TH > A4
B2 G HE i R KCf 3 IR T (R
1,731,000 ¢ ( — & — JL4F : %

1,471,000 G ) Z & B #& > 3% K IH iR
WA @EY - RaEgitt > 2
i 1790 K B = IRF [H] vk W 401,000 7T
(ZF—JUF  #7%850,0007T) iIff R
WEED NARAERGFEER
S8 b R 4 BEAT B R 5 A T i [l Y e

7 A2 9 S 40 % 6 45 B 15 A AT T K
EiN

WE R AR R UEAA
=T H IR B 5 R A R U AR
R A5 £ e 45 R A R F 15 B8 R B R
H5331H o

4 JBe JBe 3 Xk

A% R - B - HIRER
ﬁ%%&#x%Zﬁﬁo
BE_F_FFEL_F—LFENH

ZhHIRAERE > I R KR
5 55 M 15 AT Al w9 S50 R A R 5 33
I o

BT 2 W A2 K

JCE) A = A B SR AT s W AF
FE1.65% E2.10% ( — & — JL4F -
1.65% % 3.00%) 2 T 5 4E B H5HE -

BEEF FER T R$A
H:+H¢$F>ﬁ m%ﬁﬁ
%%Eﬁﬂﬁﬁ%ﬁﬂ%%%%%
IH o

J1 4 A FR 2 A

19. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS AND
PREPAYMENTS (Continued)

(@

(i)

(i)

Trade and other receivables and prepayments (Continued)

As at 30 June 2020, included in the Group’s trade receivable
balances are debtors with aggregate carrying amount of
HK$1,731,000 (2019: HK$1,471,000) which are past due at
the reporting date. Out of the past due balances, HK$401,000
(2019: HK$850,000) has been past due 90 days or more and is
not considered as in default as there has not been a significant
change in credit quality and the amounts are still considered
recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral over

these balances.

Details of credit loss assessment of the trade and other
receivables for the year ended 30 June 2020 and 2019 are set
out in note 33.

Amount due from a non-controlling shareholder

The amount is non-trade in nature, unsecured, interest-free

and repayable on demand.

Details of credit loss assessment of the amount due from a
non-controlling shareholder for the year ended 30 June 2020
and 2019 are set out in note 33.

Fixed bank deposits

Fixed bank deposits with original maturity of more than three
months carry interest at market rates ranging from 1.65% to
2.10% (2019: 1.65% to 3.00%) per annum.

Details of credit loss assessment of the fixed bank deposits
for the year ended 30 June 2020 and 2019 are set out in note
33.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

30 fib 4 ik BE A B AT K )

(v) BATHEGEBLE

WRITHB A SEEAEREEZ
B R E 3 A =M H sk b ik =11
HAWIARRA & Z SRATIF R - 8RATHE
% $0.001% 2£.0.30% ( — & — JL4E ¢
0.13% %0.30%) Z 35 4F B3R FHH -

BE_ZT_FFER_F-NFEAA
=+ HIEFEE > RITAEG LB SN
15 B2 s 15 T il 6 1 A A 5 56 33
IH o

B 5 B L Aib A MR 3k

BB EENAZTH B K HAL
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— JL4E ¢ ¥ %5914,000 7C) 2 & 5 ME AT IR
oo FY MR > DLEE LA M L
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19.

20.

0H %E60H A 0-60 days
61 H %90 H 61-90 days
90 H A | Over 90 days

Al A B B A S O 4 4R 4 3K
TE 7 #16,483,000 78 ( & — JL4E
12,172,000 7)) > FE i 3K T 7 54,814,000 7T
(ZF— JUAF « 3 %5991,000 ) K HAth
JRE A T 3k 7 955,413,000 70 (& — JLAE ¢
# 155,820,000 7C) ©

6 8 ¥ R 18 Bt 5% (&)

REZZZRENA = H L4
For the year ended 30 June 2020

OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS AND
PREPAYMENTS (Continued)

(iv) Bank balances and cash

Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by the Group and
deposits with banks which are not restricted in use with the
original maturity of three months or less. Bank balances carry
interest at market rates ranging from 0.001% to 0.30% (2019:
0.13% to 0.30%) per annum.

Details of credit loss assessment of the bank balances and
cash for the year ended 30 June 2020 and 2019 are set out in
note 33.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

At 30 June 2020, the balance of trade and other payables included
trade payables of HK$1,175,000 (2019: HK$914,000). The
following is an aged analysis of trade payables based on the invoice
date at the end of the reporting period:

SRR —E—NAF
2020 2019

W T BT T
HK$°000 HKS$'000
954 868

221 46

1,175 914

The other payables mainly include rental deposits received of
HK$16,483,000 (2019: HK$12,172,000), receipt in advance of
HK$4,814,000 (2019: HK$5,991,000) and other tax payable of
HK$5,413,000 (2019: HK$5,820,000).
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tx OB X R I8 Bft 5% (8)

BREZZZREENA = H L4 E
For the year ended 30 June 2020

21. R R4 21. LEASE LIABILITIES
ZRORAE
2020
BT
HK$’000
HE A H Lease liabilities payable
JE — 4 N R Within one year 1,131
22. #47HX 22. BANK LOAN
ZRORAE
2020 2019
BT VL
HKS$’000 HK$°000
A IEAERAT B K Secured bank loan 99,507 107,759
I A 75 R T Carrying amount repayable
(AR 488 B8 35 T ok o (based on the scheduled repayment
TEEMEEB ) dates set out in the loan agreements):
— R Within one year 3,840 107,759
— A AR AR R A W AR More than one year but not exceeding
two years 3,834 -
T AE 4% B S E 8 T 4R More than two years but not exceeding
five years 91,833 -
99,507 107,759
W c B ik B B A ZE R Less: Amounts due within one year shown
— 4 TR 1 22 FE under current liabilities (3,840) (107,759)
BIAE I i B £ A O Amounts shown under non-current
liabilities 95,667 -

SRAT R DAL R B R 1 3
AT RAT A AR - SRAT B DLW

% S5 FE AR R A o BAT R SE AR B (T 3R

PR ) I E145%( = F— JLAE : 1.45%)
Z RN REE o

SENAEZFDFERER | ENEEARE A

The bank loan is secured by the investment properties situated in
Shanghai, the PRC and certain bank deposits. The bank loan is
denominated in HKS.

The loan carried interest at variable rate of 1.45% (2019: 1.45%)
over Hong Kong Inter-bank Offered Rate (“HIBOR”) per annum.
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REZZZRENA = H L4
For the year ended 30 June 2020

23. JBeA 23. SHARE CAPITAL
Bt 8 H M
Number of shares Amount
BT T
HK$°000
A5 B W 1,000 2 % 3 % 1% 4 Ordinary shares of HK$1.00 each
EE Authorised:
AFE— N ELA—H - At 1 July 2018,
ZE-NEARAZTH R 30 June 2019 and
R RENAZTH 30 June 2020 300,000,000 300,000
CEBIT R - Issued and fully paid:
woE—-AFELH—H At 1 July 2018 225,173,681 225,174
K705 5 JBCHE 2 B A 35 47 Issue of shares upon exercise of
(M) share options (Note) 3,150,000 3,150
AR NEAH=TH At 30 June 2019 228,323,681 228,324
T AR IR 2 S A 3 47 Issue of shares upon exercise of
(Mt at) share options (Note) 9,380,000 9,380
R-Z_REANAZTH At 30 June 2020 237,703,681 237,704
Mt BE_FZ_FESHA=Z+THIEEERN Note: During the year ended 30 June 2020, the Company issued 9,380,000
AN A R HE AT IR 5% 479,380,000 [ ordinary shares (2019: 3,150,000 ordinary shares) of HK$1 each upon
A B (= — JUAE 3,150,000 i exercise of share options. The average exercise price of the share
JB) A B s 1 o0 2 S I o R Y T options during the year was HK$1.33 per share (2019: HK$1.13 per
P AT O A0 T A 45 E A 2 A R R 133 5T share). The new ordinary shares issued in both years rank pari passu
(ZZ— U8 R 11350) - R with the then existing shares in all respects.

I 47 BE BE AT 2 b A e B e B B
A5 T AT [ S A
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For the year ended 30 June 2020

B %L B 0 £ 4 24. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

24.

B A4 S J% 8 B 00 D e e
W2 R AR £ A B

The major deferred tax liabilities recognised by the Group and
movements thereon during the current and prior reporting periods

are as follows:

112

v B Y ) 4 W)
A 43 e i B E
Undistributed
earnings of
PRC Investment
subsidiary properties Total
T T . T T T
HKS$°000 HKS$°000 HKS$°000
W_ZE—/N\FtH—H At 1 July 2018 2,654 319,940 322,594
i 46 T Exchange realignment (111) (13,138) (13,249)
TEBE NI (FFA) Charge (credit) to profit or loss 91 (15,641) (15,550)
ATE—ENHZTH  At30June 2019 2,634 291,161 293,795
Rk Exchange realignment 97) (10,385) (10,482)
e NFEA Credit to profit or loss (6) (29,903) (29,909)
BB RAENAZTH At 30 June 2020 2,531 250,873 253,404

AR CBENH=ZTH AEEAH
F 4 85 R 2 3 A i R 6 B E s 4R 5
e 1205,969,000 76 ( T F — JLAE ¢ ik
191,834,000 7t ) » B 5 fig & A K i £
Wi o WO AT HE R E A BLIE K A - R4 BLIA
T 4 AT 4R BR 0] &5 e -

WZEFZFFEANHA=Z1TH, AEEHA
B % W S 0 T e T R 2 AR A s I
10,122,000 ¢ (41 28 jix A R #9,246,000 7T )
(ZF—JU4F - #¥510,511,000 C) (#H %
N B 9,246,000 75 ) © H A AT B T 038
W IR 25 AR 2 n] P R U R oK RE lE E
AETE > WA S0 IR A B JE A 7 R A% 0T 40 Uk
07 IR 2 B TR -

SE-AEDFDREEER | B OEEARA A

At 30 June 2020, the Group has unused tax losses of
HK$205,969,000 (2019: HK$191,834,000) available for offset
against future profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised due
to the unpredictability of future profit streams. Such tax losses may
be carried forward indefinitely.

At 30 June 2020, the Group has deductible temporary difference
in relation to investment properties of HK$10,122,000 (equivalent
to RMB9,246,000) (2019: HK$10,511,000 (equivalent to
RMB9,246,000)). No deferred tax asset had been recognised in
relation to such deductible temporary difference as it was not
probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary difference can be utilised.
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REZZZRENA = H L4
For the year ended 30 June 2020

9l Y 3 ) BT s A 0 2 MR 25. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

T R FEF AN 4L AT B T E A A The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising

BE > OB NERSEE - BlES from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes.

B Ay A R A B AR U R A 4 1 45 Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for which cash

B BB AR A 4 B2 WG B BT E AR flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s

Bl iR 2 B i BOR AR B A

RoFE—N\E
tH—H
TR RAT B R
B AR
EERKE
B2 A
B E
(Mt 11E)
1) 3 4 1 1% 3
HIRZ B

ST

REE—E
AHZ1H

i M s B
R 16 3E R
i) 3 B

RZ— U
tH—H
()

R R

BRRTHHHE

IR A &

SXpgils)

BEERKE

FE % A

B A
(Ha%115)

EL 1 9 42 R % 3K
Atz A

S

REEZRE
AA=+H

At 1 July 2018

Repayment of bank loan
Interest paid
Dividends declared
Interest expense
Dividends paid
(note 11)
Dividends declared to
a non-controlling
shareholder
Exchange realignment

At 30 June 2019

Adjustment upon application
of HKFRS 16

Asat 1 July 2019 (restated)

New bank loan raised
Repayment of bank loan
Repayment of lease liabilities
Interest paid
Dividends declared
Interest expense
Dividends paid

(note 11)
Dividends paid to

a non-controlling

shareholder
Exchange realignment

At 30 June 2020

consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing
activities.

AR
(B 7E
EiEed o fi M
B34 ¢ 3k W)
Amount Interest
due from payable

non- (included
controlling Bank in other Dividend Lease
shareholder loan payables) payable liabilities Total
BETT  BFFL BETT  BEFTT BETT  EFTL
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000

907 (135,520) (132) - — (134,745)
- 27,761 - - - 27,761
- - 4,081 - - 4,081
- - - (15.983) - (15,983)
- - (4,086) - - (4,086)
- - - 15,983 - 15,983

(574) - - - - (574)

32) - 9 - - (23)
301 (107,759) (128) - — (107,586
_ _ - - (3.428) (3:428)
301 (107,759) (128) - (3428)  (111,014)
- (99,505) - - - (99,505)
- 108,000 - - - 108,000
- - - - 2230 2,230
- - 3215 - 106 3321
- - - (14262) - (14262)
- (244) (3,119) - (106) (3.469)
- - - 14262 - 14262
547 - - - - 547
(11 | 6 - 67 63
837 (99,507) (26) - (1,131) (99,827)
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26.

SR E R REEER

SRR 20 K DA B 2 S 2
%ﬁ

AAFANRZEEFE—F T+ A+ —H K
AR HE B (T20014E5H8 1) - A =&
——AE A JUH AR A F] B A AR
b A B i — TH S R R o At E
B4R HT R B RE ST B (T201014E5F 80 1) > 3%
FHEER F A NH BT
e 7 B ¢ = % ——4F 4 — 3 JLH R UL
2001 4F w1 #) o B 492001 4F 51 # %2011 4F
AR EAERAESR BRERAEERKSH
HHRHLIEE) o

MR 382001 4E 5t #1 K 2011 4E 5 #] > A 2 7
e ] ) AR E) & S A A EE
BB K A&EWMSHEE (FHERHE RN
A E G E) 2T R A A
B0 TRy |) 2 R e ([ w8 JBehE ) - &
J3 03 0 SR A RS R D LR =3 2 8
HOBA R TR RS (ARE
¥EH) FEW A BT H 3k i g 2 Wi s (i)
JBE 43 7 B2 4 % T A0 B R R H B AT A
W2 H AR 2SI R R A 2 Tk
18 5 T (i) B Ay T -

R 5 52 A 51 ) AT 352 7 Wi AT 0 R B AT
B 70 RE B O BB B & B AN\ R it
WEA BRI RESH# % 0 2 B BT IR
10% ° 2 $82011 4F 5F # > 5% 10%40 % i
21,910,368 & 3 5 A A8 2 ) i A 45 i B 1
BT RE O #910% o i 5% 47 6 & & 5
H g B A EHK S HE FEATAT+ R
RIS 3 W R R NN TR e s
W1 B AT A 1% o At B 1l ¥ R AT 47 (8
T RB EME o W] 47 (6 4% T 58 B A 1
AN FEESEEE MR HEAEEEA
BF 2 B#G4E - RZH BN HER
TS ATAE WM 10T o % R0 HE AT
WHEH = VH KR -

W E AN A =+ H > 2001 4w #
Fe2011 45 58 R A A& R %6 C AT
MmN F—JLENA=Z+TH
F2001 4 51 8 2011 4E 5 #1242 H & M
AT Y 5B A A BE B 0 8B o Al A
10,180,000 /B 14 51,000,000 f% 1 » #H 55 it
AN w2001 4F FH# K% 2011 4F 5T #
HHZ TR 4.7% $0.5% ©

7 ) S AR A

26.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES AND SHARE-
BASED PAYMENTS

The Company previously adopted a share option scheme on 21
December 2001 (the “2001 Scheme”). On 9 December 2011, an
ordinary resolution was passed by the shareholders at the annual
general meeting of the Company approving the adoption of a new
share option scheme (the “2011 Scheme”) which will expire on
8 December 2021 and the simultaneous termination of the 2001
Scheme with effect from 9 December 2011. Both the 2001 Scheme
and 2011 Scheme were adopted for the purpose of providing
incentives to Directors, employees and eligible participants.

Under both the 2001 Scheme and 2011 Scheme, the Board of
Directors of the Company may grant share options (“Options”)
to Directors, employees of the Company and its subsidiaries and
such eligible participants at the discretion of the Board of Directors
of the Company pursuant to the terms thereof, to subscribe for
shares of the Company (“Shares”), at a price per Share not less
than the highest of (i) the closing price of a Share as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets on the date of grant of the
relevant Option, which must be a trading day; (ii) the average of
the closing price of a Share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotation sheets for the five trading days immediately preceding the
date of grant of the relevant Option; and (iii) the nominal value of a
Share.

The maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the share option schemes
shall not in aggregate exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the
Company at the date of the adoption of the relevant share option
scheme. Under the 2011 Scheme, such 10% represents 21,910,368
shares, which continue to represent about 10% of the issued share
capital of the Company as at the date of this annual report. No
Director, employee or eligible participant may exercise option(s)
granted to him or her under the share option scheme if such exercise
would result in him or her subscribing for more than 1% of the issued
share capital of the Company as at the date of such new grant in any
12-month period. The option period for which the options granted
are exercisable, shall be such period as notified by the Board of
Directors of the Company, save that it shall not be more than ten
years from the date of grant. A nominal consideration of HK$1 is
payable by the grantee on acceptance of each grant. The offer of a
grant of share options may be accepted within 28 days from the date
of the offer.

As at 30 June 2020, all share options under the 2001 Scheme and
2011 Scheme had been exercised or lapsed. As at 30 June 2019,
the number of Shares in respect of which Options had been granted
and remained outstanding under the 2001 Scheme and the 2011
Scheme were 10,180,000 Shares and 1,000,000 Shares respectively,
representing 4.7% and 0.5% of the Shares in issue as at the date of
approval of the 2001 Scheme and 2011 Scheme.
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26. WBIBEHERNE R DBy B Bkt 2 4 26. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES AND SHARE-

X (4 BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)
™ R EE R REE R The following tables disclose details of the Options:
BE_Z FENA=ZTHILEE Year ended 30 June 2020
AREYSH
Number of Options
R0k 0%
tA-H REER  REER REER AAEEN
glnm BRAKER WY WAL i fitk KM WAL
Exercise Outstanding Granted Exercised Lapsed  Outstanding
price at during during during at
Date of grant per Share  Exercisable period 1 July 2019 the year the year theyear 30 June 2020
bt
HKS$
200143t
2001 Scheme
fx:
Directors:
“E—EtAZFER 13 ZF-—fF+AZHERE
ZZ-NEHAZTNA
25 October 2011 113 25 October 2011 to 24 October 2019 8,380,000 - (8,380,000) - -
g :
Others:
“F-—EtAZtER 13 ZF-—F+AZtERE
“E-LEHASTRA
25 October 2011 11325 October 2011 to 24 October 2019 1,800,000 - - (1,800,000) -
10,180,000 - (8,380,000) (1,800,000) -
IEF I (E )
Weighted average exercise price (HKS) 113 - L13 - -
W4
2011 Scheme
%
Directors:
“Z-RET-ATH 305 ZE-LEt-ATHE
“E-LEHAZTRA
10 November 2015 305 10 November 2015 to 24 October 2019 1,000,000 - (1,000,000) - -
TR #)
Weighted average exercise price (HKS) 3.05 - 303 - -
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26. B IBEHERNE R DBy B Be gt 2 4 26. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES AND SHARE-

X () BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)
BEZ—NEANAZTHIEFE Year ended 30 June 2019
ARHEY R
Number of Options
I3
“E-\E
tA-H REER i REE R MEER A
Rt BRAHEE T WA gt EHE frfl M HATE
Exercise QOutstanding Granted ~ Reclassified Exercised Lapsed QOutstanding
price at during during during during at
Date of grant per Share ~ Exercisable period 1 July 2018 the year the year* the year theyear 30 June 2019
B
HKS$
LS F |
2001 Scheme
[ty
Directors:
“F—FtAZtTEN 13 ZF-—E+AZ4ERES
F-NEFAZHIH
25 October 2011 113 25 October 2011 to 8,150,000 - 4380,000 (3,150,000) (1,000,000) 8,380,000
24 October 2019
b :
Others:
“F—FtAZtTEA 13 ZF-—FtATEAES
F-NEFAZHIH
25 October 2011 113 25 October 2011 to 6,180,000 - (4380,000) - - 1,800,000
24 October 2019
14,330,000 - - (3,150,000) (1,000,000) 10,180,000
PREF-ESAMARMASRRAESEEN R -
* Reclassified upon individuals becoming directors on 4 March 2019.
RERBFR
Exercisable at the end of the year 10,180,000
I (28
Weighted average exercise price (HKS) 113 = = 113 = 113
PVESF |
2011 Scheme
#5:
Directors:
“E-REA-ATH 305 ZF-REI-ATAE
“E- AR
10 November 2015 3.05 10 November 2015 to
24 October 2019 1,000,000 - - - - 1,000,000
RELRFTHE
Exercisable at the end of the year 1,000,000
AP LR (E4)
Weighted average exercise price (HKS) 3.05 = = = - 3.05
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w8 B BE T B B A B B2 A 26. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES AND SHARE-

X (47) BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)
P E T FENHA =T HILERE Options exercised during the year ended 30 June 2020 resulted
N> AT {52 B HE A5 34098 479,380,000 (% in 9,380,000 (2019: 3,150,000) Shares being issued. The related
— JUAE © 3,150,000) & = A B I A AE B weighted average closing price of the Shares immediately before
Fe R B REAT A F HA 2 AT 0 0 RE 7 350k T the dates on which the Options were exercised was HK$10.57 (2019:
18 £ 45 e s 1057 0 ( —F — JU4F - i HK$7.52) per Share.
¥7527C0) -
AR _F——%+HA_+HHE_-ZF For the Options granted on 25 October 2011 and 10 November
—HE+—H T HIZEWORBHE > M 2015, the fair value of each Option determined as at the date of
YA A X 78 9 AR R A 4 s B 2 A7 grant using the binomial option pricing model was HK$0.375 and
{853 5l 27 s W 0.375 70 1% W5 #50.930 TG HK$0.930 respectively.
Bk B # # Ah > #2001 4F 5T 8] & 2011 4F 5T Save as disclosed above, no other option was granted under the
W E R H s A R T A R R - 2001 Scheme and 2011 Scheme since their adoption.
o4 145 27. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
A ) Ay o G — M A TE H A AE The Group has given guarantees in respect of the settlement of
B KRR AT AL B A AR S AR o home loans provided by banks to the home buyers of a property
R CEREANA=ZTH AL R project in Beijing, the PRC. At 30 June 2020, the Group had given
SEYE R AT S 3K A 511,000 T (& — guarantees in respect of such home loans of HK$511,000 (2019:
JUAF - #H01,032,000T) o # FH R A R HK$1,032,000). The Directors consider that the fair values of these
5 BE TS OR B[R] 2 A A A L R financial guarantee contracts at their initial recognition and at the
K > 8O B B RIS R A TR 2 B YRR R end of the reporting period are insignificant on the basis of the low
K B AR 2 AT EIEAEKR - loan to value ratio.
ST 4 B4 O 1Y A5 B0 e 15 48 A4 S I A Details of the credit loss allowance for the given guarantees are set
B 55253374 - out in note 33.
LiNEWR 28. LEASE COMMITMENTS
A4 [ 7 7R L The Group as lessee
RERWAR > AEFEBRHERARAEZY At the end of the reporting period, the Group had total future
ZE T ET 57 S ] SEH 48 45 A1 T A% ok RE £F minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases in
S ARAR B R HAR AR AR respect of rented premises for offices as follows:
—ER U
2019
BT T
HK$°000
A —4E N Within one year 2,752
/S o T SN In the second to fifth year inclusive 1,146
3,898
FHE W o T35 B AW 4F (=& — JU4F + Leases were negotiated for an average term of two years (2019: two
) MHEFEYARZHETIEEMN - years) and rentals were fixed over the term of the leases.
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28. MBEARWE @)
A4 1 2 HLE

o AR AR 4 Mt A R B e T AR BB 4G 6 4
YRR E 2 BB A ST 55
W AR ERE Y 28 82 %
SEFENAZTHIEFEER > FrEti s
AR 4 Wi A 5 s 3,779,000 06 (& —
JUAE 5 55,346,0000C) ©

BrA R A H B Y SEE RAR — BN
FERYE R

FEL B i 9 o R A B AR sk R

4N
TR B 4R
R = AR
TP 5 DU 4F
T 5R TLAF
AR

REHRPR > DT EE SRS

28. LEASE COMMITMENTS (Continued)
The Group as lessor

Contingent rental income was calculated based on the excess of
certain percentage of revenue of the relevant operation of the lessees
who occupied certain of the properties over the fixed portion of the
monthly rentals. Contingent rental income earned during the year
ended 30 June 2020 is HK$3,779,000 (2019: HK$5,346,000).

All of the properties held for rental purposes have committed
lessees for the next one to six years.

Minimum lease payments receivable on leases are as follows:

SRR

2020

T T

HK$’000

Within one year 67,851
In the second year 26,519
In the third year 10,909
In the fourth year 5,560
In the fifth year 2,991
After five years 1,708
115,538

At the end of the reporting period, the following assets were rented

out under operating leases:

R TRAE ZE—JLF

2020 2019

BT T W IEF T

HKS$’000 HKS$°000

HEY Investment properties 1,263,081 1,651,738
rEYE Properties held for sale _ 12,845
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28. BLERWE @) 28. LEASE COMMITMENTS (Continued)

AL B E ()

The Group as lessor (Continued)

A 52 1 L SR RN 6T DL I A e

The Group had contracted with lessees for the following future

A ZEN AR - minimum lease payments:
—F—E
2019
15T oT
HK3$°000
A —F N Within one year 78,762
FASE B HAER In the second to fifth year inclusive 72,564
FAELL B Over five years 5,701
157,027

29, 3B AR A 29. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

() R FERELZH—HH o A (a)  Prior to 1 December 2000, the Group operated a defined

W J BT AR R B S
7E PR PR A R EE# (758 52 Bk
et B 1) o FE ORI E 2 &
JEE B S 2 RE R A B > Sl B AR AR
B S B AR o i T (R 2R
IS 2 M IR R E iR
PREEE] > JIAR 4R 1 T DL B R
T AR A 42 F H AR 2 it e

HoZFRTAEL ZH—HlE» &4E
P % oz R A e D o ARE SEROR K
Al 2 B TA A — Rk 2 s
R L R e R ) SR P B 2
wEB o o R B R COAR B 0 A
4w Bk i 1 5 R R RS GE
i o 58 B Bl ) 2 S %S
M B AR 4R 2 K o) B R
Mo AR PR R AR B Rt B RO > B E K
FCAR B 2 5l 28 45 B 5T B 2 bl R AR
H PR o Sl ST AT ik S 48 AT 4
E R BARA M B AR -

contribution retirement benefits scheme (“Defined
Contribution Scheme”) for its qualifying Directors and
employees in Hong Kong. The assets of the Defined
Contribution Scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in funds under the control of an independent trustee.
Where there are Directors and employees who leave the
Defined Contribution Scheme prior to vesting fully in the
contributions, the amount of the forfeited contributions will
be used to reduce future contributions payable by the Group.

Effective from 1 December 2000, the Group has set up a
MPF Scheme. Members of the Defined Contribution Scheme
were given one-time option to choose to transfer to the
MPF Scheme or remain in the existing scheme. The MPF
Scheme is registered with the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Authority under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance. The assets of the MPF Scheme are
held separately from those of the Group in funds under the
control of an independent trustee. Under the rules of the MPF
Scheme, the employer and its employees are each required
to make contributions to the scheme at rates specified in the
rules. No forfeited contributions are available to reduce the
contribution payable in the future years by the employer.
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29.

30.

SE-AEDFREEER | 2

AR A G )
(H) (#47)

Hﬂﬁnz#&#ki%ﬁi?r%ﬂ&?ﬁ%é?r%ﬂ
17 5 | B0 18 4 7 Al R A 2R PR AR w5
B > T AR 42 % % 4 st S BB
FT B 2 Ll SR AR A K o

1@ B B & ik 5 7 A OB pRt 1
%21 O A AR R Y S s
TG > w4k A AT AR IR A A 4 AR 4
afﬁrm1 OB ARG B TR R A AE
JBE A A 3K -

(&) MY B Bk 5] oA A > A B
J& A F B A A R R R L R
Il E Hb B RLRE - 43 Bl RT IR 3 4
Z.20% 9% - AE B 3R R AR A 5 E R
B2 55 A AR BB RAE A ALK o

ﬁ\$$ A 3B AR AR 0 563,000
JG (= F — JUAE - {%%‘4}‘748,00077:) B st A

%ﬁﬁéﬂqo

¥

W Bt G 565 27 JE BT 48 5% A 4 R AR AT R T
#HTERZAEF S HO 4 2 R
AL H IR B H R AT A7 3R %5 1,039,000

JC (& — LA ¢ 5 12,849,000 70 ) FiE 7
TRAT - 4’5#%%@5%%’%2%&%&?
R Z A G oo fF T 35030% (%
— JLAF 1 030%) Z TR E) AR E RS A
@ﬁ&(i)?&tﬂ%i&%%ﬂu&wEﬁ%%a
T RAT 5 K GiE R E R R AE R
PR (LAHT & 2 ) R R IR -

R EZEENAZTH REFD M
SRATHCH 7 AP B e H
T (E £ W 15798,082,000 70 ( & — JL
A 918,536,000 T ) A5 TR AT &S AR
J SR AT A7 3 %%319600075 —FE -
A #E10,216,000 00 ) 5 EE R I E W

B ﬁﬂéuﬂz)\&tﬂ’*rﬂﬁ 3 DA R HE
AEEMPAEBEBRAERA R (AL HE
M) e 4 W HE A BB 2 7)) 100% 1% HE RE 4
Z ey uﬁﬁ%%%ZK%@*ﬂ&ﬁﬁ“‘
oo GRATHE AN &5 BR 12 3.98% (ZFE— JLAF ¢
453%) ZFBRFE -

J1 4 A FR 2 A

29.

30.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES (Continued)
(a)  (Continued)

The retirement benefits scheme contributions arising from
the Defined Contribution Scheme and the MPF Scheme
recognised in profit or loss represent contributions payable
to the funds by the Group at rates specified in the rules of the
schemes.

There are no forfeited contributions in both years which arose
upon employees leaving the Defined Contribution Scheme
and which are available to reduce the contributions payable
by the Group under the Defined Contribution Scheme in the
future years.

(b)  According to the relevant laws and regulations in the
PRC, the PRC subsidiary and joint venture are required to
contribute 20% and 9% of the stipulated salary set by the
Beijing and Shenzhen local governments, respectively, to the
retirement benefits schemes to fund the retirement benefits of
their employees.

During the year, the retirement benefits scheme contributions
recognised in profit or loss are HK$563,000 (2019: HK$748,000).

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

In addition to the guarantees given by the Group for home loans
provided by banks to certain buyers as disclosed in note 27, the
Group has also pledged its bank deposits of HK$1,039,000 (2019:
HK$2,849,000) to banks to secure such home loans granted to the
home buyers. The deposits carry floating interest rate of 0.30%
(2019: 0.30%) per annum on average and will be released upon the
earlier of (i) issuance of the real estate ownership certificate and the
relevant property pledged to the bank; and (ii) the full repayment of
mortgage loan by the home buyers.

At 30 June 2020, the Group had pledged its investment properties
situated in Shanghai, the PRC, with a carrying amount of
HK$798,082,000 (2019: HK$918,536,000), certain bank balances
and bank deposits of HK$3,196,000 (2019: HK$10,216,000),
an assignment of rental and sale proceeds from the investment
properties and a charge over share in respect of the Group’s 100%
equity interest in Move On International Limited, an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, to the bank to secure
general banking facilities granted to the Group. The pledged bank
deposits carry interest rate of 3.98% (2019: 4.53%) per annum.
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BLAT BB E 2 RS 31. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
W A 45 A B B AR TE LA B 4 BT B BR Other than those disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial
A AL B BB A RRAFEERNE statements, during the year, the Group has entered into the following
BRI Y transactions with related companies:
TR ORAE —ER U
2020 2019
T VE T
HKS$’000 HK$°000
2 R AL B A Rental income received 742 324
B i HoAth g A Other income received 450 450
& &G E S Interest expenses on lease liabilities 106 =
FEATH A B S Expenses relating to short-term leases 206 -
FEE oINS Operating lease expenses - 2,649
C A 45 3 # Management fee expenses 2,888 1,767
EL AT R M s 22 Consultancy service fees paid 2,200 2,200
EENRALE = Agency fees paid 692 727
[EROE 3 Salaries paid 408 _
ATE EER E—JLENHAZT Other outstanding balances with the following related companies,
H > N30 BB A R 2 A R 1E = A B which are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand at 30
(%55 AT B MK AT~ o B R JH e B3R Iy June 2020 and 2019 are as follows:
) WHln R -
ZRORAE
2020 2019
BT B For
HK$’000 HK$’000
fifi F O Right-of-use assets 1,067 _
HEAE Lease liabilities 1,131 -
AN H A R YRR S 2 Deposits due from related companies
R A 4 4 KK included in other receivables 515 515
A A B Wi R 3K 2 Amounts due from related companies
H BB A | KR included in other receivables 1,540 2,548
AR A Ath B A AR R 2 Amounts due to related companies included
KA BN 7 308 in other payables 3,351 1,847
I e I LR Rk Amount due from a non-controlling
shareholder 837 301
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31.

32.
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31.

32.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

The related companies are companies controlled by certain
Directors.

The Group’s key management personnel are all Directors, details of
their remuneration are disclosed in note 9(a).

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged

from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which
includes the bank loan as disclosed in note 22, net of cash and cash
equivalents and equity attributable to owners of the Company,
comprising issued share capital, retained profits and other reserves.

The Directors review the capital structure periodically. As part of
this review, the Directors review annual budgets taking into account
the provision of funding. Based on the operating budgets, the
Directors consider the cost of capital and the risks associated with
each class of capital and balance its overall capital structure through
the payment of dividends, new share issues as well as the issue of
new debt or the redemption of existing debt.
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

()

Categories of financial instruments

—F_%F
2020

SE U
2019
0T T
HKS$°000

#W T
HK$°000

g N0 Financial assets

DL 6 A B o 00 4 K Financial assets at amortised cost 512,899 498,303
4 4% Financial liabilities

&Y B AR Amortised cost 131,762 140,857

(&) 4 b ol B 452U H B2 % 800K

AEMPMEEEM TAGQEGE
R HHEWIRR > B 5 K
At B iR AR o T BB RBOR K
SRAT AT A7 3K B SRAT E WA
SATH R R Bl - 5 KO A RE A
Bk SRAT SR R A 1R %
o B2 A A TR 2 RE N B ER
B B Sk R BHLEZ4F Bl T EL R B Y
By B4 T 3 A B (R PR JaL B A A
B A5 B R B A B E R
B o NI B T A R e g R S
JE B B BUSRE © A% S T B A B
W K% S T > DA £ % IR A A

A A T 2 % <6 e U By L A B
it 72 L By 7 2B A AR BE IO A 43
W o

e

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include amount
due from a joint venture, loan receivables, trade and other
receivables, amount due from a non-controlling shareholder,
pledged bank deposits and fixed bank deposits, bank balances
and cash, trade and other payables, bank loan and long-term
rental deposits received. Details of these financial instruments
are disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with
these financial instruments include market risk (currency
risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The
policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
The management of the Group manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented

on a timely and effective manner.

There has been no change to the Group’s exposure to
these kinds of risks or the manner in which it manages and
measures the risks from the prior year.
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33. T H ) 33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
() 4w be 4% P H BE B WOoR (47) (b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)
U Market risk
0 RS (i) Currency risk
ALEFETH T LANESE The Group undertakes certain transactions
2385y o A AR B 7K 2 41 B denominated in foreign currencies, which expose the
JE B o AL H B AR A AN Group to foreign currency risk. The Group currently
B BOR o R ALEEE does not have a foreign currency hedging policy.
P g o W B AR A A B Y S However, the management of the Group regularly
N R e R S monitors the Group’s foreign exchange exposure and
i 3 P E R A1 LB will consider hedging significant foreign exchange

exposure should the need arise.

AEEMUSN KT A BHE The carrying amount of the Group’s foreign currency

E R AR (R E A RAT denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities

B0 ARG HIREE MR (mainly include bank loan) at the reporting date are as
follows:

R RAE
2020 2019
W T BT oT
HKS$’000 HKS$°000
< g3 Assets

s HK$ 22,720 3,109
EEAE -4 United States dollars (“US$”) 9,863 9,524
JoE ([ Hem% ) Pound Sterling (“GBP”) 2,122 1,852

i Liabilities
ki HK$ 102,302 110,614
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(Z) 4 ol b 4% P H BE B B0 (4 () Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)
7 353 L B () Market risk (Continued)
@) BHE g () (i) Currency risk (Continued)
R FE 43 A Sensitivity analysis

T EFEL N R T £
J6 B o 85 TH(E 5K R IE 5% (=
F—JUHE 5%) BAREE 2
TR E o 5% ( & — JLAF ¢
5%) S JF il R A RK B R
7 HE g A I T R A 2 AT
Ae 8 W) 2 BEAG o R A b
1863 5 1 R i B 2 DA AN HE ST
Bz &WIEE - 3 E R 5
5% (= F—JLF : 5%) ¥t
R 2 MR R

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to
a 5% (2019: 5%) increase or decrease in RMB against
HKS, US$ and GBP. 5% (2019: 5%) is the sensitivity
rate used which represents management’s assessment
of the reasonably possible change in foreign
exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes
only outstanding foreign currencies denominated
monetary items and adjusts their translation at the end
of the reporting period for a 5% (2019: 5%) change
in foreign currency rates. A positive number below
indicates a decrease in post-tax loss for the year

™ 3CRT A IE B R H N R (2019: increase in post-tax profit for the year) where
S B A 1Y BEE SR (B 5% (= RMB strengthen 5% (2019: 5%) against the relevant

T —JL4E 1 5%) > ZAEEW
Bl A% e 45 380 (% — L4
A P B AR W ARG ) o A AR
WS B AR 5% (&
— JUAE © 5%) > JI i A AR
BE 1 B AR T P R R SE AR 2 A

B N A& R IE S A
B o

currencies. For a 5% (2019: 5%) weakening of RMB
against the relevant currencies, there would be an
equal and opposite impact on the post-tax profit for the
year and the balances below would be negative.

KRR E
Effect on profit or loss
TR R XL
2020 2019
BYTIL T T

HK$’000 HKS$°000
ki HKS$ 2,984 4,031
F& US$ (370) (357)
ek GBP (80) (70)

LGRS BUREE AR
REF 3R 18 A A0 B - B A
A R BB Al A AR B 4 TR
JE g o

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange risk
as the year end exposure does not reflect the exposure
during the relevant years.
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33. T H )

(&) 4 ih o B 45 2L H B2 B BOOR (A7)

17 55 8 B (4)

(i)

EY

s e RN R (s g
W I [ 7 A 2 ERAT A7 3R (LT
FESE19TEANEN) KA E AR (A
B 5% 521 TE AN 6 ) o A 4E [ R
T B B 5 9 o ) R g >
WS ) R R R AT R (B
S 55 22 TE AN £ ) ¥ 199,507,000 7T
(= —JLAF ¢ ¥ %107,759,000
JG) o A5 A [ B4 i R 3R
JE B T B AR o A A A [ DL s
JUREIME W15 305 Y SRAT 45
T A s SR AT ] S 47 5 A 5 1 i
By o B A ERAT A7 3K T B 4
A7 30 B BRAT 5 B 00 R S B A
R o BT DAERAT 77 3K B 4R AT &5 ik
) 1) 25 JE e 4 R s AN K o T
) ] SR ERAT B BB K
Wi — 4 5 =48 o Bl e
R R ST BT o AREFEH
T STE7 40 ) 52 3 o B SR 5 AR -
I B A R R A )
RE > MR TR E RS EE I E K
) Jag o

BURE 73 AT

T B U BE 4 A T AR B 2
W AWM IEMLETE R
SATHER KA MEE - A
BT B R SRR AT K MR
Ho A3 B W6 TS AR R 2 R R
HHEREBEEERN S —H
5 8 #2 o 4 100 55 B (—
F—JLAE 1005 B ) | F ok
25 KL M ( F — JUAFE 25 3
) N Bk R B R R 1
A AT Re A B 1 BEAL o

TEBEER | ZHEBARLFA

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk
in relation to fixed-rate bank deposits (see note 19 for
details) and lease liabilities (see note 21 for details).
The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate
risk primarily in relation to variable-rate bank loan
(see note 22 for details) amounting to HK$99,507,000
(2019: HK$107,759,000). The Group’s cash flow
interest rate risk is mainly concentrated on the
fluctuation of interest rates on bank balances and
HIBOR arising from the Group’s Hong Kong dollar
denominated borrowings. The interest rate risk of
bank deposits and bank balances are considered
insignificant as the bank deposits are substantially
short-term deposits and fluctuation in interest rate
of bank balances is limited. The variable-rate bank
loan with original maturity instalments range from
one year to three years. An increase in interest rates
would increase interest expenses. The Group currently
does not have interest rate hedging policy, however,
management monitors interest rate exposure on a
dynamic basis and will consider hedging significant
interest rate exposure should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for non-
derivative instruments, excluding bank deposits and
bank balances, at the end of the reporting period.
For variable-rate bank loan, the analysis is prepared
assuming the amount of financial instruments
outstanding at the end of the reporting period was
outstanding for the whole year. A 100 basis points
(2019: 100 basis points) increase or a 25 basis points
(2019: 25 basis points) decrease is used as it represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible
change in interest rates.
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

If interest rates had been 100 basis points (2019:
100 basis points) higher or 25 basis points (2019:
25 basis points) lower and all other variables were
held constant, the Group’s loss for the year ended
30 June 2020 would increase by HK$995,000
(2019: decrease in profit by HK$1,078,000) or
decrease by HK$249,000 (2019: increase in profit
by HK$269,000). This is mainly attributable to the
Group’s net exposure to interest rates on its variable-
rate bank loan.

Credit risk and impairment assessment

As at 30 June 2020, the Group’s maximum exposure to credit

risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due to

failure to discharge an obligation by the counterparties and

financial guarantees provided by the Group is arising from:

the carrying amount of the respective recognised
financial assets as stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position; and

the amount of contingent liabilities in relation to
financial guarantees issued by the Group as disclosed

in note 27.

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to amount

due from a non-controlling shareholder, amount due from a

joint venture, pledged bank deposits and fixed bank deposits,

bank balances, loan receivables, trade and other receivables

and financial guarantee contracts.
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Trade and other receivables

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible for determination
of credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover
overdue debts. In this regard, the Directors consider that the
Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced. In addition, the
Group performed impairment under ECL model on the trade

balances based on provision matrix.

For trade and other receivables, the Group has applied
the simplified approach in HKFRS 9 to measure the
loss allowance at lifetime ECL. Except for debtors with
significant outstanding balances or credit impaired, the Group
determines the expected credit losses on these items by using
a provision matrix, grouped by ageing analysis.

The Group’s concentration of credit risk by geographical
location is in the PRC. Other than concentration of credit risk
on liquid funds and by geographical location, the Group does
not have any other significant concentration of credit risk.
Trade receivables consist of a large number of customers,
spreading across diverse counterparties.

During the year ended 30 June 2020 and 2019, no allowance
of credit losses on trade and other receivables is provided
based on the ECL assessment as the amount is considered
insignificant.
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Loan receivables

For loan receivables, the Group measures the loss allowance
at lifetime ECL. At 30 June 2020, the Group provided
HK$1,460,000 (2019: HK$1,516,000) impairment allowance
for loan receivables, in the view of the low credit quality of

the borrowers.

Amount due from a non-controlling shareholder/amount due

from a joint venture

For amounts due from a joint venture and a non-controlling
shareholder, the Group measures the loss allowance equal to
12m ECL. The Group applies internal credit risk management
to assess whether credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition, in which case the Group recognises
lifetime ECL. The credit risk on these balances is limited
considering the credit quality of the counterparties and the
loss given default being minimal due to low loan to value
ratio given the fair value of assets backing repayment of the
loan. Therefore, no allowance of credit losses is made on
these balances due to ECL being immaterial.

Bank deposits/bank balances

The credit risks on Group’s pledged bank deposits, fixed
bank deposits and bank balances are limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit-ratings assigned by
international credit-rating agencies or state-owned banks in
the PRC.

During the year ended 30 June 2020 and 2019, no allowance
of credit losses on fixed bank deposits and bank balances
is provided based on the ECL assessment as the amount is
considered insignificant.
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Financial guarantee contracts

For financial guarantee contracts, the gross carrying amount
represents the maximum amount the Group has guaranteed
under the respective contracts.

The Group has provided guarantees to banks in connection
with the customers’ borrowing of mortgage loans to finance
their purchase of the properties for an amount up to 70% of
the purchase price of the individual property. If a purchaser
defaults on the payment of its mortgage loan during the
period of guarantee, the bank holding the mortgage may
demand the Group to repay the outstanding loan and any
interest accrued thereon. Under such circumstances, the
Group is able to resell the repossessed properties. Therefore,
management considers it would recover any loss incurred
arising from the guarantee to the customers.

During the year ended 30 June 2020 and 2019, no allowance
of credit losses on financial guarantee contracts is provided
based on the ECL assessment as the amount is considered

insignificant.

Based on the ECL assessment, the credit exposures for all
the financial assets, which are subject to ECL assessment, are
considered as low risk because the counterparties have a low
risk of default and does not have material past-due amounts.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

The Group’s internal credit risk grading assessment

comprises the following categories:

W A fik B 50 MR 3% ENEC e R
Internal credit rating Description Trade receivables Other financial assets and other item
B Rk ZREFHENRRE TEREMENIE  2WENGRER- 12f8 A BB S R
EfEEHE
Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of default and Lifetime ECL - 12m ECL
does not have any past-due amounts not credit-impaired
BEAE EHAERETHH ZHR EHENEEER- DA GRS
HEFRARUEH EEERE
Watch st Debtor frequently repays after due dates Lifetime ECL - 12m ECL
but usually settle in full not credit-impaired
Tt A8 A A R DA EWERERER- BN RER-
RERREKEEM EfFEHE EREHE
Doubtful There have been significant increases in credit risk since ~ Lifetime ECL - Lifetime ECL -
initial recognition through information developed not credit-impaired not credit-impaired
internally or external resources
B ARRENERCBERERE EHENEEESR- EHEHERER-
REHE R
Loss There is evidence indicating the asset is Lifetime ECL - Lifetime ECL -
credit-impaired credit-impaired credit-impaired
i ARERMEHABAERFRE R MAZIR LD
742 0 9 R
Write-off There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in severe  Amount is written off Amount is written off

financial difficulty and the Group has no realistic
prospect of recovery
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For the year ended 30 June 2020
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External

credit
rating

It 55
2020
5 B 90 A T Bk A R

Financial assets at amortised cost

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

The tables below detail the credit risk exposures of the
Group’s financial assets and contract assets, which are
subject to ECL assessment:

RED 1218 H e 2817
fREEEs s I v 48 ¥

Internal Gross
credit carrying
rating 12m or Lifetime ECL amount
YT
HKS$’000

BEANFE RN 16 AW RERR 1240 A T (5 s 11
Amount due from a joint 16 N/A Low risk 12m ECL
venture 220,448
B IUIR R 18 AER EHE SR Bl 1 — (5 SR
Loan receivables 18 N/A Loss Lifetime ECL — credit-impaired 1,460
H ) REUUIREK 19 NER ARERR ST UIAR B 1R — I AF R
Trade receivables 19 N/A Low risk Lifetime ECL — not credit-impaired 4,170
WA 2MEHE A E I AR E
Watch list  Lifetime ECL — not credit-impaired 337
175E S TEUIAR BT 1R — I AF R
Doubtful Lifetime ECL — not credit-impaired 401
JEiE 2 BT 5 R 1R — 15 AT
Loss Lifetime ECL — credit-impaired 3,045
HAt R ISR R 19 AW ARERR 1241 A TE (5 Sl 11
Other receivables 19 N/A Low risk 12m ECL 3,111
T FE B B SRR K 19 NER ARERR 124 7 S5 S 1R
Amount due from anon- 19 N/A Low risk 12m ECL 837
controlling shareholder
SRATAE AR MERIT AR 19430 Baa3F A2 A7 1218 A BHfE SRR
Bank deposits and bank 19 & 30 Baa3 to A2 N/A 12m ECL 283,470
balances
JfbEH
Other item
WMBHERG 4 27 AEH ARERR 1240 7 B 5 S
Financial guarantee 27 N/A Low risk 12m ECL 511
contracts
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

33. &M T H @)

(&) 4 ih o B 45 2L H B2 B BOOR (A7)

1 18 B A0 WL A ()

ZR s

2019

0 B Y AN i G O 5

Financial assets at amortised cost

BB 16

Amount due from a joint 16
venture

B RE R 3K 18

Loan receivables 18

B 5 e B 19

Trade receivables 19

HoAth R iR K 19

Other receivables 19

T FE JBe HBE TR 3 19

Amount due from anon- 19
controlling shareholder

SBATAR L RATRER 19530

Bank deposits and bank 19 & 30
balances

HAbX¥H

Other item

BRI A X 27

Financial guarantee 27

contracts

6 8 ¥ R 18 Bt 5% (&)

REZZZRENA = H L4
For the year ended 30 June 2020

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

shis
ST

External

b
fr A

Internal

121 H 504 B TE
fF R A T A8

Gross
credit

credit carrying

12m or Lifetime ECL amount
BT
HK3$°000

rating

rating

M RERR 1241 H I (E ks 1R
N/A Low risk 12m ECL 215,712
AER EHE 2 BT S R 1R — 15 AT
N/A Loss Lifetime ECL — credit-impaired 1,516
M ARERR 2 BT S 0 1 — A5 R (E
N/A Low risk Lifetime ECL — not credit-impaired 3,359
WREAE 2B SEE - REREREE
Watch list ~ Lifetime ECL — not credit-impaired 446
175E 2 BT S 0 1 — A5 AR (E
Doubtful Lifetime ECL — not credit-impaired 689
JEitE 2 BT S R 1R — 15 I
Loss Lifetime ECL — credit-impaired 3,161
AER KRR 124 H (5 S 1R
N/A Low risk 12m ECL 4,217
AER KRR 124 H (5 S 1R
N/A Low risk 12m ECL 301
Baa3 £ A2 A 121 A EAE SosE
Baa3 to A2 N/A 12m ECL 273,453
AEA KRR 1241 H (5 S 1R
N/A Low risk 12m ECL 1,032
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

tx OB X R I8 Bft 5% (8)

BREZZZREENA = H L4 E
For the year ended 30 June 2020

33. &M T H @)

(&) 4 ih o B 45 2L H B2 B BOOR (A7)

1 18 B A0 WL A ()

RoZFFENA=ZTH > AL
43 7 5 8y I SRR T B B R W TR
K I s 3,045,000 0 (& — JU
A i 3,161,00070) J i 1 1,460,000
JG (=& — JUAF © 5 1,516,000 T )
HIfE Bk BB - R B FEN
A= H o AR O 13,045,000 0T
(ZF—JU - W %3,161,0000T) K &
R A B S s 1,460,000 78 (% —
JUAE + 5 1,516000 70 ) #4415 &
WA -

AR AR 5 AL 7 et B 5 R i
R T A R B 4 0 U MR B ks 1R A2
) -

BoF— LR
3 4 8

RERZREAA=ZTH

TRBUR T TR 2 B BB BUR K
M =M R RN 2 -

RE-F—-NFLA—H
HE % 38 4

REZZRIEANAZTH
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

As at 30 June 2020, the Group provided HK$3,045,000 (2019:
HK$3,161,000) and HK$1,460,000 (2019: HK$1,516,000)
allowance of credit losses on trade receivables and loan
receivables, respectively. Trade receivables of HK$3,045,000
(2019: HK$3,161,000) and loan receivables of HK$1,460,000
(2019: HK$1,516,000) are considered to be credit-impaired as
at 30 June 2020.

The following table shows the movement in lifetime ECL that
has been recognised for trade receivables under simplified
approach.

2 FH A R R
s B W)
Lifetime ECL

(credit-
impaired)
BT T
HKS$°000

At 1 July 2019
Exchange adjustment

3,161
(116)

At 30 June 2020 3,045

The following table shows the movement in lifetime ECL
that has been recognised for the loan receivables.

2 300 U014 £ 0 1R
(f 5 Wi Ai)
Lifetime ECL

(credit-

impaired)
BT T
HKS$°000

At 1 July 2019
Exchange adjustment

1,516
(56)

At 30 June 2020 1,460




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

33. T H )

(2) 4 ih ol b 45 B0 H BE R BOR (47

1 18 A 6 A0 o AL A ()

5 30 BB A IR e R Y (L s 4 S
1wmmngiéh$ 7 41,516000
) BELHE 1A AR BH 2 W %K 1,460,000 TG
ZFE U - #R15160007T) B B
/T)\JELUIB& ﬁ%ﬁ

i ) 5 2 B

T2 PR B Ja B O T > AR SR
BERETAERBESEREEFHEZ K
o DU 24 B R R DARE A A
I ZEH > kD B R E) 2
%%m¥omﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁhﬁﬁz
TS UL > AR T B RA -

T RS A A B 2 JR A A A A R
Tl 5 %) 72 B HATE DL o 5% R DA AL
I LRV R I A AR R
Filt 5 22 oK U B0 3 4 O o A Y o

% 3% [F) AL 45 AL B R A 4 Bl &
B o AE A BB B AR A
oy RMBEEIR A AL R R
IR 2 B SE 47 B0 HE -3 R
B2 RO EMEAM -

REE—JUAE R ZF ZRIERNA =
+H $%@%ﬂ7%ﬁ%kﬁt
M6 3K 8 I B R o SRAT BT R R H A
FERT A 4 S A B0 TG 1 4 E
3 A

x © 81 ¥ B 18 BiY 5E (a)

BRE R RENAZTHILEE
For the year ended 30 June 2020

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

The impairment loss of HK$1,460,000 (2019: HK$1,516,000)
recognised on the loan receivables is related to the loan
receivables with gross carrying amount of HK$1,460,000
(2019: HK$1,516,000).

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group’s
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows. The management monitors the utilisation of bank loan
and ensures compliance with loan covenants.

The following tables detail the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The tables
have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of
financial liabilities based on the earliest period on which the

Group can be required to pay.

The tables include both interest and principal cash flows.
To the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the
undiscounted amount is derived from the weighted average
interest rate by reference to the HIBOR of the Group’s
variable-rate financial liabilities at the end of the reporting
period.

As at 30 June 2019 and 2020, the Group does not have term
loan with repayment on demand clause. The maturity dates
for bank loan and other non-derivative financial liabilities is

prepared based on the scheduled repayment dates.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
SO ERIBME (&)

BREZZZREENA = H L4 E
For the year ended 30 June 2020

33. T H ) 33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(Z) AP B 4s P H B B BOR (42) (b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)
it ) B £ b K (AT Liquidity risk (Continued)
B G B A Liquidity risk tables

#
R0RE

i IR b —-& ZHA AWBEE  AN=TE
FHNE  PR—HA =R -k TAERE  GERAE MR
Weighted  On demand Total Carrying
average  or less than 13 3 months Over5 undiscounted  amount at

interest rate 1 month months to 1 year years years years  cash flows 30 June2020
% #WTT #TL BFTL #WTo #FTr #WTL #fTr #WT
% HE$’000 HK$000 HE$000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HKS$’000 HK$000 HK$’000

“ETRE

2020

EUYE

Trade and other payables - 10,750 2,709 9,718 - - - 3177 23,17

BRI PR AR

Bank loan - variable rate * 1.89 158 1,314 4,386 5,782 93,568 - 105,208 99,507

Rl ERS

Long-term rental deposits - - - - 6,572 2342 164 9,078 9,078

A

Lease liabilities 510 11 2 553 - - - 1,188 1,131
11,119 4447 14,657 12,354 95910 164 138,651 132,893

B IR A

Financial guarantee contracts - 51 - - - - - 51 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
RO RIBM T (&)

REZZZRENA = H L4
For the year ended 30 June 2020

33. T H ) 33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(Z) AP B 4s P H B B BOR (42) (b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)
it ) B £ b K (AT Liquidity risk (Continued)
It B B 2 (4 Liquidity risk tables (Continued)

it

~
il BB B HRRE AA=TH
e SR % 5 EENL  REAR R

Weighted  On demand Total Carrying

average or less than 3 months 2-5 OverS  undiscounted amount at
interest rate 1 month months to | year years  cashflows  30June2019
#HTr BRI ERTr ERTr ERTr EWTr BT BT

HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000

SRR
2019
B B sk
Trade and other payables - 7807 1,993 8,123 - - - 17,923 17923
R TR AR
Bank loan - variable rate * 3.98 358 2,710 108,754 = = = 111,822 107,759
Rtk
Long-term rental deposits - - - - 10,795 4209 171 15,175 15,175
8,165 4703 116,877 10,795 4209 171 144920 140,857
BB IR a4
Financial guarantee contracts - 1,032 - - - - - 1,032 -
= A AR T Y LB A RN S o R < For the Group’s interest bearing borrowings, weighted
T35 R B AR R HE T2 04 [ 2E 4R average interest rate represents the weighted average of
B b 1.45% (=& — JL4F W HIBOR plus 1.45% (2019: HIBOR plus 1.45%).

Pr B _£145%) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
n-ZI' (] :g\—j i‘k B'F IE\ Bﬁ DE (#&)

RE R RENAZTHILEE
For the year ended 30 June 2020

33. T H )

(2) 4 ih ol b 45 B0 H BE R BOR (47

(W)

=z

SR CRERAER | E

i ) BF £ B (7

bl P B AR A R
P ORI 22 o 3 F AR > ASR M 3%
fih ik T B ST A AR AR K IH Y Foe
SR - RIEEBRIMAREMY > AL
P R 2% AR K AT B B 5 4 W o S AT AT
AT 3K IE o SR Lﬁﬂ@ix%ﬂ
TR R B AT RETE T A T -
ﬁ%%?%ﬁa%%%%ﬁ@Wf
3205 Bl H > AT R R A AT
REVE &K -

L 2R AT A R R Y A B B R U)K
il S B ] Al (B A AE 22 5 > Ui e
A A TR bt & R8RS 3% A 48
it o

A THZ AP
EREE R e AR A T ERE

T PR Ay 2 (B AR A NI 4 Ul B B
Ui 0 A E

HEED S o AR B BRI A T R

2 4 A % A B B G A E
FEARA o

7 ) S AR A

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The amounts included above for financial guarantee contracts
are the maximum amounts the Group could be required to
settle under the arrangement for the full guaranteed amount if
that amount is claimed by the counterparty to the guarantee.
Based on expectations at the end of the reporting period,
the Group considers that it is more likely than not that no
amount will be payable under the arrangement. However, this
estimate is subject to change depending on the probability
of the counterparty claiming under the guarantee which is a
function of the likelihood that the financial receivables held
by the counterparty which are guaranteed suffer credit losses.

The amounts included above for variable interest rate
instruments are subject to change if changes in variable
interest rates differ to those estimates of interest rates
determined at the end of the reporting period.

Fair value measurements of financial instruments

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are
determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing
models based on discounted cash flow analysis.

The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial
assets and financial liabilities recognised in the consolidated
financial statements approximate their corresponding fair

values.



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
RO RIBM T (&)

REZZZRENA = H L4
For the year ended 30 June 2020

34. A B R B 34. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY
AN T A RO R B R R L Statement of financial position of the Company at the end of the
reporting period:
R R —E L
2020 2019
BT WBEIET T
HKS$’000 HK3$°000
JE ) & Non-current Assets
1% & Wt A F Investments in subsidiaries 515,632 535,433
LESR -9 & ] Property, plant and equipment 7 8
B Jag 2 ) B2 3K Loans to subsidiaries 651,258 619,496
1,166,897 1,154,937
Ui & E Current Assets
At B i K TE B TEA 3K Other receivables and prepayments 184 179
SRAT 45 6% ML Bank balances and cash 1,200 1,319
1,384 1,498
i B AT Current Liability
A A5 R R Other payables 4,377 4,099
B &R E Net Current Liabilities (2,993) (2,601)
A AR AE R B B Total Assets less Current Liability 1,163,904 1,152,336
B R fk A Capital and Reserves
N Share capital 237,704 228,324
ol (B aE) Reserves (Note) 651,097 661,258
AR 4 Total Equity 888,801 889,582
JE ) A K Non-current Liability
R M JE 2 F) B IE Amounts due to subsidiaries 275,103 262,754
1,163,904 1,152,336
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
ORI M ST (&)

BREZZZREENA = H L4 E
For the year ended 30 June 2020

34. ARAwWMHERUE 47) 34. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY (Continued)

Hfat - it Note: reserves

YA VB IR
Joc B fo i W 5% i i p Al At
Capital Share
Share redemption Translation option Retained

premium reserve reserve reserve profits Total
#HTT  #FTT BETT KT ENTT ¥
HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$°000 HKS$°000 HKS$ 000 HKS$ 000

BEZ—-AFLH—H At 1 July 2018 429,673 1,644 155,166 6,303 78977 671,763
FERA Profit for the year - - - - 42,326 42326
WSt 2 B £ Exchange differences

arising on translation - - (37,258) - - (37,258)

SRR (L) WOASE  Total comprehensive (expense)

income for the year - - (37,258) - 42,326 5,008
PR BICHE 2 e fh 847 Issue of shares upon exercise of

share options 1,591 - - (1,181) - 410
AR Lapse of share options = = - (375) 375 -
B8 (it # 1R Dividends (note 11) = = = = (15,983) (15,983)
RZE=NEAAZFH  A30 June 2019 431,264 1,644 117,908 4747 105,695 661,258
BB Profit for the year - - - - 33,805 33,805
EiEE AR Exchange differences

arising on translation - - (32,343) - - (32,843)

SRR (U)W S%  Total comprehensive (expense)

income for the year - - (32,343) - 33,805 962
TTHRMAE 2 B (384T Tssue of shares upon exercise of

share options 7211 - - (4,072) - 3,139
S g Lapse of share options - = = (675) 675 -
B8 (it 11E) Dividends (note 11) S - = = (14,262) (14,262)
BWEBZZEANAZTFH At30 June 2020 438,475 1,644 85,065 - 125913 651,097
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35.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
RO RIBM T (&)

REZZZRENA = H L4
For the year ended 30 June 2020

FERB A AN 35. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
MW ZEZFFER ZFE—JLENH =T Particulars of principal subsidiaries as at 30 June 2020 and 2019 are
H FEMEBARZFHEENT as follows:
LY
/ [k dil oV |
WEATDAR CHRATRAUERA /REMEA Yok e
Proportion of
nominal value of
issued/registered
Place of incorporation/ capital held by
Name of subsidiary registration/operation Issued and paid up share capital/registered capital the Company  Principal activities
Hk v
Ordinary Others
o w43 “FE e &
2020 2019 2020 2019
BALEARAR Fik #hng  ER00c - - 100%  fEER
Ardent Enterprises Limited Hong Kong HKS$1,200 HK$1,200 - = 100%  Investment holding
LrHERERERE TR () - - FA30000000% ££300000007 9% MELERER
ARATA (Hit—) (Hit—)
Beijing Longfast Property PRC (Note ) - - US$30,000,000  US$30,000,000 95%  Property investment and
Development Co., Ltd. (Note i) (Note i) development
FREHARLA ik #Wi Bk - - 0% IR
Billion Stock Investment Limited ~ Hong Kong HKS2 HKS2 - = 100%  Provision of nominee services
ERELRS 210 EZ AV - - 0% REER
Broad Capital Investments British Virgin Islands USs1 Uss1 - = 100%  Investment holding
Limited
PREXARLA i i o - - 100% R
China Gain Properties Limited ~ Hong Kong HKS2 HKS2 - - 100%  Property investment
ENERAR ERELHE AS00E  EE500007 - - 0%  BEER
Dynamic (B.V.L) Limited British Virgin Islands US950,000 US850,000 - - 100%  Investment holding
EAMBARAR Fit #0000 0007 - - 0% FE
Dynamic Finance Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 HKS10,000 - - 100%  Financing
ERER(LR ARAA  ERRLRE L3 L or - - 0% K
Dynamic Management (Beijing)  British Virgin Islands HKS? HKS7 - - 100%  Financing
Limited
ENEBREARLA Bt #h E#T - - 100%  REEERE
Dynamic Management Services  Hong Kong HKS? HKS2 - = 100%  Provision of management
Limited services
Fi L3 LT - - 0% REERRE
Dynamic (Nominees) Limited ~ Hong Kong HKS2 HKS2 - = 100%  Provision of management
services
R (7B & HREARE p AV F21 - - 0% A
ERARAA
Dynamic Real Estate (China) British Virgin Islands Uss1 USs1 - - 100%  Management consultancy
Management Consultancy
Limited
ERELHE EZ AV £4101 - - 0%  BEER
Glory Diamond Inc. British Virgin Islands US$10 Uss10 - - 100%  Investment holding
B EARAR &t # P - - 100%  fEER
Harvic Investment Limited Hong Kong HKS2 HKS2 - - 100%  Investment holding
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
||-7.r —.I.FBFIE\B‘:IDI(Q)

BEZRRIEEAAZTHILEE
For the year ended 30 June 2020

35. REWBA RGN @) 35. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

142

36.

SE-AEDFDREEER | B OEEARA A

(Continued)
AR
_ LRI/
WA AR LGV ENT o9 ) o YoRTTIBHE
Proportion of
nominal value of
issued/registered
Place of incorporation/ capital held by
Name of subsidiary registration/operation Issued and paid up share capital/registered capital the Company  Principal activities
Wk
Ordinary Others
- “EE - e S 3
2020 2019 2020 2019
REEEARARA ERELHE EE AV #2817 - - 0% BEER
High Grand Investments Limited  British Virgin Islands Uss1 Uss1 - = 100%  Investment holding
HRARARAA & L34V b - - 0%  HERE
Move On International Limited ~ Hong Kong HKS1 HKS! - - 100%  Property investment
Htat - Notes:
— o~ E B kT 2 b s RN O A B R A i. Beijing Longfast Property Development Co., Ltd. (“Beijing

PR 28 AD (T Jb 5 AR |) 55 25 o A0 & 1F
BN T o b A NE 2 5 AR A 26 4
30,000,000 7C > | 3 i 7 A8 4F B T B 5% 2
% 4230,000,000 7 J3 A 48 [ T 42 2 %
A% o BRI > AR S (8] 4% [ % AT 3 A G 5 R
N 95% | 1 J2 i1 & 7 o

— -~ BRE A R A 7 X Glory Diamond Inc. H
AN F EHEREHA I > TE B A A
WA -

= EHERAU LRSI L ERERA
I BE E 2 AN A W ] >
wﬁﬂ%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%"‘]gﬂﬂ%iﬁﬁﬁ%%
i

PO~ B A A A B A AR A AT ] B ]
MRS ATAE (T B RE 5 -

i 300 405 A% Y e 0

AN E S ER A o TR AR R R B R
I R 4 4 A AR I RS 3R B ROIR DL AR
AN 5% BE o 5% e B Bl 6 [ W AE A 4R B
BOFRFL A= —HIEAMHEA
1 BA B MR IE A oy A 0 B Y R A B e AN
T 3 SRR S R TR o PR A 4 RE ) D 45
EMBIREZ B > HIEFEM LB AL H
S5 G BABE IR IE MY 5 B8 o B[R] IR > AR 4R
@%gfﬂ%@%ﬁi?ﬂﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁ 23N
7 5 18 B o I K IRF BR BB E R R
Dy 8 L 5 A A [ B 5 2R BRI A 5
B/ o

36.

Longfast”) established in the PRC is registered as sino-foreign co-
operative joint venture. Beijing Longfast had a registered capital
of US$30,000,000. The amount of US$30,000,000 disclosed in
both years above represents capital paid by the Group. However,
the Group’s entitlement to share the profit and net assets in Beijing
Longfast was agreed to be at 95%.

ii. Other than Dynamic (B.V.1.) Limited and Glory Diamond Inc., which
are wholly-owned directly by the Company, all subsidiaries are held
by the Company indirectly.

iii. The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the Directors, principally affected the results or assets of
the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion
of the Directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

iv. None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end of
the year, or at any time during the year.

EVENT AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING
PERIOD

The Directors of the Company consider that the development
of the COVID-19 may continue to adversely affect the financial
performance and position of the Group. This impact may be
reflected in the financial statements of the Group for the six months
ending 31 December 2020. Due to the unpredictability of future
development of the virus and market sentiment, the extend of
which impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Group
could not be assessed as at the date that the consolidated financial
statements are authorised for issue. Meanwhile, the Group will
closely monitor the impact of the COVID-19 as well as market
situation and react in a timely and appropriate manner, so as to
mitigate its impact on the financial performance and position of the
Group.



FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
hEFEMFRS

B R 4 CONSOLIDATED RESULTS
BEAN = HIL4EE
Year ended 30 June
“E-AE ZF-LFE ZF-NF 20 CR0RE
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
BETL  ENTT EETT EFTT E¥TE
HK$’000 HKS$000 HKS$000 HKS$000 HKS 000
A Revenue 103,870 101,762 113,030 106,206 92,054
AN A NBENG  (Loss) profit for the year attributable to
(fei48) i A1 the owners of the Company 95,085 115,591 126,125 48,730 (28,413)
HREA (BE) BA Basic (loss) earnings per share
(B ) (Hong Kong cents) 4.7 51.4 56.0 215 (12.0)
B (B548) &R Diluted (loss) earnings per share
GBI ) (Hong Kong cents) 40.7 488 53.0 20.5 (11.9)

R - R R

CONSOLIDATED ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND

EQUITY
RAAZ1H
At 30 June

CE-NE ZEEE ZE-AFE ZEFE ZERISE
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
BYTFT  EETL  BETr BETIT B¥TX
HKS$000 HKS$’000 HKS$000 HKS$000 HK$’000
W3 B Rk M Property, plant and equipment 1,743 2214 1,859 2,431 1,980
S Right-of-use assets = = = - 1,067
i 8-/ Investment properties 1,926240 1990736 2136283 2,051,020 1,910,689
AECEMER Interest in a joint venture 71,570 86,974 80,205 93,605 78,918
BEBERK Amount due from a joint venture 235,184 218,549 238,083 215,712 220,448
T & Current assets 291,995 314,882 343,286 319,915 308,817
Hih & Other asset 1,404 1,382 1,423 1,364 1,313
BESE Total assets 2,528,136 2,614,737 2,801,339 2,684,047 2,523,232

ANFEEA NELREL  Equity attributable to the owners
of the Company 1,902,346 1978078 2,148998 2095656 1,988,029
I PRI IR A Non-controlling interests 34,154 34,731 38,186 36,862 37,287
A4 Total equity 1,936,500 2,012,809 2,187,184 2,132,518 2,025,316

RATEH— Bank loans —

TR — R R due after one year = 135,520 127,759 = 95,667
i A T B A Deferred tax liabilities 283,573 302,625 322,594 293,795 253,404
BYeER RiNE e Long-term rental deposits received = 20,033 14315 15,175 9,078
T A K Current liabilities 308,063 143,750 149,487 242,559 139,767
ABREE Total liabilities 591,636 601,928 614,155 551,529 497,916

2,528,136 2614737 2801339 2,684,047 2,523,232
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ANALYSIS OF PROPERTIES HELD
PR BYME DN

W EEBENA=ZTH A EEY  Particulars of properties held for investment at 30 June 2020:
EZFEMT -

(VAN AT 4R

Location Lease term

CiE YN A i
i

i S [

F A+ L

S R 1 S B 455 7 S

LHEE T T ORI )

Levels 7 to 22 (without levels 13 and 14) Office Medium
West Tower, Eton Place

No. 69 Dongfang Road

Pudong New Area

Shanghai

The People’s Republic of China

G N W EY EE R
Je

W B I H %

B

S B T R = L

s CTHE

oW R = A E RS

Carpark spaces in Phase I, II, III, Commercial/ Medium
commercial portion of Phase III and Carpark/Residential

residential portion of Phase II and I1I

No. 25 Nan Lane

Ganlouyuan

Chaoyang District

Beijing

The People’s Republic of China
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